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Deloitte

127 Public Square
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USA

Tel: +1 216 589 1300
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The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

The Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs previously issued by Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the
“County”) for the year ended December 31, 2005, excluded the identification of the Help America
Vote grant, CFDA #90.401, as amagjor federal award program.

Accordingly, the accompanying of Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs has been restated to
include the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401, as a mgjor federal award program during the
year ended December 31, 2005.

In addition, certain of our reports have been revised as a result of the exclusion the identification of
the Help AmericaVote grant, CFDA #90.401, as amgjor federal award program.

A summary of therevisionsis asfollows:
Independent Auditors' Report
e Dual dated with respect to the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401.
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financia Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

e Dual dated with respect to the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401.

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and Internal Control Over Compliance
Applicable to Each Magjor Federal Award Program

o Dual dated with respect to the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401.

In addition, the accompanying Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financia Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards has been revised to incorporate the effects of
comments received from the Auditor of the State of Ohio in their |etter dated October 11, 2006 to
Deloitte & Touche LLP. A summary of the revisionsis as follows:

i
Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

e Thefirst sentence of the report was modified to reflect the opinion units that
have been reported on.

e The Compliance and Other Matters section of the report was modified to
delete the reference to finding 2005-1 and to state that the results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Detitty ¢Tons, LLP

February 28, 2007




CUYAHOGA COUNTY AUDITOR

A FRANK RUSSO
bd

August 14, 2006

Dear Users of the County’s Basic Financial Statements:

The accompanying basic financial statements of the County as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2005 include the financial statements and notes required under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America that are essential to fair
presentation of the County’s financial position and results of operations and the cash
flows of the County’s proprietary fund types. Additional information regarding the
County’s financial activities for 2005 is available in the County’s separately issued
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2005.
Copies of the CAFR can be obtained from the Auditor of State website at
http://www.auditor.state.oh.us/AuditSearch/Search.aspx or by contacting me at:

Cuyahoga County Auditor’s Office
1219 Ontario Street, Room 121
Cleveland, OH 44113

Telephone: (216) 443-7022

Sincerely,

/ - )
E/ »,
’ ~ '—H—__—_“-‘\

Steven C. LetsEy, CPA
Director of Accounting

1219 ONTARIO STREET e CLEVELAND, OHIO 44113-1657 o TELEPHONME (216) 443-7010 o FAX (216) 443-5090
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www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Cuyahoga, Ohio (the “County”) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2005, which collectively comprise the County’ s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
County’ s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the MetroHealth Foundation, Inc.
(the “Foundation™), which represents 3% of the assets, 8% of the net assets, and 8% of the change
in net assets of the discretely presented component unit, The MetroHealth System. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar asit relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gover nment
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the
respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’ sinternal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the respective financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, such financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financia position of the
governmental activities, business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of December 31, 2005,
and the respective changesin financial position and respective cash flows, where applicable,
thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Human Services Fund,
Health and Human Services Levies Fund, County Board of Mental Retardation Fund, and Health
and Community Services Fund, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generaly accepted in the United States of America.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Asdiscussed in Note B to the financial statements, the MetroHealth System changed its method of
accounting for conditional asset retirement obligations in 2005.

The management’ s discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 17 is not arequired part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the

County’ s management. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally

of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit such information and we do not express an
opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the County’ s financial statements
that collectively comprise the County’ s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis, as required by
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not arequired part of the basic financial statements. This
scheduleis the responsibility of management of the County. Such schedule has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in al material respects when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
taken asawhole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 9,
2006, on our consideration of the County’ s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Detitty ¢Tons, LLP

June 9, 2006

(February 28, 2007 as to the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Cuyahoga County, we offer readers of Cuyahoga County’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Cuyahoga County for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letters of transmittal, which can
be found on pages iv-xii of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of Cuyahoga County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $739.1 million (net assets).

e The government’s total net assets increased by $101.2 million.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $403.3 million, an increase of $39.2 million in comparison
with the prior year. Approximately 85% of this total amount, $342.4 million, is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $134
million, or 43.1% of total general fund expenditures.

e Additions to Cuyahoga County’s total debt were $81.7 million during the current fiscal year.
Reductions in debt during 2005 amounted to $103 million for a net decrease of $21.3 million.
The County replaced existing debt (bond anticipation note) with new debt (sewer bond) and
refinanced (advance refunded) existing debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Cuyahoga County’s basic
financial statements. Cuyahoga County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Cuyahoga County’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Cuyahoga County is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Cuyahoga County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and




charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of Cuyahoga County include general
government, judicial, development, social services, health and safety and public works. The
business-type activities of Cuyahoga County include a sanitary sewer authority, an airport, a parking
garage and a crime information system.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Cuyahoga County itself (known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate hospital for which Cuyahoga County is financially
accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 — 19 of the report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Cuyahoga
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Cuyahoga County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Cuyahoga County maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general, human services, health and human
services levies, county board of mental retardation and health and community services funds which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other five governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Cuyahoga County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and the other major
funds as well as the motor vehicle gas tax and debt service funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 — 29 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. Cuyahoga County uses enterprise funds to account for its sanitary sewer,
airport, parking garage and crime information system. Internal service funds are an accounting




device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among Cuyahoga County’s various
functions. Cuyahoga County uses internal service funds to account for its central custodial,
maintenance garage, data processing, printing, reproduction and supplies, communications and self-
funded workers’ compensation services. As these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
sanitary engineer which is considered to be a major fund of Cuyahoga County. Conversely, the
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 — 33 of this report.

Fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support Cuyahoga County’s
own programs.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 34 of this report.

Budgetary fund financial statements. The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The budgetary statements for the general fund and all annually budgeted major
special revenue funds are presented to demonstrate the County’s compliance with annually adopted
budgets.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 35 — 70 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain other supplementary information. The combining statements referred to
earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds and internal
service funds are presented in the other supplementary information. Combining and individual fund
statements and schedules can be found on pages 72 — 112 of this report.




Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of Cuyahoga County, assets exceeded liabilities by $739.1 million at the close
of the most recent fiscal year. This is the fourth year for Cuyahoga County in implementing
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. This statement requires
a comparative analysis of government-wide data in the Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A\) section.

Cuyahoga County’s Net Assets
(December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Current and other assets............... $ 908,644 $ 841,777 $ 11,782 $ 13,898 $ 920,426 $ 855,675
Capital assets.......cccccccveeeecverennnen. 634,954 619,334 50,065 44,165 685,019 663,499

Total assets.......ccoeeeeeeeeeicccnnnnen 1,543,598 1,461,111 61,847 58,063 1,605,445 1,519,174
Long-term liabilities outstanding.... 430,594 464,502 12,199 14,380 442,793 478,882
Other liabilities............cuvvveeeeeeeeenne. 422,578 400,964 946 1,364 423,524 402,328

Total liabilities.........cccceeeeeeeernnnnnn. 853,172 865,466 13,145 15,744 866,317 881,210
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt.........ooevevveeeiveviiiiiiinnns 386,234 350,959 38,866 31,236 425,100 382,195
Restricted.........cooovvvvii 35,678 38,995 35,678 38,995
Unrestricted............cccoooeel 268,514 205,691 9,836 11,083 278,350 216,774

Total net assets.........ccoeeeeennnnnnn. $ 690426 $ 595645 $ 48,702 $ 42,319 $ 739,128 $ 637,964

At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities.

By far the largest portion of Cuyahoga County’s net assets (57.5%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding. Cuyahoga County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Cuyahoga County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of Cuyahoga County’s net assets, restricted net assets (4.8%), represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance
of unrestricted net assets ($278.4 million) may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Current and other assets increased due primarily to the growth in cash balances of the general fund,
health and human services levies fund, county board of mental retardation fund and health and
community services fund amounting to $12.9 million, $23.3 million, $30.9 million and $22.1 million,
respectively. The general fund increase was due to less money being needed to be transferred for




human services and capital projects subsidies and increased investment earnings. The replacement
health and welfare levy passed in 2003 and commenced collection in 2004. This alleviated the
general fund’s obligation to fund human services. In 2004, the general fund supported various
capital projects including the purchase of Whiskey Island for $4 million which was not needed in
2005. The health and human services levy fund cash balance grew as a result of the State of Ohio
changing its allocation method for Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) which
alleviated some of the need in 2005 to subsidize the human services funds. The county board of
mental retardation fund cash increase was due to settlement of prior year audits of the Community
Alternative Funding System (CAFS) program amounting to $13.8 million and three new programs
including Developmental Disabilities Active Treatment. The health and community services fund
cash balance increased due to additional subsidies not yet allocated to programs and decreases in
spending for children in foster care placement as more children were adopted. Some of the cash
increases were offset by the large draw down of funds in the capital projects funds primarily due to
the purchase of the new County Administration building and parking garage amounting to $24.4
million.

Other liabilities increased due primarily to the higher volume in childcare services, new programs in
human services for early start, the Tinker's Creek Project in community development beginning at
the end of 2005 and Medicaid increases for the mental health board. The capital assets in the
Business-type activities increased due to the purchase of a new county parking garage.

Overall, the net increase in capital assets of the governmental activities (exclusive of internal
services funds) grew by $17.3 million while net long-term debt (exclusive of internal services funds
and inclusive of accrued interest payable and unamortized bond issuance costs) were reduced by
$38 million which accounted for a $55.3 million increase in governmental activities net assets.




CUYAHOGA COUNTY’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(Year ended December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services ..........c.ccooveveeeerenennne. $ 96,837 $ 98,354 $ 16,977 $ 15468 $ 113,814 $ 113,822
Operating grants and contributions ............. 622,402 578,794 308 145 622,710 578,939
Capital grants, contributions and interest..... 36,289 25,305 6,160 42,449 25,305
General revenues:
Property taxes ......ccccceeiveiiiiiiiiieeee 313,675 315,172 313,675 315,172
Sales and othertaxes ............ccccevvveeeeeeeeennn. 194,487 197,562 194,487 197,562
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs ............c.......... 41,838 41,982 41,838 41,982
(O] 01T 69,101 64,598 43 102 69,144 64,700
Total revenues ...........ccoeeeveeeeieii 1,374,629 1,321,767 23,488 15,715 1,398,117 1,337,482
Expenses:
General government .........ccccoooeeiiiiieneeennns 81,196 69,154 81,196 69,154
Judicial ....euvveeeiiiiiii s 297,292 292,417 297,292 292,417
Development...........ccooecviieeiiiiiiiciieeee e, 31,653 32,524 31,653 32,524
S0Cial SEIVICES ....vvvvvrrerrrrrrrrerrirrrrrrreereerareenns 580,962 570,871 580,962 570,871
Health and safety .......c..occocviviieie 207,386 178,342 207,386 178,342
PUblic WOrKS .....ooeveveeeeieeeeeeieieeeeeeee 64,765 59,421 64,765 59,421
Interest ..., 15,932 18,412 15,932 18,412
Sanitary Engineer..........ccoocciiiiiiiiiiieneee. 11,293 9,604 11,293 9,604
AITPOIt L 1,697 1,302 1,697 1,302
Huntington Park Garage .............cccovveeeennn. 2,299 2,418 2,299 2,418
Cuyahoga County Information System........ 2478 2,773 2478 2,773
Total EXPENSES......uvvveeiieeiiiieieee e, 1,279,186 1,221,141 17,767 16,097 1,296,953 1,237,238
Increase (Decrease) in net assets
before transfers........ccccccvvveveveiiiiiiiiie 95,443 100,626 5,721 (382) 101,164 100,244
= 1015 = (662) (2,811) 662 2,811
Change in net assets .........cccecceveviieeenciieens 94,781 97,815 6,383 2,429 101,164 100,244
Net assets — Beginning of year ...................... 595,645 497,830 42,319 39,890 637,964 537,720
Net assets — End of year.............cccceeeevvieennns $690,426 $ 595645 $ 48,702 $42319 $ 739128 $ 637,964

The County’s revenues and expenses grew proportionately by $60.6 million and $59.7 million,
respectively. The County’s net assets increased by $101.2 million. The State changed its
methodology for computing the allocation of TANF dollars to counties, which resulted in an increase
in allocations to the human services fund of approximately $27 million. This resulted in the health
and human services levy fund not needing to allocate a portion of its $23.3 million balance. The
money will be used for subsidies in future years. There was also an increase in the county board of
mental retardation balance of $28.9 million because of new federal programs amounting to $8.9
million and an audit reconciliation settlement related to the CAFS program amounting to $13.8
million. There were also new programs related to Early Childhood.

Overall, the purchase and construction of capital assets offset by the reduction of long-term debt
accounted for a significant part of the change in net assets.
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Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

(Amounts in 000’s) %
a. Charges for Services.......ccccceeviiiiiiiieeeeeciee, $ 96,837 7.0
b. Operating Grants and Contributions.................. 622,402 45.3
c. Capital Grants, Contributions and Interest......... 36,289 2.6
d. Property TaX....oooooceeeeieiieeiee e 313,675 22.8
€. SAlIES TAX ciiieeii i 167,125 12.2
f. Other TaX oo, 27,362 2.0
g. State Local Government.............cccoiiieiiiiinneen. 38,131 2.8
h. Grants and Contributions not restricted
to specific programs. .........cccccevvieeiiiieeiiieeene 41,838 3.0
. Other ..o 30,970 2.3
Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
(Amounts in 000's)
700,000
OExpenses
600,000 -
500,000 - B Program Revenue
400,000 -
300,000 -
200,000 -
100,000 -
0 ,

Judicial Development Social Health & Public Interest
Services Safety Works
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

. /-

(Amounts in 000’s) %

a. Charges for Services .........cccocevieiiiiinienn. $16,977 72.3
b. Operating Grants and Contributions .......... 308 1.3
¢, Capital Grants, Contributions and Interest. 6,160 26.2
d. Other. i 43 2

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities

14,000

(Amounts in 000's)

12,000 -
10,000 -
8,000 +
6,000 -
4,000 +
2,000 +

Sanitary
Engineer

OExpenses

B Revenues

Airport Huntington Park ~ Cuyahoga County
Garage Information System
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased Cuyahoga County’s net assets by
$94.8 million. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e The increase in the health and human services levy fund resulted from the State allocating
additional TANF monies amounting to approximately $27 million for human services which offset
some of the planned subsidy payments. The balance in the health and human services levy
fund will be drawn down in future years.

¢ The increase in the county board of mental retardation fund resulted primarily from new federal
grant programs amounting to $8.9 million and an increase in the CAFS program revenue of
$13.8 million due to an audit reconciliation in 2005 for 2004.

e Reductions of long-term debt of $38 million while adding additional assets amounting to $17.3
million grew net assets by $55.3 million.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased Cuyahoga County’s net assets by
$6.4 million. The key element of this increase is the purchase of a $6 million Administration building
parking garage which was purchased through a capital project fund to be financed by a future bond
issue.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Cuyahoga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information
is useful in assessing Cuyahoga County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $403.3 million, an increase of $39.2 million in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately $342.4 million constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that
it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed (1) for restricted assets
($25.8 million), (2) for loans ($19.7 million) or (3) to pay debt service ($15.4 million).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Cuyahoga County. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $134 million, while fund balance reached
$170.2 million. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 43.1% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
54.7% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the Cuyahoga County’s general fund, health and human services levy fund,
county board of mental retardation fund and health and community services fund each increased by
$7.5 million, $25.9 million, $28.9 million and $12.7 million, respectively. The capital projects fund
had a decrease in fund balance of $30.9 million. The key factors in these changes are as follows:

e The general fund increase of $9 million in investment earnings due to rising interest rates and a
higher average daily balance.
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e The general fund subsidies decreased by $37.6 million in 2005 due to increased subsidy to the
human services funds from the health and human service levy fund instead of the general fund,
a difference of $22.3 million. There were also less subsides needed for various capital projects.

e There was a $7.3 million decrease in revenues for indirect costs due to a smoothing calculation
for 2005 and a one time payment in 2004 of $9.2 million for the settlement of a non-prosecution
agreement in the general fund.

e The health and human services levy fund balance increased by $25.9 million partially due to the
increased amount of TANF allocation from the State for the human services fund. The
remainder is is due to planned future draw downs.

e The increase in the county board of mental retardation fund of $28.9 million is due to an increase
in other intergovernmental revenue for new federal grant programs along with the $13.8 million
audit reconciliation settlement.

e The $12.7 million increase in health and community services was a result of a $2.3 million
increase to the alcohol and drug board for new programs and a $7.8 million decrease in
expenditures in children’s services fund due to fewer children in foster care.

e The decrease of $30.9 million in fund balance in the capital projects fund resulted from ongoing
construction in various projects and the purchase of the new County administration building for
$24.4 million.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the sanitary engineer at the end of the year amounted to $8.4 million and
all others amounted to $1.2 million. The total increase in net assets for the sanitary engineer was
$1.1 million and all others amounted to $5.3 million. Other factors concerning the finances of these
two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of Cuyahoga County’s business-type
activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $15.2 million and
differences between the final amended budged and the actual expenditures were $12.3 million. The
variances can be briefly summarized as follows:

e The change in original verses final budget was a result of $1.4 million increase in Board Care of
Prisoners, an increase in Information Services Center charges amounting to $4 million and
additional personnel costs in Juvenile Court-Legal and Sheriff’'s office amounting to $5 million.

e The operating transfers increases of $6.5 million includes increases in subsidy payments for
Certificate of Title Administration, County Planning Commission, CRIS and Youth Services and
an increase of the subsidy for repayment of the assessment fund for Board of Revision. There
was also an increase in the cash match for the Justice Affairs Department and the general fund
support of the Geo Information systems.

e The positive variance in final budget versus actual expenditures was a result of not being
required to use the amount reserved for the Gateway Bond Guarantee and to lower than
anticipated claims for self-insurance, space maintenance charges being less than anticipated
and the Veterans Services Commission not making anticipated expenditures.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Cuyahoga County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of December 31, 2005, amounts to $685 million (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings structures
and improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and construction in
progress. The net increase in Cuyahoga County’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal
year was 3.2% (a 2.5% increase for governmental activities and a 13.4% increase for business-type
activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

CUYAHOGA COUNTY’S CAPITAL ASSETS
(December 31; net of depreciation, amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Land.....ccoooeeiiiiieiieee e $ 52959 § 44535 $ 7,753 $ 5,752 $ 60,712 $ 50,287
Land improvements................. 10,816 10,485 2,413 2,658 13,229 13,143
Utility plant .......cccooeeceiiieeene 25,651 26,639 25,651 26,639
Buildings, structures and

improvements............cc.cccueee.. 311,699 305,279 11,004 6,742 322,703 312,021
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment ...........cccoooeee. 12,545 13,919 351 243 12,896 14,162
Vehicles ......oocoeveiiiiiiiieees 4,343 4,035 953 961 5,296 4,996
Infrastructure........ccccccccooee. 191,138 199,601 191,138 199,601
Construction in progress ......... 51,454 41,480 1,940 1,170 53,394 42,650
Total .o $ 634954 $ 619,334 $ 50,065 $ 44,165 $ 685,019 $.663,499

The County was involved in a number of construction projects and purchases that resulted in the
capitalization of various assets in 2005. Under construction was the Pleasant Valley Road bridge
and Wolf Road bridge amounting to $8.1 million and $1.8 million respectively. Improvements to
safety for the county courthouse amounting to $1.8 million and the construction of a new youth
intervention center amounting to $2.8 million were some of the other larger projects. The County
purchased the marina portion of Whiskey Island for $2.3 million and a property that will be the future
County administration building amounting to $12.3 million for the building and $6.1 million for the
land.

The Business-type activities increases in capital assets were due primarily to the purchase of a new
parking garage associated with the new County administration building and the land under the
garage amounting to $4.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. In addition, some land amounting to
$.8 million was purchased for use by the county airport.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s capital assets can be found in Note E on pages 49 —
51 of this report.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County had total bonded debt
outstanding of $341.3 million. Of this amount, $224.9 million comprises debt backed by the full faith
and credit of the government and $6.5 million is special assessment debt for which the government
is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment. The remainder of
Cuyahoga County’s debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e.,
revenue bonds) and other debt such as loans and an installment purchase agreement financed by
non-tax sources.

Cuyahoga County’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Other Long-term Debt
(December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

General obligation bonds .............. $ 224861 $ 241,445 $ $ $ 224,861 $ 241,445
Special assessment debt with

governmental commitment........... 6,505 2,250 6,505 2,250
Revenue bonds..........ccccccveeeiinenn. 109,950 113,735 109,950 113,735
Bond anticipation notes................. 5,950 5,950
LOANS ...oviiieeeeciee e 5,752 3,054 4,694 4,729 10,446 7,783
Installment purchase agreements. 7,881 9,808 7,881 9,808
Total .o $ 348444 $ 368,042 $ 11,199 $ 12,929 $ 359,643 $ 380,971

Cuyahoga County’s total debt decreased by $21.3 million (5.6%) during the current fiscal year. The
County refinanced some general obligation bonds and replaced its bond anticipation notes with
sewer bonds. The reduction was primarily the result of paying down its debt.

Cuyahoga County maintained a “AA+” rating from Standard & Poor’s, “AAA” from Fitch and a “Aa1”
rating from Moody’s for general obligation debt. The revenue bonds have been rated “Aa3” by
Moody’s.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 1%
of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation (voted and unvoted) for Cuyahoga County
is $571.8 million which is significantly in excess of Cuyahoga County’s outstanding general
obligation debt.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s long-term debt can be found in Note F on pages 52 -
60 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for Cuyahoga County is currently 6.1%, compared to 6.2% a year ago.

e The region’s commercial real estate sales amounted to $1.25 billion in 2005 which represented a
73% increase from the $723 million in 2004. Northeast Ohio climbed to 44" position in the
nation in dollar volume sales in 2005 up from 51% place in 2004.
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e The 2001 recession and its aftermath caused Cuyahoga County to lose more jobs than any
other county in the state from 2000 to 2005. Cuyahoga County lost almost 76,000 jobs, or
approximately 37% of the overall jobs lost in Ohio.

Each of these factors were considered in preparing Cuyahoga County’s budget for the 2005 fiscal
year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased $9.1 million.
Various factors including reduction in subsidies to human services and capital projects and growth in
investment earnings contributed to this increase.

The County purchased a new administration building for $24.4 million including a parking garage for
future use after renovation. Various County department will be relocated to the new site. The
County will issue debt to cover the purchase and renovation costs.

The County partially refunded some general obligation bonds, replaced its bond anticipation notes
with a bond and paid down debt.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Frank
Russo, Cuyahoga County Auditor, Cuyahoga County, 1219 Ontario Street, Room 121, Cleveland,
Ohio 44113.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000's)

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-Type MetroHealth
Activities Activities Total System
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments..............ccccceoiiiiiiienins 344,819 $ 9,534 $ 354,353 $ 4,381
Cash and investments-segregated accounts.................cc.c.co..... 233,196
Receivables:
Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles)............c.ccccoveiieeinn 346,835 346,835
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 608 282 890 53,331
Special assessments (net of allowance for uncollectibles 2,243 2,243
Accrued interest 4,067 4,067
Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles). 19,739 19,739
Net receivables.... 371,249 2,525 373,774 53,331
Internal balances 718 (718)
Due from other governments. 155,607 399 156,006
Inventory of supplies 43 16 59 5,891
Prepaid expenses and other receivables.. 21,870
Other @SSEetS.......cciiiiiiecceee e 6,706 26 6,732 5,652
Restricted assets:
Cash and iNVestMeNts...........cccoeviiiiiiiiieiee e 29,502 29,502 58,472
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
LaN....iiii 52,959 7,753 60,712 9,377
Land improvements. 10,816 2,413 13,229 909
Utility plant 25,651 25,651
Buildings, structures and improvements. 311,699 11,004 322,703 189,922
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 12,545 351 12,896 42,910
Vehicles 4,343 953 5,296 6,179
Infrastructure. 191,138 191,138
Construction in progress 51,454 1,940 53,394 13,964
Net capital @ssets............ccccouiiiiiiiiiii 634,954 50,065 685,019 263,261
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt 1,543,598 61,847 1,605,445 646,054
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable............coooiiiiiiiii s 72,856 778 73,634 24,701
Unearned revenue 315,662 315,662
Due to other governments.. 20,444 8 20,452
Accrued wages and benefits.. 10,704 136 10,840 28,771
Matured bonds payable 14 14
Other liabilities 800 24 824 10,957
Accrued interest payable............ccoooiiiiiiiiiis 2,098 2,098 2,656
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year. 44,756 1,204 45,960 45,746
Due in more than one year.. 385,838 10,995 396,833 292,843
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt 853,172 13,145 866,317 405,674
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...............cccoceeeeee 386,234 38,866 425,100 68,571
Restricted for:
Restricted assets-expendable...........ccccveviiiiiniiiiiniiiceen 20,255 20,255 10,848
Restricted assets-nonexpendable. 5,864
Debt service.. 15,423 15,423 36,359
Unrestricted.... 268,514 9,836 278,350 118,738
TOTAL NET ASSETS. 690,426 $ 48,702 $ 739,128 $ 240,380

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000's)

Charges for

Functions/Programs Expenses Services
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
GENETAl GOVEIMIMENT. ... i i ie ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e eeaaaaaaaeeeaaaannnnnsesnnnneeeaaas $ 81,196 $ 67,738
N8 T [To = | PP PRPPPPPPURPPP 297,292 20,831
|23V o o 4 =Y o S 31,653 204
SOCIAI SEIVICES. ... ittt ettt e et et e e et eeaes 580,962 4,160
Health @and Safety.........oooiiiiiiii e 207,386 1,688
PUDIIC WOTKS. ... e e e e e e e e e enaan 64,765 2,216
Interest on long-term debt 15,932
Total governmental aCtiVIties. ...........o i 1,279,186 96,837
Business-type activities:
SR Lo =T o VA =l g Te 11 =TT PP OPP P PPPPP 11,293 12,480
2 [ oo o SN 1,697 945
Huntington Park Garage...............uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 2,299 2,368
Cuyahoga County Information System.........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 2,478 1,184
Total business-type actiVities......... ..o 17,767 16,977
Total PriMary GOVEIMMENT. ......oiiii ittt et e e e e e e e e e e e et eeeeaeaaaaaeaesaaaaannnnnnnennes $ 1,296,953 $ 113,814
Component unit:
MetroHEaAIth SYSEEM ... ... ettt e e e e e eeeeaana $ 592,080 $ 523,950

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Operating Capital Grants, Business- Component Unit
Grants and Contributions and Governmental Type MetroHealth
Contributions Interest Activities Activities Totals System
18 $ 14,598 $ 1,158 § $ 1,158 §
48,358 (228,103) (228,103)
22,883 (8,566) (8,566)
410,817 (165,985) (165,985)
140,160 (65,538) (65,538)
166 21,691 (40,692) (40,692)
(15,932) (15,932)
622,402 36,289 (523,658) (523,658)
1,187 1,187
308 43 (401) (401)
6,117 6,186 6,186
(1,294) (1,294)
308 6,160 5,678 5,678
622,710 $ 42,449 (523,658) 5,678 (517,980)
43,530 $ 712 (23,888)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property. 313,675 313,675
Sales and use... 167,125 167,125
Other ..ot 27,362 27,362
Unrestricted state local government fund.... 38,131 38,131
Unrestricted investment earnings 17,147 18 17,165 10,290
Grants and contributions
not restricted to specific programs.............cccccceuee 41,838 41,838
Miscellaneous... 13,823 25 13,848 26,346
Transfers.. (662) 662
Total general revenues, and transfers.... 618,439 705 619,144 36,636
Change in net assets 94,781 6,383 101,164 12,748
Net assets-beginning of year (See Note B)... 595,645 42,319 637,964 227,632
Net assets-end of year. $ 690,426 $ 48,702 $ 739,128 $ 240,380
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)
Health and County
Human Board of
General Human Services Mental
Fund Services Levies Retardation

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments...........ccccccoveunee. $ 70,437 $ $ 39,178 § 63,900
Receivables:

Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..................... 60,176 154,334 96,196

Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles) ............... 251

Accrued iNterest .........oovvveiiiieiiie e 4,067

Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..................... 1,000
Net receivables............cooovviiiiiiiiiicceceee e, 65,494 154,334 96,196
Due from other funds..........cccocoeveieiiieicce e 40,981 42,977
Due from other governments............cccoooiiieiiiiceiiennen. 24,837 71,368 7,757 9,440
Restricted assets -

Cash and investments...........c.ccccceivieeeiiec e 29,502
TOTAL ASSETS.......coocerircrrerr s e s s s ssne e snen $ 231251 $ 71,368 $ 244,246 $ 169,536
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable..........ccocvrveiiieeireieeee e $ 4424 $ 17,460 $ $ 3,750

Deferred revenuUe...........ocvevevieiiie e 47,143 160,850 100,383

Due to other funds..........ccooeeviiviiiieiee e 3,307 51,879 1,038

Due to other governments..........cccccoeeiiiiiieeiie e,

Accrued wages and benefits............ccoooiiiiiiiniiien 5,368 2,029 1,476

Matured bonds payable...........c.ccoeeiiiiiiiiiiieee,

Other Liabilities.........ccovveiiieiiieeeecee e 800
TOTAL LIABILITIES......c.ooiiieieeeeee e 61,042 71,368 160,850 106,647

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Restricted assets.........cccevveeiiiieiiiie e 25,756
Loans receivable..........coceeeiiie i 1,000
DEDL SEIVICE.....ciiiie e 9,480

Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund:

Designated for self-insurance..............ccccccoeieeinnenn. 1,978
Designated for proprietary funds............c.ccccoeneeniee 1,961
Undesignated...........oocoveeiiiiiiniciiee e 130,034
Special Revenue Funds..........cccceevveeiiieeciieeeiee e 83,396 62,889
Capital Projects FUNd...........ccooviieeieiiniceecn
TOTAL FUND BALANCES .......cccooiiiieiceiecieeee e 170,209 83,396 62,889
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES................ $ 231251 $ 71,368 $ 244,246 $ 169,536

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

22



Health

and Other Total
Community Governmental Governmental
Services Funds Funds
$ 79,190 $ 32,761 $ 285,466
12,204 23,925 346,835
356 607
4,067
18,739 19,739
12,560 42,664 371,248
83,958
11,715 29,762 154,879
29,502
$ 103,465 $ 105,187 $ 925,053
$ 30,561 $ 14,467 $ 70,662
12,106 30,827 351,309
18,323 11,627 86,174
2,728 2,728
824 369 10,066
14 14
800
61,814 60,032 521,753
25,756
18,739 19,739
5,943 15,423
1,978
1,961
130,034
41,651 28,715 216,651
(8,242) (8,242)
41,651 45,155 403,300

$ 103,465 $ 105,187 $ 925,053
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Total fund balances for governmental fUNS............coouiiiiiiiiii e $ 403,300

Capital assets used in governmental activities (excluding internal service fund capital
assets) are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds............cccccooiiiiiiiiiicnnnnns 627,728

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the FUNAS............coii e 35,647

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets...............cccoooiii 44,614

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Accrued interest payable (2,098)
Long-term debt..........ccceeiniiiinnnn. (425,471)
Unamortized bond issuance costs 6,706 (420,863)

TOTAL NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.......cccccoiiiimmnieiniininninsssnsssssssssssssssssssssenns $ 690,426

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

25



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)
Health and County
Human Board of
General Human Services Mental
Fund Services Levies Retardation

REVENUES
Property taxes........ccuveeeeieiieiiiiee e $ 21,793 $ $ 169,249 $ 85,915
Sales and USE taX.......cccvvveiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 167,156
(@ =T 7= S 7 59 30
State local government fund............cccooeiiiiiiiiiiinen, 38,548
Licenses and permits............cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 86
Charges for SErviCeS.........ouuuuuuuiiiiiiiiiii e 64,652 1,903 1,967
Fines and forfeitures............cccoooiiiiiii 7,713
Investment earnings......... e 15,510 90
Other intergovernmental................ccooiiiiiiiiiii e 24,043 278,428 23,328 110,195
MiISCEllanN@OUS.......coneeieeee e 1,961 458 1,489
TOTAL REVENUES.........oiiiiiiiie e 341,469 280,789 192,636 199,686
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General governMent...........coouuiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 66,433

Judicial....ooueii 230,914

Development........ 6,595

Social services 5,836 319,975 170,857

Health and safety............c.ooooiiii 1,370 35,000

Public WOrKS.......couuiiiiii e
Capital outlay.........ccoovuiiiiiiiii
Debt service:

Principal retirement............ccccooviiiiiiiii

Interest...........cooeeen. 25
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 311,173 319,975 35,000 170,857
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES..........ciiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeiee e 30,296 (39,186) 157,636 28,829
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers iN.......oooe i 1,144 39,414 41
Transfers out:

Debt retirement............cooiiiiiii (5,737)

Other......ooveiiiiiiiiieeeee, (18,224) (228) (131,693)
Issuance of refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.....................
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)........ (22,817) 39,186 (131,693) 41
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES............occvveiiinnns 7,479 25,943 28,870
FUND BALANCES AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR. ..ottt 162,730 57,453 34,019
FUND BALANCES AT

END OF YEAR.... ... ee e e e e e e enmmnes $ 170,209 $ 0 83,396 $ 62,889

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

Health and Total
Community Other Governmental
Services Governmental Funds
13,839 $ 22,879 $ 313,675
167,156
28,587 28,683
38,548
1,729 1,815
18,390 86,912
186 250 8,149
802 1,457 17,859
177,308 89,934 703,236
3,069 6,872 13,849
215,323 149,979 1,379,882
17,604 85 84,122
45,485 17,378 293,777
5,041 20,672 32,308
87,437 3,718 587,823
151,034 19,975 207,379
1,948 56,433 58,381
38,981 38,981
22,851 22,851
16,450 16,475
308,549 196,543 1,342,097
(93,226) (46,564) 37,785
106,787 20,517 167,903
(5,737)
(843) (9,801) (160,789)
80,020 80,020
(80,020) (80,020)
105,944 10,716 1,377
12,718 (35,848) 39,162
28,933 81,003 364,138
41,651 $ 45,155 $ 403,300
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Net change in fund balances-total governmental fUNAS..............ooiiiiiiiiiiii s $ 39,162
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the cost of those assets that meet capitalization requirements

is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capital outlays ($50,917) exceeded depreciation ($33,651) in the current period................ 17,266

Net effect of sales and other disposals of capital @SSets..............ccoioiiiiiiiiii e (23)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues iN the FUNGS. ...........oiiiiiiii et nnee e (2,215)

Expenses reported as compensated absences and special termination benefits in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in goOVErNMENEAl FUNGS. ..........oouiiiii ettt sa et 15,757

Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the governmental funds, but is
reported as incurred in the statement of CtIVItIES. ............ooiiiiiiiiii e 566

The issuance of long-term debt, (notes, bonds, capital leases, etc.) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds and is not reported in the statement of activities. .............cccceeininienis (76,389)

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Capital 1€8SE ODlIGATIONS. ...ttt ettt h et s bbb et et e nne e be e 1,545
Environmental Protection AGENCY I0@N...........ouiiiiiii ittt ettt 27
Ohio Department of DEVEIOPMENT IOAN............ciiiiiiiiiiei ettt 250
Installment pUrchase agre mMENt............c.oi ittt 1,927
General obligation and revenue bonds 94,339
Certain net expenses of the internal service funds are reported with
governmental activities in the statement of aCtiVItIeS. ...........oooiiiiiiiiii e 2,569
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES........ccccooiiiiinimninnnnsnsnsssnsssssssssssssssssssssans $ 94,781

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000's)

General Fund

Human Services

Variance-with

Variance-with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget- Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts Posi!ive!Negative Original Final Amounts Positive| Negative!
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 21,890 $ 21,844 $ 21,845 § 1 $ $
Sales and use ta: 167,800 168,990 168,990
Other ta; 12 14 7 )
State local government fund 38,539 38,539 38,539
Licenses and permits. 100 73 86 13
Charges for service 57,358 62,489 65,261 2,772 1,632 1,810 1,903 93
Fines and forfeiture: 6,250 7,096 7,565 469
Investment earning: 11,500 20,000 16,522 (3,478)
Other intergovernmental. 8,141 8,807 9,290 483 256,249 329,928 289,690 (40,238)
Mi 1eous. 5,254 4,992 1,966 (3,026) 3,823 5,137 458 (4,679)
TOTAL REVENUES. 316,844 332,844 330,071 (2,773) 261,704 336,875 292,051 (44,824)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel. 27,723 28,219 27,604 615
Other. 27,591 31,808 26,480 5,328
Capital 99 175 156 19
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT. 55,413 60,202 54,240 5,962
JUDICIAL
Personnel 153,009 159,004 158,264 740
Other. 78,000 77172 74,095 3,077
Capital 476 1,059 977 82
TOTAL JUDICIAL 231,485 237,235 233,336 3,899
DEVELOPMENT
Personnel. 716 776 740 36
Other. 6,448 4,502 4,498 4
Capital 2 6 6
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT.......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiciricieeisinens 7,166 5,284 5,244 40
SOCIAL SERVICES
Personnel. 2,054 2,054 1,753 301 133,323 133,420 130,523 2,897
Other. 6,330 6,232 4,327 1,905 195,455 207,889 200,435 7,454
Capital. 123 136 102 34 415 1,704 1,410 294
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES 8,507 8,422 6,182 2,240 329,193 343,013 332,368 10,645
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Personnel 758 863 862 1
Other. 509 524 411 113
Capital 6 6 6
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ......ccoooeviiiiiiiiciiens 1,273 1,393 1,273 120
PUBLIC WORKS
Personnel
Other.
Capital
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS........cccoovviieiiiiiiciisicis
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 303,844 312,536 300,275 12,261 329,193 343,013 332,368 10,645
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES. 13,000 20,308 29,796 9,488 (67,489) (6,138) (40,317) (34,179)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in. 1,144 1,144 67,445 75,591 38,429 (37,162)
Transfers out:
Debt reti (7,301) (7,301) (5,737) 1,564
Other. (12,531) (19,019) (18,224) 795 (350) (228) 122
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)............ (19,832) (26,320) (22,817) 3,503 67,445 75,241 38,201 (37,040)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.............ocooocccrerrn. (6,832) (6,012) 6,979 12,991 (44) 69,103 (2,116) (71,219)
FUND BALANCES(DEFICITS) AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR.......cccoviimiiiiiiiiniiiins 107,053 107,053 107,053 (59,704) (59,704) (59,704)
FUND BALANCES(DEFICITS) AT
END OF YEAR $ 100,221 $ 101,041 $ 114,032 § 12,991 $ 59,748) $ 9,399 $_ (61820) $ 71,219

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Health and County
Human Services Levies Board of Mental Retardation Health and C Services
Variance-with Variance-with Variance-with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget- Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget- Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative) Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative; Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative)
$ 167,686 § 169,458 $ 169,460 $ 28 8799%$ 87,308 $ 85,879% (1,429) $ 13,941 § 13,941 § 13,850 $ 91)
54 18 59 41 30 30
1,610 1,633 1,729 96
808 1,967 1,159 17,908 17,901 18,335 434
167 149 186 37
25 75 90 15 533 675 735 60
22,494 23,614 23,328 (286) 84,505 96,958 97,417 459 171,310 159,723 179,154 19,431
4,260 4,425 1,750 (2,675) 10,129 11,462 3,275 (8,187;
190,234 193,090 192,847 (243) 176,784 189,604 187,133 (2,471) 215,598 205,484 217,264 11,780
11,391 11,936 11,774 162
4,220 7,622 7,492 130
37 69 54 15
15,648 19,627 19,320 307
28,463 29,310 28,692 618
18,732 19,080 15,672 3,408
297 779 649 130
47,492 49,169 45,013 4,156
1,716 1,746 1,634 112
3,253 3,754 3,529 225
5 5 15 (10)
4,974 5,505 5,178 327
87,893 87,893 83,826 4,067 1,064 1,064 916 148
87,665 87,665 83,290 4,375 107,861 98,426 91,577 6,849
3,630 3,630 3,106 524 62 147 100 47
179,188 179,188 170,222 8,966 108,987 99,637 92,5693 7,044
6,954 6,942 6,714 228
33,559 35,000 35,000 131,924 143,666 141,375 2,291
78 77 42 35
33,559 35,000 35,000 138,956 150,685 148,131 2,554
378 384 383 1
1,490 1,665 1,618 47
1 15 6 9
1,869 2,064 2,007 57
33,559 35,000 35,000 179,188 179,188 170,222 8,966 317,926 326,687 312,242 14,445
156,675 158,090 157,847 (243) (2,404) 10,416 16,911 6,495 (102,328) (121,203) (94,978) 26,225
41 41 41 104,340 102,472 110,630 8,158
(156,672) (134,550) __(134.550) (857) (843) 14
(156,672) (134,550) (134,550) 41 41 41 104,340 101,615 109,787 8,172
3 23,540 23,297 (243) (2,363) 10,457 16,952 6,495 2,012 (19,588) 14,809 34,397
15,881 15,881 15,881 24,335 24,335 24,335 29,451 29,451 29,451
$ 15,884 $ 39.421 $ 39178 $ (243) $___21.972 § 34,792 $____41.287% 6,495 $ 31,463 $ 9,863 $ 44,260 $ 34,397
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Governmental
Other Total Activities-
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments.............cccovveeeereeieseeseeneeeens 7,439 $ 2,095 $ 9,534 $ 59,353
Receivables:
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles)................cccoiiiiiiinninn. 3 279 282 1
Special assessements (net of allowance for uncollectibles). 250 250
Net receivables 253 279 532 1
Due from other funds.. 13 13 8,387
Due from other governments 168 231 399 728
Inventory of supplies 16 16 43
Total CUITENt @SSELS.......uuiiiiiiiiiiee e a e 7,860 2,634 10,494 68,512
Noncurrent assets:
Special assessments receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..... 1,993 1,993
Other @SSets.........oiiiiiiiiii 26 26
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
LaNG. e 472 7,281 7,753
Land improvements 473 1,940 2,413
Utility plant 25,651 25,651
Buildings, structures and improvements 2,496 8,508 11,004
Furniture, fixtures and equipment. 148 203 351 6,661
Vehicles 859 94 953 565
Construction in progress.. 1,407 533 1,940
Net capital assets 31,506 18,559 50,065 7,226
Total noncurrent assets.. 33,5625 18,559 52,084 7,226
TOTAL ASSETS...... 41,385 21,193 62,578 75,738
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable... 200 578 778 2,194
Due to other funds.. 263 652 915 5,269
Due to other governments. 8 8 17,716
Accrued wages and benefits.. 481 129 610 2,688
Other liabilities.... 24 24
Capital lease obligations.. 134
Special termination benefits... 401 39 440 2,276
Loans payable 357 357
Bonds payable. 360 360
Total current liabilities..............cocoiiiii s 2,094 1,398 3,492 30,277
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligations 341
Special termination benefits 76 10 86 322
Loans payable..... 4,337 4,337
Bonds payable. 6,145 6,145
Total noncurrent liabilities. ... 10,558 10 10,568 663
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...ttt 12,652 1,408 14,060 30,940
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...............cccoeevviiiiiiiiiinen. 20,307 18,559 38,866 6,750
Unrestricted. ..o 8,426 1,226 9,652 38,048
TOTAL NET ASSETS 28,733 $ 19,785 $ 44,798
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund
activities related to enterprise funds...........c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiii 184

NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 48,702
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000's)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Governmental
Other Total Activities-
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ........c.eveviierieetieteeieteeeeteeeee et esee et se e eneae s $ 12,480 $ 4,497 $ 16,977 $ 73,908
Other revenue 9 16 25 321
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES... 12,489 4,513 17,002 74,229
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services. 6,540 1,576 8,116 37,335
Contractual services and claims 904 1,004 1,908 9,199
Commodities 736 183 919 11,764
Depreciation 1,640 778 2,418 1,743
Other expenses........ 1,249 2,794 4,043 9,556
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 11,069 6,335 17,404 69,597
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,420 (1,822) (402) 4,632
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income..... 18 18
Interest expense (281) (281) (23)
Grants 308 308
Loss on disposal of capital @SSets..........ccoeoeeieiiiine i (9) (2) (11) (72)
TOTAL NONOPERATING

REVENUES (EXPENSES).....ccuiiiiiiiiitiii ettt (272) 306 34 (95)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS......... 1,148 (1,516) (368) 4,537
TrANSTEIS IN...iiiiiiii e e 1,652 1,652
Transfers out:

(95) (95)

Other..........c...... (895) (895) (2,039)
Capital contributions.... 6,160 6,160
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.... 1,148 5,306 6,454 2,498
TOTAL NET ASSETS

BEGINNING OF YEAR.......oiiiiiiiiieie ettt 27,585 14,479 42,300
TOTAL NET ASSETS

END OF YEAR.... .ottt $ 28,733 $ 19,785 $ 44,798

Adjustment to reflect consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds..............cccoooeeiienenn.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS-BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES....................

(1)

$A

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

33



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers
Other operating cash receipts
Cash payments to suppliers for

GO0AS AN SEIVICES. ... .eeiiiiiiieriere ettt
Cash payments to employees for services
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other funds...........ccooiiiiiiiii e
Transfer to other funds
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan-net....
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ...ttt

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt............ccooiiiiiiiiiiinii e
Receipts from capital grants
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on INVESIMENLS...........cocviiiiiiiii e
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES........ccccoineineieiene

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.........
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR...................

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR..

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-
Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
13,271 $ 4,553 $ 17,824 $ 321
9 16 25 74,734
(4,567) (3,989) (8,556) (32,735)
(6,494) (1,559) (8,053) (37,014)
2,219 979) 1,240 5,306
1,652 1,652
(990) (990) (2,039)
613 613 2,197
1,275 1,275 158
4,593 4,593
253 308 561
(853) (1,261) (2,114) (58)
(6,482) (6,482) (122)
(412) (412) (23)
(2,901) (953) (3,854) (203)
9 9
9 9
(673) (657) (1,330) 5,261
8,112 2,752 10,864 54,092
7,439 $ 2,095 $ 9,534 $ 59,353

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-
Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (JOSS).....c.vvrueueurrereeueueeaereeeeeneseeeeneneseeeeeeseneeeeeeseneneeeesenenes $ 1,420 $ (1,822) $ (402) $ 4,632
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Depreciation...........ccceevueiieienicienecceees 1,640 778 2,418 1,743
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable-net............ccceoiiriiiinii 9 (23) (14) 11
Due from other fUNAS..........cocciiviiiiiice e 33 33 (1,520)
Due from other governments.............. 33 33 2,336
Inventory of supplies (6) (6) (5)
Accounts payable (406) 47 (359) 130
Due to other funds (34) 2 (32) 244
Due to other governments.. (5) (5) 453
Accrued wages and benefits..........c..coeiviiininiii e 83 15 98 80
Special termination benefits.............cccooiiiiiiiie (488) (36) (524) (2,798)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 799 843 1,642 674
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES........... $ 2,219 $ (979) $ 1,240 $ 5,306
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contributions - capital @SSets............cccvurreeirreeierreee s $ $ 6,160 $ 6,160 $
Capital assets acquired through capital lease............ccceceviviininncncnnenne 135
TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS. $ 0 $ 6,160 $ 6,160 $ 135
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Agency Funds

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments............cccocevoeeninieivecnneen $ 215,573
Cash and investments-segregated accounts.............cc.cocevrenniennen. 47,021
TaXES MECEIVADIE......cci it e 1,378,238
TOTAL ASSETS......cccoicirirmsssssssssssssss e $ 1,640,832
LIABILITIES

Due to other governments..........ccooovevviiriene i $ 1,581,212
Other Iabilities......cveveeeieee e 59,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......ccoiiiriririssis s s snens $ 1,640,832

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE A - Description of Cuyahoga County and Basis of Presentation

The County: Cuyahoga County (the County) operates as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The
County was formed by an act of the Ohio General Assembly in 1810. The three member Board of County
Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In
addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in Ohio law.
These officials are Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. There
are also thirty-four Common Pleas Court Judges, five Domestic Relations Court Judges, six Juvenile Court Judges,
two Probate Court Judges and twelve Court of Appeals Judges elected on a County-wide basis to oversee the
County's justice system.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance or equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. The County uses the following fund types:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not
recorded elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use tax, property taxes, state local government
fund receipts, intergovernmental receipts and various service fees.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative
action. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and federal and state grant programs.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used to account for revenues received and used to pay principal and
interest on all long-term bonded debt except those payable from Enterprise funds. Revenues are derived primarily
from property taxes.

Capital Projects Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital assets
(other than those financed by Proprietary funds). Revenues and financing resources are derived from the issuance of
debt, transfers from the General and Special Revenue funds and capital grant programs.

Permanent Funds: Permanent funds are for the purpose of accounting for resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs. The County does not utilize permanent funds at this time.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services that are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for the goods or services provided by certain
County departments to other County departments and funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments, other funds and individuals. These assets include property and other taxes as well as other
intergovernmental resources that have been collected by the County and will be distributed to other taxing districts
located within the County.

Private-purpose Trust Funds: Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for other trust arrangements
which benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. For accounting measurement purposes, the

37



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

private-purpose trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. The County does
not utilize private-purpose trust funds at this time.

Other Fiduciary Funds: Other fiduciary funds include pension trust funds and investment trust funds. The
County does not utilize any such trust funds.

NOTE B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America for local government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Reporting Entity: Cuyahoga County is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The three member board
of County Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal
officer. In addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in
Ohio Law. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which Cuyahoga County is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements (see Discretely Presented Component
Unit below for description) to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County.

Discretely Presented Component Unit: In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units, the MetroHealth System (the Hospital or Component Unit) is included as a discretely presented Component
Unit in the County's basic financial statements. The Hospital provides health care and hospitalization to the general
public and care for the County’s indigents. The County appoints the majority of the Hospital's Board of Trustees. The
Hospital’s annual operating budget and investment policy are both approved by the County. The Component Unit is
included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationships with
the County. The financial information of the Hospital is presented in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the government. Furthermore, the MetroHealth Foundation (Foundation), which is a component unit of
the Hospital, is presented for the first time in 2005 in the Hospital’s financial statements, resulting in an increase in
beginning net assets of the Component Unit of $16.5 million. The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization
supporting the Hospital. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the resources
that are available to the Hospital in support of its programs. Although the Hospital does not control the timing or the
amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, which they hold and invest, are
restricted to support the activities of the Hospital. Complete financial statements for the Hospital can be requested
from the County Auditor.

Basic Financial Statements:  Financial information of the County is presented as a set of basic financial
statements in the following format:

Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities
of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. The policy of the County is to allocate indirect expenses to functions in
the statement of activities. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues. Internal service fund balances, whether positive or negative, have
been eliminated against the expenses and program revenue shown in the statement of activities.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements and the fiduciary funds. The County uses only agency
funds as fiduciary funds which have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year for which they are levied. State and local government fund shared revenues are recognized
when the provider government recognizes its liability to the County. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales and use taxes, other tax, state local government funds, licenses and permits and
interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within
the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
County, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Human Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and expenditures
used to provide entitlement services, senior and adult programs, children and family services and employment
services to eligible county residents.

Health and Human Services Levies accounts for revenues from Health and Human Services Levies.
Levies and expenditures are determined by policies of the Board of County Commissioners.

County Board of Mental Retardation accounts for revenues primarily from the State and the special
mental retardation levy and expenditures thereof that are used for the benefit of the mentally retarded and
developmentally disabled.

Health and Community Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and
expenditures thereof as prescribed under the various health and community service functions including mental health
and alcohol and drug programs.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Sanitary Engineer accounts for the maintenance operations of county sewer lines. The office also enforces
compliance of county sanitary regulations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
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County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The Hospital has elected to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants, contributions and interest
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise
funds and of the County’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap-in fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the
General fund, certain Special Revenue funds and the Debt Service fund. Major Special Revenue funds which are
budgeted annually include Human Services, Health and Human Services Levies, County Board of Mental Retardation
and Health and Community Services. The Motor Vehicle Gas Tax fund is a nonmajor special revenue fund which is
annually budgeted. The County Administrator prepares the budget, which is approved by the Board of County
Commissioners. The Office of Budget and Management prepares a separate budgetary report. The Board of County
Commissioners approves amendments to the original budget throughout the year as allowed by State statute. The
County maintains budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting expenditures/expenses
and encumbrances to exceed appropriations for personnel, capital purchases and other costs. Elected officials and
managers may amend the budget without approval of the County Commissioners as long as amendments are within
legal categories. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. Encumbrances are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered and reappropriated at the start of the
following year.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis). The accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances — budget and actual (non-GAAP budgetary basis), comparing budget to actual results of operations for the
General fund and all annually budgeted major special revenue funds, is presented to demonstrate the County’s
compliance with legally adopted budgets and reflects only budget revisions formally adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners. The Commissioners and their staff monitor the level of revenues and expenditures throughout the
year, and policy decisions are made based on the available current information. Formal revisions to previous
budgets may not be processed if actual results are within previously budgeted levels. Consequently, large variances
may appear on the budget and actual comparisons in the accompanying statements.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for certain grants (including Community
Development and Other funds) and the Capital Projects fund. Appropriations are made on a multi-year basis with the
free balance and encumbrances being reappropriated annually. The administrative control is on a grant/project basis
and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriated funds do not provide meaningful data. The County adopts
annual budgets for Proprietary funds, however, there is no legal requirement to report on compliance with such
budgets.
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The major differences between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budgetary) as opposed to being closed
to unreserved fund balance/fund net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the
following year (GAAP).

A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the budget basis follows:

Net Change in Fund Balances
(Amounts in 000's)
Health and County

Human Board of Health and
General Human Services Mental Community
Fund Services Levies Retardation Services
GAAP DaSIS......oceeiiciieiic e $ 7479 § $ 25943 $ 28,870 $ 12,718
Increase/decrease:
Accrued receivables at 12/31/05
not recognized in the 2005 budget..........ccccccee.. (131,312) (71,368) (205,068) (105,636) (24,275)
Accrued receivables at 12/31/04
recognized in the 2005 budget.........ccccceeeeeeinnennn. 137,006 82,630 207,359 91,287 25,938
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/05 not recognized in the 2005 budget......... 61,042 71,368 160,850 106,647 61,814
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/04 recognized in the 2005 budget............... (63,789) (82,630) (165,787) (90,272) (54,072)
Encumbrances at 12/31/05 recognized as
expenditures in the 2005 budget..........c.ccceveernene (22,597) (36,912) (7,239) (34,862)
Encumbrances at 12/31/04 not recognized as
expenditures in the 2005 budget...........ccccccoerueenee. 14,823 19,823 7,657 27,616
Other GAAP adjustments(1) 4,327 14,973 (14,362) (68)
BUAGEt basiS ........ovoveeeeeeeeeeee e $ 6979 $_(2,116) $ 23,297 $ 16,952 $ 14,809

(1) Change in the amount of short-term interfund loans by the General fund, unrealized loss on
investments, net expenses for the Brownfield project, Gateway debt and agency funds reclassified as cash
for financial reporting purposes.

Statement of Cash Flows: The County utilizes the direct method with respect to the statement of cash flows
as defined by the GASB Statement No. 9. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all
highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Investments: Cash resources of a majority of individual funds are combined to form a pool
of cash and investments, which is managed by the County Treasurer. Investments in the pooled cash and
investments accounts consist of U.S. Treasury Notes, Strips and other Federal Government securities, certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, corporate notes, revenue anticipation bonds and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Investments: The County accounts for its investments under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, which established
accounting and financial reporting standards for government investments and investment pools, requiring most
investments to be recorded at fair value and the recognition of unrealized gains and losses in the financial
statements. The County has the ability and intent to hold all investments to maturity. Interest on investments is
accrued as earned and distributed to appropriate funds utilizing a formula based on the average month-end balance
of cash and cash equivalents of appropriate funds. County policy requires interest earned on investments to be
credited to the General fund except where there is a legal requirement such as the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Special
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Revenue fund or where there are bond proceeds for capital improvements such as the Capital Projects fund. Fair
value is determined by quoted market prices.

Inventory of Supplies: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in first-out method)
or net realizable value. Costs are expensed when inventory is consumed for Proprietary funds and for the Discretely
Presented Component Unit. Costs are recognized as expenditures when inventory is purchased for Governmental
funds.

Restricted Assets: The primary government’s restricted assets are composed of the unspent proceeds of
certain borrowings that are restricted for use in specified economic development activities and capital projects, as
well as deposits and investments held at certain financial institutions throughout the County to support the County’s
Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.), which allows homeowners in County communities to borrow money
from participating financial institutions to repair or remodel their homes or rental property at below market interest
rates. Included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit column are restricted assets, consisting of investments
restricted by donors, and assets under the control of the bond trustee that are used for payment of principal and
interest on the Hospital’'s bonds when due. A portion of the Component Unit's restricted net assets has been
designated as nonexpendable due to restrictions set up in the Foundation. All other restricted net assets are deemed
expendable.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings, structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles and infrastructure assets (primarily bridges constructed and
maintained by the County), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements to the extent the County’s capitalization threshold is met. The County defines
capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of 4 years (3 years for the Component Unit) and an
individual cost of more than $9 thousand. Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date
contributed.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The valuation
bases for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital assets.

Cost for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. However, costs for repairs and upgradings
that materially add to the value or the useful life of an asset and meet the above criteria are capitalized.

The County and the Component Unit depreciate capital assets on a straight-line basis using the following
estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 5to 20 years
Utility plant 20 to 50 years
Buildings, structures and improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 22 years
Vehicles 4 to 9 years

Infrastructure 20 to 69 years

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on construction projects in the
proprietary funds until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is amortized on the straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the asset. During 2005, capitalized interest for the County and the Component Unit
was not material.

Compensated Absences: The County records accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime pay benefits
as accrued wages and benefits payable when earned by employees. For Governmental funds, the portion of the
liability, which is not currently due and payable, is not reported. In the government-wide financial statements and for
proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences (current and noncurrent) is reported as a liability. The
County utilizes the termination payments method to determine the liabilities for compensated absences as defined in
GASB Statement No. 16.

42



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Normally, all vacation
time is to be taken in the year available unless administrative approval for carry-over is obtained. Sick time not taken
may be accumulated until retirement. Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time at the employee’s current wage rate upon retirement up to a maximum of thirty days. Certain
agencies of the County that are not under the control of the Board of County Commissioners may have slightly
different policies for compensated absences.

Net Patient Service Revenue: Net patient service revenue of the Hospital is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. The Hospital's classification of patients under the Medicare and Medicaid programs and the
appropriateness of their admission are subject to an independent review by a peer review organization. Differences
between the estimated amounts accrued at interim and final settlements are reported in the Statement of Activities in
the year of settlement. The Hospital recorded a favorable adjustment of $4.2 million in 2005 due to prior year
retroactive adjustments to amounts previously estimated.

Net revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 25.3% and 32.9%,
respectively, of the Hospital’'s net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Compliance
with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
The Hospital believes that an adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for any adjustments that
may result from final settlements.

Charity Care: Throughout the admission, billing and collection processes, certain patients are identified by
the Hospital as qualifying for charity care. The Hospital provides care to these patients without charge or at amounts
less than its established rates. The charges foregone for charity care provided by the Hospital, totaling $160.1
million, represent 12.8% of gross charges in 2005, and are not reported as revenue. The Hospital accepts certain
indigent Ohio residents and all residents from the County regardless of their ability to pay.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting allows for the reservation of appropriations to provide for
purchase commitments pertaining to purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances are closed
to unreserved fund balance/unrestricted net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the
following year.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds including transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. Interfund transactions are
generally classified as transfers in the accompanying financial statements. Transfers out are further categorized as
transfers for debt retirement or other purposes. Transfers for debt retirement represent monies transferred to the
Debt Service fund. Other transfers represent all other transfers out.

Fund Balance: In the governmental fund financial statements, the County records reservations of portions of
fund balances that are legally segregated for specific future uses or do not represent available, spendable resources
and, therefore, cannot be appropriated for expenditures. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

Risk Management: The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues. Employees’ health insurance is provided primarily
through a commercial insurance program. The County pays a premium to the insurance providers without additional
risk to the County for all it's medical plans except for one medical plan and the prescription drug plan, which are self-
insured. Beginning in 2006, the County is self-insured for two medical plans and the prescription drug plan. The
County maintains an Internal Service fund to account for the self-insurance of workers’ compensation benefits
through a retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio. The County recognizes a liability for self-insured claims if
information prior to the issuance of the basic financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition,
the County has designated a portion of the fund balance of its General fund, pursuant to Ohio law, to provide for
claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies.
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Changes in Accounting Principles: During March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47 (FIN
47), Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143. FIN 47
clarifies that an entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if
the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The Hospital adopted the provisions of FIN 47 as of
December 31, 2005 for the Hospital obligations related to those portions of the asbestos abatement liability that are
considered imminent. At December 31, 2005, the Hospital recorded approximately $5.4 million as an asbestos
abatement liability. The amount of the asset and liability at the date the obligation was incurred in 1973 totaled $1.4
million. The amount of interest accretion and depreciation expense charged to net assets, as the cumulative
changes in accounting principle, for the year 1974 through 2005 totaled $5.2 million. The cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principle was recorded as a $5.2 million decrease in beginning net assets.

New Accounting Standards: During November 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets. Under provisions of this statement, a
capital asset is considered impaired when its service has declined significantly and unexpectedly. This statement
also clarifies and establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. The provisions of this statement are
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2004. The County and the Component Unit have
determined that Statement No. 42 has no impact on its reported financial condition and results of operations.

During August 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should
account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other nonpension
benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment benefits, or OPEB.
Statement No. 45 also establishes disclosure requirements for information about the plans in which an employer
participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation process and assumptions, and for certain employers,
the extent to which the plan has been funded over time. Statement No. 45 will not be effective for the County until the
year ending December 31, 2007, and as such, the County has not determined the impact that this statement will have
on its financial statements.

During December 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Legislation, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. This statement clarifies that a legally enforceable enabling legislation
restriction is one that a party external to government-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary — can
compel a government to honor. The Statement states that the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation restriction
should be reevaluated if any of the resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified
by the enabling legislation or if a government has other cause for reconsideration. Although the determination that a
particular restriction is not legally enforceable may cause a government to review the enforceability of other
restrictions, it should not necessarily lead a government to the same conclusion for all enabling legislation
restrictions. This Statement also specifies the accounting and financial reporting requirements if new enabling
legislation replaces existing enabling legislation or if legal enforceability is reevaluated. Finally, this Statement
requires governments to disclose the portion of total net assets that is restricted by enabling legislation. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for the County for the year ending December 31, 2006, and as such, the
County has not determined the impact, if any, that this statement will have on its financial statements.

During July 2005, the GASB issued Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits. Statement 47
provides accounting and reporting guidance for state and local governments that offer either voluntary termination
benefits (e.g., early retirement incentives) or involuntary termination benefits (i.e., severance). The significant
requirements of Statement 47 include the recognition in accrual basis financials as a liability and expense for
involuntary termination benefits when (1) a termination plan has been approved by those with the authority to commit
the government to the plan, (2) the plan has been communicated to employees, and (3) the amount can be
estimated. A liability and expense for voluntary termination benefits should be recognized when the offer is accepted
and the amount can be estimated. Statement 47 also requires employers to disclose a description of the termination
benefit arrangements, the cost of the termination benefits and the significant methods and assumptions used to
determine termination benefit liabilities. Statement 47 is effective for the County in 2006; as such, the County has not
determined the impact, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.
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NOTE C - Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments:

Pooled Cash and Investments: Certain monies of the General fund, certain Agency funds and the Hospital
are deposited and maintained in individual segregated bank accounts or invested in specifically segregated
investments. All other funds of the County are held in a common group of bank accounts and investments.
Collectively, these bank accounts and investments represent the Pooled Cash and Investments account. Amounts
reported as cash and investments for the segregated funds and the pooled funds principally consist of bank balances,
certificates of deposit, United States Treasury Notes, U.S. Agency obligations, municipal obligations of political
subdivisions of the State of Ohio and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Certain funds have made disbursements from the pooled cash account in excess of their individual equity in
the pooled cash account. These amounts are reported in the balance sheet — governmental funds and the statement
of net assets — proprietary funds as "Due to other funds" and are offset against the General fund’s equity in pooled
cash and investments.

A summary of the Pooled Cash and Investments account balance by fund type at December 31, 2005,

follows:
(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Due To Equity In
GNEIAI ettt nnnaes $ $ 111,418
Due From:

Special ReVENUE .........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e, 24,909

Capital Projects ........cccccceeevvieeieeceeeiiieeeeee e 11,208

ENterprise .......cccvvvveeiiiiciee e 628

Internal Service.........ccovvviiiiiiee e 4,236 (40,981)
Net General ... 70,437
Other major governmental ..............ccooceeeeeiiinneen. 182,268
Other governmental ...........ccccoeeiiiiiiiieiee e, 32,761
Major enterpriSe.........covevveiiiiieee e 7,439
Other enterprise.........oooviveiiiiiiie e 2,095
Internal Service.........oovviiiiiiieiee e 59,353
Total government-wide .........cccooevvieiiiiiiiiieieeeee, 354,353
AGENCY ..o 215,573
Total Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments ...... $ 569,926

Amounts due to other funds by Special Revenue funds will be paid from collection of reimbursements under
grant programs from the Federal and State governments. Amounts due to other funds by Capital Projects funds will
be paid primarily from the issuance of general obligation bonds. Amounts owed by the Enterprise funds will be paid
through increased Airport rental charges. Amounts owed by the Internal Service funds will be paid through collection
of charges for services.

Deposits and Investments:
Primary Government

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
$126.4 million and the bank balances were $106.3 million. Any differences between the account bank balances and
investments and the cash and investments recorded in the financial statements are due to normal reconciling items.
The pooled securities serve as collateral for all public deposits held by the banks, including the County's deposits.
The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) requires that the market value of securities held in the pool be at least equal to 105%
of the public deposits held by the banks. Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and
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loan associations located in Ohio. County policy is to utilize federally insured banks and savings institutions located
in the County.

All monies are deposited in the Cuyahoga County banks designated by the Board of County
Commissioners. Interim funds not needed for immediate expenditures are invested in interest bearing or non-interest
bearing accounts or invested pursuant to the Statement of Investment Policy adopted by the Cuyahoga County
Investment Advisory Committee.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure the County’s deposits might not be recovered. The
County’s bank deposits at December 31, 2005 totaled $106.3 million and were subject to the following categories of
custodial risk:

(Amounts in 000’s)

UNCOHAEraliZEA ... aeaeaeee $ 98,731
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution’s trust

department (O.R.C. 135.18) but not in the County’s name............... 5,011
Total amount subject to custodial risK.............ccoceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeees 103,742
Amount insured (FDIC INSUrANCE) .......ceeveiieiieeiiiie e 2,550
Total bank balanCes.............ccecovieiuieiiiieie et $ 106,292

Component Unit

Deposits: All monies are deposited to the Hospital's banks or trust companies designated by the Board of
Trustees. Funds not needed for immediate expenditure may be deposited in interest bearing or non-interest bearing
accounts or U.S. government obligations.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the Hospital’s deposits might not be recovered.
The Hospital’'s bank deposits at December 31, 2005 totaled $4.9 million and were subject to the following categories
of custodial risk:

(Amounts in 000’s)

Hospital Foundation Total
Uncollateralized ...........oeeeeeieeeiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s $ 3,921 $ 584 $ 4,505
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging
institution’s trust department, but not in the Hospital's name.... 77 - _ 77
Total amount subject to custodial risk............ccoeeeeeei. 3,998 584 4,582
AMOUNt INSUIEd.........ooooeiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 200 100 _300
Total bank balanCes.............cccocveeiiiieiiecece e $ 4,198 $ 684 $ 4,882

At December 31, 2005, the financial statement carrying amount of the Hospital’s deposits was $5 million.
The difference from the reported amount represents outstanding checks payable and normal reconciling items.

Primary Government

Investments: The County’s Statement of Investment Policy, approved by the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee, authorizes investment by the County in investments permitted under the ORC. Eligible investments
include U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Strips, backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government, obligations of
U.S. government agencies, commercial paper, bankers acceptances, obligations of political subdivisions of the State
of Ohio, certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts in an eligible institution defined in the ORC, State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool, corporate notes, shares in open-end no-load money market mutual funds registered
under the Federal Investment Act of 1940 and repurchase agreements. Ohio statute prohibits the use of reverse
repurchase agreements. County investment policy restricts repurchase agreements to durations of 30 days or less
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and all investments to maturities of not more than 5 years. In January 2006, the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee voted to revise the County’s Investment Policy to include foreign notes as an eligible investment. The
notes must be rated at the time of purchase in the three highest categories by two nationally recognized standard
rating services. All interest and principal shall be denominated and payable in United States funds. The notes must
be backed by the full faith and credit of the foreign nation and there can be no prior history of default. The maturity of
foreign notes cannot exceed five years from purchase and in total, they cannot exceed one percent of the County’s
total average portfolio.

At December 31, 2005, the fair value of the Primary Government investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Fair Value/Carrying Value
Repurchase Agreements ...........coooiiiiiiieiiiie e $ 60,200
U. S. Treasuries.......cccccceeeviveeennnenn. 5,953
U.S. Government Agencies 447,681
Corporate NOES.......ueii et e e e e enaeeeeas 5,033
Municipal Obligations...........ociiiiiiiee s 1,200
Total Primary Government Investments ............ccoocceeeviiieenieeeciee e $ 520,067

Interest Rate Risk. The ORC and the County’s Statement of Investment Policy limits the purchase of
securities to a stated maturity of no more than 5 years from the date of purchase unless the security is matched to a
specific obligation or debt of the County. The purchase of any security with a maturity of greater than 5 years must
be approved in advance by the Investment Advisory Committee.

At December 31, 2005, the County’s investments had maturities as follows:

Maturities Percentage
Less than 1 year ..o 48.38%
T 1O 5 YEAIS i 51.62%

Further, the Statement of Investment Policy specifies that the portfolio be structured to diversify investments to
reduce the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific
type of investment. Each investment type is limited to a maximum percentage of the total average portfolio.

Credit Risk. The ORC and the County’s Statement of Investment Policy govern the minimum investment
rating for each type of eligible investment security. Commercial Paper and Banker's Acceptances must have a
minimum rating of “A-1” or “AA”.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The County has implemented several controls to mitigate custodial risk. All security
transactions are executed on a delivery versus payment basis. All securities are delivered to the County’s custodian
bank before payment is made to the broker dealer for the security. Securities delivered to the custodian are held in
the name of the County. If market conditions or liquidity needs require the sale of a security, the County will identify
securities for sale that mitigate the amount of market loss. With repurchase agreements, the County requires that the
counterparty deliver securities with a market value at least equal to 102% of the purchase price of the securities. If
the counterparty fails to repurchase the securities per the terms of the agreement, the County reserves the right to
sell the securities in the market.
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Component Unit

At December 31, 2005, fair value of the County’s Component Unit investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Fair Value/Carrying Value
Hospital Foundation Total

Cash and iNVESMENTS ........cc.ceeoeeieiiiee e $ 85,686 $ $ 85,686
U.S. Government AGENCIES ......cccoceeeerieeeenieeeeiieee e 173,580 173,580
Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Federal Pools)...... 7,988 7,988
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 1,064 1,064
COrporates .......cccveeeeeeeeeieeeeesieeesieeeens 4,195 4,195
Mutual Funds .......... 5,155 5,155
Common Stock 12,667 12,667
Premier Purchasing Partners, L.P. .. 723 723
Total INVEStMENES ........ceoviiiieiicececeeee e $ 272,513 $ 18,54 $ 291,058

Interest Rate Risk. The Hospital's investment policies limit investment portfolio to maturities of five years or
less. All of the Hospital's investments at December 31, 2005 have effective maturity dates of less than five years.

Credit Risk. All of the Hospital’s investments are rated “AAA” by Standard and Poor’'s. The Hospital's
investment policies are governed by State of Ohio statutes that authorize the Hospital to invest in U.S. government
obligations and “AAA” rated corporate bonds. The Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and Federal Mortgage pools
are investments that are grandfathered from previous statutes that allowed such investments. These investments
have an effective maturity date of less than one year.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Hospital will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Of the Hospital's investments, only the repurchase agreements are exposed to
custodial risk. Repurchase agreements (included in the U. S. Government Agencies) at December 31, 2005 totaling
$23.5 million are uninsured, are not registered in the Hospital's name and are held by the financial institution’s trust
department.
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NOTE D - Interfund Receivables and Payables
Individual interfund receivable and payable balances as of December 31, 2005 follow:

(Amounts in 000's)

Interfund Interfund

Fund Types Receivables Payables
Governmental Funds:

GeNEral FUNG ... $ 40,981 $ 3,307

HUMAN SEIVICES .....ovveeiieeeeeeeeee e 51,879

Health and Human Services Levies..........ccceeveeunnnneen. 42 977

County Board of Mental Retardation .......................... 1,038

Health and Community Services ..........cccccvveeeeeennns 18,323

Other governmental funds ..........cccoocieeeiiiiiiiiieccee, 11,627
Total Governmental FUNdS ..........ccoooeviiiieiiiiiiieiiiieeeeees 83,958 86,174
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Funds:

Sanitary ENgiNeer.........ccooviiiiiiii i 263

Other enterprise funds...........ccoooiiiiiiii i 13 652
Total Enterprise FUNAS.........ccoiiiiiiiiieic e 13 915
Internal Service FUNAS: ..........covvvieeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 8,387 5,269
1] =1 £, $ 92,358 $ 92,358
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A summary of interfund receivables/payables of the General fund follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Fund Types Receivables Payables

Major Governmental Funds:

HUMaN ServiCes ... $ 24,909 $
Total Major Governmental Funds ...........cccccooeiiiieeeeennns 24,909

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Capital Project..........cccveeiieeee e 11,208
Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds...........c.ccccceeeieeenne 11,208

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

County AIrPOrt ... 628

Cuyahoga County Information System...................... - 10
Total Nonmajor Enterprise Funds............ccccccoecviieeieeninn, 628 10
Internal Service Funds:

Maintenance Garage ...........oocceeeeivieeeenieee e 730 31

Data Processing Center .........ccccvveereeieeesiiee e 3,062

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies ..........cccccceeenee 444 249

CommuUNICAtIONS.......co i 137

Self-Funded Workers Compensation..............cccccc..... 2,880
Total Internal Service FUNAS ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 4,236 3,297
OIS ettt $ 40981 $ 3,307

The receivables represent amounts overdrawn from the pooled cash account which are owed to the General
fund.

The amount payable to the Cuyahoga County Information System is for computer charges from various
General fund agencies. The amounts payable to Internal Service funds represent unpaid charges at December 31,
2005.
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NOTE E - Capital Assets
A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Governmental Activities: 2005 Additions Deductions 2005
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
[ =T T IO PSSP $ 44,535 $ 8,424 $ $ 52,959
Construction iN Progress. ......cooouveeeaieieeeeieiieeeeeieee e 41,480 25,796 15,822 51,454
Total capital assets, not being depreciated..............cccccoec... 86,015 34,220 15,822 104,413
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements.........ccociiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 12,323 945 13,268
Buildings, structures and improvements . 540,912 24,470 32 565,350
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.............ccccceiviieeiinneen. 50,008 1,608 808 50,808
VENICIES ..ot 15,472 1,452 585 16,339
Infrastructure 440,205 4,235 444,440
Total capital assets, being depreciated...............ccccoeevveinnis 1,058,920 32,710 1,425 1,090,205
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements.........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 1,838 614 2,452
Buildings, structures and improvements .. 235,633 18,050 32 253,651
Furniture, fixtures and equipment..........ccccccceveveiiiieieninn, 36,089 2,888 714 38,263
Vehicles 11,437 1,144 585 11,996
Infrastructure 240,604 12,698 253,302
Total accumulated depreciation 525,601 35,394 1,331 559,664
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 533,319 (2,684) 94 530,541
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 619,334 $ 31,536 $ 15,916 $ 634,954
(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Business-type Activities: 2005 Additions Deductions 2005
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
$ 5752 $ 2,001 $ $ 7,753
Construction in progress 1,170 1,591 821 1,940
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 6,922 3,592 821 9,693
Capital assets, being depreciated:......... .
Land improvements............... . 10,850 44 182 10,712
Utility plant 53,633 53,633
Buildings, structures and improvements.... 14,766 4,983 19,749
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,503 185 106 2,582
Vehicles 3,948 347 77 4,218
Total capital assets, being depreciated..............ccoeceereeenen. 85,700 5,559 365 90,894
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 8,192 286 179 8,299
Utility plant 26,994 988 27,982
Buildings, structures and improvements 8,024 721 8,745
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,260 67 96 2,231
VENICIES. ...t 2,987 356 78 3,265
Total accumulated depreciation... 48,457 2,418 353 50,522
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net. 37,243 3,141 12 40,372
Business-type activities capital assets, net. $ 44165 $ 6,733 $ 833 $ 50,065
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(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

Component Unit: 2005 Additions Deductions 2005
Capital assets, not being depreciated:...............ccccoceees

Land......coooeiiiiiiee e . % 9,634 $ $ 257 9,377

Construction in progress...........cccocevene .. 11,093 34,615 31,744 13,964
Total capital assets, not being depreciated. 20,727 34,615 32,001 23,341
Capital assets, being depreciated:...........cccccevvieviiiiiiinnens

Land improvements. ..........coooeiriiiiieiee e 7,829 119 145 7,803

Buildings, structures and improvements.. .. 445,697 27,315 4,681 468,331

Furniture, fixtures and equipment...........ccccoocoeiiiiiiennnes 213,309 12,783 8,440 217,652

VENICIES. ... 9,728 508 168 10,068
Total capital assets, being depreciated.............cccocevviiniennns 676,563 40,725 13,434 703,854
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements. ..........coooieiieiiiiie e 6,860 179 145 6,894

Buildings, structures and improvements.. 265,162 16,758 3,511 278,409

Furniture, fixtures and equipment......... . 171,359 11,773 8,390 174,742

VERICIES. ..ot 2,758 1,299 168 3,889
Total accumulated depreciation............ccccocoveiiiiiiiiiiieeenns 446,139 30,009 12,214 463,934
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net... 230,424 10,716 1,220 239,920
Component unit capital assets, net.............cccccociiiiiiiens $ 251,151 $ 45331 $ 33,221 263,261

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government in 2005 as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General governmMEeNt.........coooi i

(Amounts in 000’s)

[T | o7 = | PPN
Development..... ..o
SOCIAl SEIVICES......eviiiiiiee e e
Health and safety..........ccoiiiiiii e
PUblic WOrKS....cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee

Capital assets held by the government’s internal
service funds are charged to the various functions

based on their usage of the assets...........ccocccveeiiiiiiiiins

Total depreciation expenses charged to

governmental activities. ... $

Business-type Activities:

Sanitary ENgINEEr........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiee e $
(07010101 4 V20 AN oo o SR

Huntington Park Garage............ccccooviiiiiiiieciiiiee e

Cuyahoga County Information System.............cccoceeiiiinenne

Total depreciation expenses charged to

business-type activities. ... $

3,213
11,387
4
5,824
157
13,066

1,743

35,394

1,640
360
412

2,418
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A summary of construction commitments for governmental activities at December 31, 2005 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Function Amount December 31, 2005 Commitments
General gOVEIMMENL........ccuieiiieiieee e seee e e e e e $ 14,640 $ 7373 $ 7,267
JUAICIAL. ..o s 42,366 26,635 15,731
SOCIAI SEIVICES....oii ittt e 1,254 633 621
PUDBIC WOTKS.....cveiiieeeee e 34,629 16,813 17,816
TOtAIS ..ttt nes $ 92,889 $ 51,454 $ 41,435

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through bonded debt.

A summary of construction commitment for business-type activities at December 31, 2005 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Business-type Activity Amount December 31, 2005 Commitments
Sanitary ENgiNEer.........cccoiiiiiiieiiiieeee e $ 2,955 $ 1,407 $ 1,548
ATTPOT. . 877 533 344
TOtAIS. ... $ 3,832 $ 1,940 $ 1,892

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through special
assessments and grants.

The Hospital has future contractual commitments for the construction of various projects totaling
$12.7 million. The projects are being funded with operating funds.
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NOTE F - Debt and Other Obligations

Notes Payable and Long-Term Liabilities:

A summary of the County’s notes payable and long-term liabilities at December 31, 2005 is provided below:

(Amounts in 000's)

Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligation, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions  December 31 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absence: $ 22,410 $ 41,333 $ 39,881 $ 23,862 $ 2,386
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007 7.75%-8.00% 35,098 1,273 18,482 17,889 15,489
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2029. 25,100 1,645 23,555 1,694
2003 Installment Purchase Agreement-Due thru 2010, [$13,742] 3.72%-3.87% 9,808 1,927 7,881 1,693
Loans Payable:
1989 Environmental Protection Agency-Due thru 2007, [$494] None 54 27 27 27
1997 Ohio Department of Development Loan
- Due thru 2016, [$5,000] None 3,000 250 2,750 250
2005 Ohio Department of Transportation Loan-Due thru 2013, [2,975].........ccccevrivnnieriiennin 0%-3% 2,975 2,975
Total Loans Payable. 3,054 2,975 277 5,752 277
General Obligation Bonds-Unvoted:
1993 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-Due thru 2012, [$75,395] 2.20%-5.25% 25,150 3,610 21,540 3,795
1993 Rock and Roll Hall of Fame-Due thru 2018, [$12,000] 2.75%-5.65% 8,495 415 8,080 440
1995 Various Purpose Improvements-Due thru 2015, [$35,145] 3.75%-5.50% 15,975 15,975
2000 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2020, [$96,615] 4.30%-5.75% 84,230 63,670 20,560 3,750
2004 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2024, [$84,490]. 2.50%-5.25% 84,490 2,575 81,915 3,475
2005 General Obligation (limited tax) Refunding Bonds-due thru 2020, [$73,970]...........cccooeeuun 3.00%-5.00% 73,970 100 73,870 1,000
Total General Obligation Bonds-Unvoted. 218,340 73,970 86,345 205,965 12,460
General Obligation Bonds-Voted:
1991 Jail Il Series - Due thru 2006, [$5,086] 6.95%-7.05% 3,616 1,819 1,697 1,697
1993 Jail Facilities and Various Purpose Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2013, [$65,254] 2.20%-5.25% 19,589 2,390 17,199 2,510
Total General Obligation Bonds-Voted 23,105 4,209 18,896 4,207
Total Tax Supported Bond 241,445 73.970 90,554 224,861 16,667
Revenue Bonds:
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022, [$35,000].. 8.625% 35,000 35,000
1994 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2023, [$45,000].. 4.45%-7.60% 33,080 1,635 31,445 1,745
2000 Shaker Square Redevelopment-Due thru 2030, [$2,855] 6.886% 2,825 10 2,815 10
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series 2004A Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2011 [$10,750] 1.50%-4.25% 10,750 1,415 9,335 1,440
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series 2004B Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2022 [$19,200] Variable 19,200 19,200
2004 Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Project Refunding Bonds
Series 2004C -Due thru 2018 [$12,880] 1.50%-5.10% 12,880 725 12,155 740
Total Revenue Bond: 113,735 3,785 109,950 3,935
Bond premium/discount related to various issues-net 5,988 6,317 584 11,721
Total Bonds Payable 361,168 80,287 94,923 346,532 20,602
Internal Service Funds:
Compensated Absence: 2,005 2,368 2,323 2,050 205
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007. 7.75% 5,396 2,798 2,598 2,276
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2009. 463 135 123 475 134
Total Internal Service Fund: 7,864 2,503 5,244 5123 2,615
Total Governmental Activitie: $ 464,502 $ 128,371 § 162,279 $ 430,594 $ 44,756
(CONTINUED)
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(Amounts in 000's)
Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligation, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year
Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absence: $ 401_$ 588 _$ 515 $ 474 $ 47
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007 7.75% 1,050 524 526 440
Various Loans Payable-Due thru 2025, 4.04% - 7.00% 4,729 307 342 4,694 357
Bond Anticipation Notes:
2002 Olmsted Township Water and Sewer-Due in 2005 [$5,950]...........cvemrrrrnereerirrisnmseeserssennns 2.50% 5,950 5,950
Total Notes Payable. 5,950 5,950
Self-Supporting Bonds Payable:
2000 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2020, [$1,040] 4.55%-5.55% 905 40 865 40
2003 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2012 [$1,500] 2.00%-3.55% 1,345 150 1,195 160
2005 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2025 [$4,445] 2.00%-3.55% 4,445 4,445 160
Total Self-Supporting Bonds Payable. 2,250 4,445 190 6,505 360
Total Business-type Activiites $ 14,380 $ 5,340 $ 7,521 $ 12,199 $ 1,204
Component Unit
Compensated absence: $ 25,153 $ 3,857 $ 2852 $ 26,158 $ 2,938
Amounts due third party payors (See Note B). 41,435 5,784 3,343 43,876 8,185
Claims payable (See Note J) 45,774 12,593 11,676 46,691 21,989
Asset Retirement obligations (See Note B). 5,161 550 5,711 1,434
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2009. 4.958%-4.96% 2,294 218 859 1,653 763
2004 Cuyahoga County Sanitary Engineer Loan -Due thru 2018. None 91 7 84 6
2003 General and Professional Liability Note -Due in 2006 3.75% 4,576 5,750 5,980 4,346 4,346
Various Notes Payable-Due thru 2010 3.96% 296 204 119 381 80
Bonds:
1997 Hospital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds-Due Thru 2027, [$70,000] 3.90%-5.80% 46,634 179 4,615 42,198 4,825
1997 Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2019, [$77,525] 4.10%-5.50% 68,572 306 265 68,613 275
1999 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2029, [$56,995] 6.125%-6.15% 56,814 56,814
2003 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2033, [$30,545] Variable 30,010 580 29,430 600
2005 Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2035, [$74,535] Variable 74,535 5,087 69,448 305
Total Bonds 202,030 75,020 67,361 209,689 6,005
Total Component Unit (See Note B) $ 326,810 § 103,976 $ 92,197 § 338,589 $ 45,746

Capital Lease Information: The following summarizes future minimum lease payments under the capital
leases, and the present values of net minimum lease payments for the Primary Government at December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)
Governmental Internal Service
Year Activities funds

$ 3,728 §$ 156

3,756 156

3,796 130

3,824 77
3,858
P I e O T OO OO PPPPPRPPPRN 12,330
2016-2020... 3,133
2021-2025... 68
2026-2029 46

Total Minimum Lease Payments.... 34,539 519

Amount Representing Interest (10,984) (44)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments.........ccccccviiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiceeee, $ 23,555 §$ 475

55



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

The following summarizes future minimum payments and the present values of net minimum lease
payments for the Component Unit's equipment capital leases and loan obligation at December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)
Lease and Loan Obligation
Component Unit

832
832
53
53
7
33
20

Total Minimum Lease Payments. ... 1,830

Amount Representing INterest...... ..o (93)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments.........cccccooociiiiiieiiiiiiiee e $ 1,737

As of December 31, 2005, the net book value of capital leases which include land, buildings, structures and
improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment was $6.1 million, $39.2 million and $.5 million respectively.
Component Unit's capital lease net book value which includes furniture, fixtures and equipment and vehicles was
$3.3 million and $4.1 million, respectively.

Future Debt Service Requirements: A summary of the County’s future debt service requirements for its
outstanding long-term bonds, installment purchase agreement and loans payable at December 31, 2005 are as
follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Governmental Activities

General Obligation Revenue

Bonds Bonds
Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 16,667 $ 13,940 $ 3935 §$ 6,913
19,380 10,115 4,110 6,726
15,314 14,157 4,330 6,516
15,867 13,597 4,550 6,283
15,686 12,968 4,805 6,027
61,952 44,709 28,365 25,746
59,735 14,121 35,355 15,131
20,260 2,357 23,870 2,883
630 122
$ 224,861 $ 125,964 $ 109,950 $ 76,347

(Amounts in 000's)
Installment Purchase Loans
Agreement Payable

Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 1693 § 307 § 217 §
2007 1,920 232 250
2008 1,999 154 584 177
2009 2,080 73 594 76
2010 189 5 605 66
2011-2015 3,192 164
2016 250
Totals $ 7881 § 771§ 5752 % 483
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(Amounts in 000's)
Total Governmental
Activities

Due In Principal Interest
2006........ctii e bbbttt $ 22,572 § 21,160
2007 .t bRt h et E e E bttt bt ettt 25,660 17,073
2008......ceteet ettt bkttt b et b b e bbbttt n et 22,227 21,004
2009...... etttk t bbbt h bbbttt ettt 23,091 20,029
20701ttt b Eeh et h ettt n e 21,285 19,066
20711220715, .ttt 93,509 70,619
2016-2020........cuiiiitiiieiet bbb 95,340 29,252
20271-2025.......ocuiieiieee e 44,130 5,240
2026-2030.......eeueete ettt E ettt bttt 630 122
TORAIS. ...t bbb $ 348444  $ 203,565

(Amounts in 000's)
Business-type Activities
Various Loans Bonds
Payable Payable

Principal Interest Principal Interest

357 § 144§ 360 $ 250

367 134 365 239

377 124 380 229

388 113 385 216

399 102 405 203

1,961 329 1,630 806

2016-2020 757 60 1,545 495
2021-2025 88 8 1,435 177
TOTAIS ..ttt $.. 4694 $ 1,014 $ 6505 $ 2,615

(Amounts in 000’s)

Due In Total Business-type Activities
Principal Interest
2006t b b e e $ 77 3% 394
2007..... 732 373
2008..... 757 353
20009..... 773 329
2010..... 804 305
2011-2015.... 3,591 1,135
2016-2020.... 2,302 555
2021-2025.... 1,523 185
TORAIS ..ttt bbb bttt bbbttt $ 11,199  $ 3,629

In May 2003, the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $10 million from
the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT). The money is provided through the state infrastructure bank fund,
which are federal funds, to be used to improve a road and reconstruct a bridge. The loan carries a 0% interest rate
for the first 12 months and a 3% rate thereafter, for 10 years. The County pledged its motor vehicle license tax as the
source of repayment. State Issue Il and ODOT monies were used first for this project and when funding was
exhausted the loan was exercised for this purpose. During 2005, the County received approximately $3 million from
ODOT and has recorded a liability in the Government-wide statements.

In January 2005, the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $2.6 million
from the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) on a taxable basis and in turn, loaning the funds
received from Fannie Mae to private developers for the purpose of constructing housing projects. As security for
repayment of the borrowing, the County will pledge loan repayments from the private developers, non-tax revenues
and provide collateral in the form of cash or a letter of credit equal to 25% of the principal amount of the borrowing.
Borrowing must be repaid in full within three to five years with periodic principal and interest payments to be made
during the term of the borrowing. The County has not received nor loaned any of this funding through the date of this
audit.
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During 2005, the Hospital entered into an agreement with a bank for a demand line of credit with a maximum
amount available of $20 million. The contract interest rate is .90% per annum plus one month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR). For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Hospital did not have an outstanding balance on
the line of credit and the Hospital did not access the credit line during the course of the year.

At December 31, 2005, the bonded debt service requirements of the Component Unit are as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Hospital Revenue Bonds
Component Unit

Due In Principal Interest
00 TSRS $ 6,005 $ 6,146
2007 ettt et A Rt R et R et R ARt R et ee et et R et r et e st eneteneete e nnen 6,300 5,886
2008...... ettt Ao h et R et Rt E ARt R et es et et e st et r et e s et s ereneenentenen 6,600 5,618
20009..... 6,920 5,322
2010...c.ceune. 7,280 4,996
2011-2015.... 42,435 19,463
2016-2020.... 49,680 8,783
2021-2025.... 41,520 2,939
2026-2030.... 38,355 287
2031-2035.... 17,835
TORAL ettt b ettt 222930 $ 59,440
Unamortized difference between reacquisition

price and the net carrying amount of

previously defeased debt....... (11,801)
Unamortized discount............cccceeevvveeieennnnes (1,440)
Present value of net minimum payments...........cc.ooeeiierieieeeee e $ 209,689

(Amounts in 000's)
Foundation Notes Payable
Component Unit

Due In Principal Interest
$ 80 $ 14

80 11

80 8

80 5

61 2

L1 5=1 =P P PP PPUPPIE $ 381 $ 40

Component Unit Swap Agreements: The Component Unit entered into various interest rate swap
agreements with a total outstanding notional amount of $104 million. The Hospital’s objectives of its derivative
instruments include managing the risk of increased debt service resulting from rising market interest rates, the risk of
decreased surplus returns resulting from falling interest rates and the management of the risk of an increase in the
fair value of the outstanding fixed rate obligations resulting from declining market interest rates. The fair value of the
swap agreements based on current settlement prices at December 31, 2005 was $2.4 million. Such amounts are due
from the counterparties and are included in other assets. In 2005, the fair value increase of $1 million was recorded
as unrealized gains on investment. As a result of the agreements, the Hospital incurred additional interest expense
of $ .1 million for 2005.

On July 28, 2005, the Hospital entered into a swap agreement with an amortizing notional amount of $74.5
million. The notional amount is based on the Series 2005 Bond principal repayment schedule that ends in 2035. Per
the agreement, the Hospital pays a fixed rate of 3.3% and the counterparty pays 70% of the 3 month USD LIBOR.
2005 LIBOR rates ranged between 2.4% and 4.4%. The net amount is exchanged monthly between the two parties.
The Hospital has an early termination option.
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On May 14, 2003, the Hospital entered into a twenty-one month swap agreement with a fixed notional
amount of $56 million. The agreement ended on February 15, 2005. The Hospital paid a fixed rate of 1.5% and the
counterparty paid a floating rate equal to the Bond Market Association Municipal Index (BMA Swap Index), an index
of seven-day high-grade tax-exempt variable rate demand obligations. During the agreement, BMA index rates
ranged between .7% and 2%.

On March 13, 2003, the Hospital entered into a swap agreement with an amortizing notional amount of
$30.5 million. The amortizing notional amount is based on the Series 2003 Bond principal repayment schedule
ending on March 1, 2033. Per the agreement, the Hospital pays a fixed rate of 3.5% and the counterparty pays 75%
of the USD LIBOR rate. Net settlement amounts are exchanged monthly. The Hospital has the option to terminate
the agreement prior to the February 2035 expiration date.

On September 1, 1999, the Hospital entered into a swap agreement with a fixed notional amount of $56
million. On February 15, 2005, the agreement ended when the counterparty exercised its early termination option.
The agreement was originally scheduled to terminate on February 15, 2014. Per the agreement, the Hospital paid
the BMA Swap Index rate and the counterparty paid a fixed interest rate of 5.4%. During the agreement, the BMA
index rates ranged between .7% and 5.8%.

Long-Term Bonds: All long-term general obligation bonded debt of the Primary Government is retired from
the Debt Service fund, except bonds payable from Enterprise funds which will be paid from cash flows generated by
these funds. General obligation bonds are secured by the County’s ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax
within limitations of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds, except revenue bonds, are secured by an unvoted property tax
levy; however, each bond indenture provides for principal and interest to also be paid from user charges. The
revenue bonds are secured by non-tax revenue of the County.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$108.6 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Accrued Wages and Benefits: County employees become eligible to receive one-fourth of their accumulated
unpaid sick leave upon retirement after a minimum of ten years of service. Certain agencies may have policies that
vary with regard to payment of accrued sick leave upon retirement. Termination of employment must be by
retirement to receive accumulated unpaid sick leave. Employees with a minimum of one year of service become
vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Vacation time may not be accumulated for more than three years.
Unused vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. In general, employees are eligible to be paid for
unpaid overtime and unused compensatory time upon termination of employment. All sick, vacation, compensatory
and overtime payments are made at the employee's current wage rate. Balances for compensated absences are
kept at various department levels, therefore, the data is only combined annually for reporting purposes. Since data
for increases and decreases in compensated absences is not available, amounts are estimated based on sample
data.

Payments for compensated absences are made from the following major funds: The General fund, Human
Services, County Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services and the following non-major funds:
Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, Community Development and Other.

The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $25.9 million
liability recorded in the statement of net assets (Governmental Activities) at December 31, 2005 was based were as
follows:

Amount

Governmental Activities Hours (in 000's)
SHCK ..ttt ettt ettt bt et et e ettt ettt ettt et et et b e es 27,447 % 543
Vacation.. 1,181,623 23,395
Overtime.. 99,687 1,974
L] = OO 1,308,757 $ 25,912
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The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $.5 million liability
recorded in the statement of net assets (Business-type Activities) at December 31, 2005 was based were as follows:

Amount

Business-type Activities Hours (in 000's)
SHCK 1ttt ettt bttt et e e bRt R e Rt R £ eR e et oAb e ARt ARt eReeRe R e en e ent et e ebentene e e ennennan 543 $ 12
Vacation... 20,301 443
Overtime.. 871 19
TOAL et ettt ettt et ettt et et e et e et e et et ea e et et e sae et et e e e eeeaenaas 21,715 $ 474

Special Termination Benefits: In May 2001, the Board of County Commissioners authorized the purchase of
additional service credit (equal to 20% of accumulated service time up to a maximum of 5 years) under OPERS (see
Note G) for certain employees close to retirement as an incentive to retire early. The Early Retirement Incentive
Program (ERIP) was approved for participating departments and agencies of the County by agreement with the
County Commissioners. Eligible employees had until June 30, 2002 to elect to participate in the program. As of June
30, 2002, 1,127 employees had accepted the program resulting in a total cost of $101.3 million payable to OPERS.
In addition, the County Board of Mental Retardation (CBMR) adopted an ERIP plan in 2005. CBMR will purchase up
to 2 years of service credit for eligible employees to be paid over a period of 2 years for employees in both OPERS
and STRS Ohio. As of December 31, 2005, 23 employees agreed to participate at a cost of $1.3 million and an
outstanding liability of $.5 million.

Payments for special termination benefits are made from the following major funds: The General fund,
Human Services, County Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services and the following non-major
funds: Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, and Other.

Payments are made to OPERS in quarterly installments over the life of the purchased service credit. The
following summarizes the future payment requirements to fund the cost of the special termination benefits for the
employees who had elected to participate in the plan at December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental Business-type
Year Activities Activities
2006..... $ 18,800 $ 467
2007..... 2,779 88
Total Termination Benefit Payments... 21,579 555
Amount Representing INterest...... ... (1,092) (29)
INEE AMIOUNT. ... ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaaeeaenaaas $ 20,487 $ 526

Advance Refunding of General Obligation Bonds: On March 19, 1993, the County issued general obligation
bonds amounting to $140.7 million with interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.25%. The issues consisted of voted and
unvoted refunding debt as well as new voted debt. The unvoted refunding debt amounted to $75.4 million, the voted
refunding debt amounted to $49.4 million and the additional voted debt amounted to $15.9 million. The refunding
debt proceeds were used to advance refund outstanding debt of $115.6 million which consisted of $49.6 million and
$66 million of voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The County advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt
service payments over the next 20 years by $1.5 million and $2.9 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively,
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $1.2 million and $2.2 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The aggregate amount of the
defeased General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2005 was $21.4 million. The remaining proceeds
from the issuance were used to fund various capital projects.

The County issued $74 million of General Obligation (limited tax) Refunding Bonds dated April 21, 2005 to
advance refund a portion of the County’s $35.1 million General Obligation (limited tax) Various Purpose Improvement
Bonds, Series 1995, and advance refund a portion of the County’s $96.6 million General Obligation (limited tax)
Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2000. The proceeds of the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were used to advance
refund $13.3 million of the Series 1995 bonds that are callable in November 2005 and $60.1 million of the Series
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2000 bonds that are callable in December 2010. The non-callable portion of the refunded bonds, which total $26.8
million, remained outstanding at the time the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were issued. The County advance
refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt service payments by $3.3 million and to obtain an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $3.1 million. The
aggregate amount of deferred General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2005 was $60.1 million.

Advance Refunding of Component Unit Bonds: Effective February 1, 1997, the County issued $70 million of
Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1997. The proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were
used to advance refund $20.9 million of Series 1989 Bonds scheduled to mature on February 15, 2007; to advance
refund $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $2.7 million of the Series 1989 Bonds stated to mature on February 15, 1999,
February 15, 2000 and February 15, 2001, respectively; to finance the construction of various improvements and
additions to the MetroHealth Medical Center; and to pay costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

Effective November 1, 1997, the County issued $77.5 million of Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1997A. The proceeds of the Series 1997A Bonds were used to advance refund $73.7 million of Series 1989 Bonds
scheduled to mature on February 15, 2019. The 1997 refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $9.8 million. This unamortized difference ($6.7 million at
December 31, 2005) is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from long-term debt and is
being charged to operations through the year 2019 using the effective interest method.

Effective September 1, 1999, the County issued $57 million of Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 1999 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series 1999 Bonds are
being used to finance the construction of a 150-bed long-term care facility and acquire, construct, renovate, equip
and improve operating rooms and other hospital facilities. On July 28, 2005 a portion of the proceeds from the 2005
Series Bond issue was placed in escrow to advance refund the outstanding Series 1999 Bonds.

Effective March 13, 2003, the County issued $30.5 million of Hospital Improvement Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2003 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series
2003 Bonds are being used to pay costs of constructing and equipping an administrative building and the Critical
Care Pavilion. The bonds bear interest at a variable rate (not to exceed 10%) determined weekly as established by
the Remarketing Agent based on current market values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates until
2033. The rate at December 31, 2005 was 3.6%.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Hospital entered into a Reimbursement
Agreement with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the Hospital entered into an Irrevocable
Letter of Credit (Letter of Credit) issued by a local bank that expires on March 22, 2008. Under the terms of the Letter
of Credit, the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make principal and interest payments. The Letter
of Credit is subject to various financial covenants.

Effective July 28, 2005, the County issued $74.5 million of Hospital Improvement and Refunding Variable
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2005 Bonds). Proceeds from
the 2005 Series Bonds were used to advance refund $57 million of the outstanding Series 1999 Bonds scheduled to
mature on February 15, 2029; to pay costs of constructing, renovating, furnishing, equipping and improving the South
Campus long-term care and skilled nursing facility; and to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2005 Bonds.
The bonds bear interest at a variable rate (not to exceed 10%) determined weekly as established by the Remarketing
Agent based on current market values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates until 2035. The interest
rate at December 31, 2005 was 3.6%.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2005 Bonds, the Hospital entered into a Reimbursement
Agreement with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the Hospital entered into an Irrevocable
Letter of Credit (“Letter of Credit”) issued by a local bank that expires on July 16, 2010. Under the terms of the Letter
of Credit, the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make principal and interest payments. The Letter
of Credit is subject to various financial covenants.

The July 28, 2005 bond refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt of $5.2 million. The unamortized difference ($5.1 million at December 31, 2005),
reported in the accompanying financial statements, as a reduction from long-term debt, is included as an increase to
interest expense through the year 2029 using the effective interest method.
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The Series 1997, 1997A, 1999, 2003 and 2005 Bonds were issued pursuant to a master trust bond
indenture agreement between the County, acting by and through the Hospital’s Board of Trustees, and the bond
trustee. The Series 1997, 1997A, 1999, 2003 and 2005 Bonds are special obligations of the County payable solely
from the revenue derived from the operation of the Hospital and other monies available to the Hospital's Board of
Trustees, and are secured by the revenue and real property of the Hospital. Accordingly, the bond proceeds and
indebtedness have been recorded as assets and liabilities of the Hospital.

Other Financial Obligations

Operating Leases: During the year 2005, the County had approximately 62 operating leases for office space
and equipment. At December 31, 2005, there were 41 remaining with future obligations. The operating lease
agreements range in length from one month to nine years. Total rental payments for 2005 amounted to $4.6 million,
of which $.8 million was expended from proprietary funds. Rental obligations for the years 2006 through 2010 are
$12.1 million of which $2.1 million represents the amount to be paid from proprietary funds. Rental payments for the
years 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 will be $4.5 million, $3 million, $2.4 million $1.5 million, and $.7 million
respectively. Operating lease payments are recorded as an expenditure in the period to which they apply.

The Hospital has entered into operating lease agreements for a parking facility, medical space and office
space which expire through 2020. Certain leases contain rent escalation clauses and renewal options for additional
periods ranging from one to five years. Rent expense totaled $2.1 million in 2005. Minimum rental commitments
under operating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2005 are as follows: 2006 - $1.4 million; 2007 -
$1.5 million; 2008 - $1.5 million; 2009 - $1.4 million; 2010 - $1.3 million; 2011-2015 - $3.5 million; 2016-2020 - $1.7
million.

Gateway Loan Guarantees: The County currently guarantees the repayment of $24.7 million of bonded debt
of Gateway. This amount represents the outstanding par amount of Stadium Revenue Bonds, the original
outstanding amount of which was $31 million. As of December 31, 2005, the outstanding balance on this Gateway
bond guarantee, including future interest payments, was $30.6 million (payable through September 15, 2014). The
County has not been required to make any payments on behalf of the Gateway bonds. In September 2004,
Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds. Also, the County originally guaranteed the Subordinate Excise
Tax Revenue Bond for Gateway whose par value was $38.4 million. The final principal and interest payments of $6.7
million were made in 2005 and the County has no further obligation on that issue.

Conduit Debt Obligations: Periodically, the County has issued Industrial Development, Hospital Revenue
and Mortgage Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial, commercial and hospital facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payment received on the underlying mortgage loans.
The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the County and, therefore, are not reported
in the financial statements. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-
sector entity served by the bond issuance.

As of December 31, 2005, the aggregate principal amounts outstanding for the Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds were approximately $270.1 million, $1.9 billion and $238.8 million,
respectively.

NOTE G - Pension and Retirement Plans and Other Post-employment Benefits
Primary Government

OPERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: All full-time employees of the County, except teachers employed by the
County Board of Mental Retardation, participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).
Employee retirement benefits are available for substantially all employees under three separate retirement plans
administered by the OPERS. The plans are the Traditional Pension Plan — a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; the Member-Directed Plan — a defined contribution pension plan; and the Combined Plan — a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and defined
contribution plan. OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and post-retirement healthcare benefits, to the
Traditional and Combined Plan members however, healthcare benefits are not statutorily guaranteed. Participants in
the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the
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authority to establish and amend benefits to the OPERS Board of Trustees. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement
System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 222-6701, or (800) 222-7377.

OPERS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees are required to contribute 8.5% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement
employees. In January 2001, House Bill 416 divided the OPERS law enforcement program into two separate
divisions with separate employee contribution rates and benefits as follows: (1) The law enforcement classification
which consists of sheriffs and deputy sheriffs with an employee contribution rate of 10.1% and (2) all other members
of the law enforcement program who were placed in a newly named public safety division and are required to
contribute 9%. The employer contribution rate is 13.55% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement which is
16.7%. Beginning in January 2006, the employer and employee rates will increase each year through 2008. The
employer rate will increase in 2006, 2007 and 2008 to 13.7%, 13.85% and 14% respectively. The employee rate will
increase in 2006, 2007 and 2008 to 9%, 9.5% and 10% respectively. The total employer contributions from the
County to OPERS (excluding amounts paid in 2005, 2004 and 2003 for ERIP — See Note F) for the years 2005, 2004,
and 2003 were $50.9 million, $49 million, and $34.4 million , respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year. In 2003, OPERS offered to change its billing cycle from quarterly to monthly in exchange for a deferral of the
second quarter of 2003 employer contributions. The County agreed to participate and deferred paying its April 2003,
May 2003 and June 2003 employer charges until December 2004, December 2005 and December 2006,
respectively. The deferral amounts to $3.4 million for April 2003, $5.2 million for May 2003 and $3.4 million for June
2003.

OPEB BENEFITS PROVIDED THROUGH OPERS: In addition to the pension benefits described
previously, OPERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirants with 10 or more years
of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also
available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment
Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

A portion of each employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health
care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health
care through their contributions to OPERS. The portion of the employer contribution rate used to fund postretirement
health care for both 2005 and 2004 was 4% of covered payroll. During 2005 and 2004, $14.9 million and $14.4
million, respectively, of the County’s total contribution to OPERS was used for postretirement benefits. At December
31, 2005, the County was not responsible for paying premiums, contributions, or claims for OPEB under OPERS for
any retirees, terminated employees or other beneficiaries.

The OPEB is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis through employer contributions and
investment earnings thereon. The principal assumptions based on the latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 2004 were as follows:

Funding Method: The entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in determining the
present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and
losses) becomes part of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Assets Valuation Method: All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial valuation purposes, a
smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of
unrealized market appreciation or depreciation on investment assets.

Investment Return: The investment return assumption for 2004 was 8%.

Active Employee Total Payroll: An annual increase of 4%, compounded annually, is the base portion of
the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the 4% base increase, were assumed to range from
5% t0 6.3%.

Health Care: Health care costs were assumed to increase at the projected wage inflation rate plus an
additional factor ranging from 1% to 6% for the next 8 years. In subsequent years (9 and beyond) health
care costs were assumed to increase at 4% (the projected wage inflation rate).
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The Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP) adopted by the OPERS Retirement Board on September 9,
2004 will be effective January 1, 2007. In addition to the HCPP, OPERS has taken additional action to improve the
solvency of the Health Care Fund in 2005 by creating a separate investment pool for health care assets. As an
additional component of HCPP, member and employer contribution rates increased as of January 1, 2006, which will
allow additional funds to be allocated to the health care plan.

At December 31, 2005, there were 376,109 active participants contributing to the Traditional Pension and
Combined Plans. The County’s actuarially required OPEB contribution for 2004 equaled the actual amount
contributed to OPERS by the County. In addition, at December 31, 2004, the actuarial value of the plan’s net assets
available for OPEB approximated $10.8 billion and the actuarial accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability, based on the actuarial method used, were $29.5 billion and $18.7 billion, respectively.

STRS OHIO PLAN DESCRIPTION: Teachers employed by the County Board of Mental Retardation
(CBMR) participate in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). STRS Ohio is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer retirement plan. Employee benefits are available under three separate retirement plans
administered by STRS Ohio. The plans are the defined benefit plan, the defined contribution plan and a combined
plan, which allows member contributions to be allocated by members and employer contributions to be used to fund a
defined benefit payment. STRS Ohio provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefits to the STRS Ohio Board of Trustees. STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the State Teachers Retirement System
of Ohio, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

STRS OHIO FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees are required to contribute 10% of covered payroll. The employer contribution
rate is 14% of annual covered payroll. The employer contributions from the County Board of Mental Retardation to
STRS Ohio for the years 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $ 1.8 million, $1.8 million, and $1.9 million respectively, and
equal to the required contributions for each year.

OPEB: STRS Ohio also provides OPEB to plan members in the Defined Benefit or Combined Plans. The
qualifications required to receive benefits replicate OPERS. STRS Ohio has established a Health Care Stabilization
Fund to accumulate monies for OPEB. The portion of the employer contribution rate allocated to the Health Care
Stabilization Fund was 1% of covered payroll. The County’s contributions for OPEB for the years 2005 and 2004
were $.1 million and $.1 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

The balance in the Health Care Stabilization Fund was $3.3 billion on June 30, 2005 (latest information
available). For the year ended June 30, 2005, the net health care costs paid by STRS Ohio were $254.8 million and
there were 115,395 eligible recipients.

Component Unit

Retirement and OPEB benefits for Hospital employees are provided through OPERS in the same manner as
employees of the County’s primary government. The Hospital’s total contributions to OPERS for the years 2005,
2004 and 2003 were $40 million, $38 million and $36.4 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for
each year. The portion of the Hospital’s total contribution to OPERS which was used to fund OPEB for the years
2005 and 2004 was $11.8 million and $11 million, respectively.

NOTE H - Deficit Balances

At December 31, 2005, the Capital Projects, Central Custodial Services, Maintenance Garage, Printing
Reproduction and Supplies and Communications funds had net asset deficits of $8.2 million, $1.6 million, $.1 million,
$.1 million and $.1 million, respectively. The deficit in Capital Projects fund will be eliminated by a future debt issue.
The Central Custodial Services, Maintenance Garage, Printing Reproduction and Supplies and Communications
funds are Internal Service funds. The deficits will be eliminated through adjustment of the related fee schedules and
subsidies as necessary.
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NOTE | - Fund Equity

Reserves and Designations: The County segregates fund balances using two different account categories;
reserved and designated. Two general types of reserved fund balance accounts are used. The first type indicates
the portion of fund balance which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type indicates the
portion of fund balance which does not represent available, spendable resources and is, therefore, not eligible to fund
current year expenditures. Designations indicate the portion of the unreserved fund balance which management has
earmarked for a specific future use. Designations are not legal segregations.

Reserve accounts used by the County include:

Reserved for Restricted Assets: This account represents the portion of the General fund’s equity that
includes certificates of deposit that support the County’s Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.) and the
unspent proceeds of the County’s Brownfield Economic Redevelopment bonds. At December 31, 2005, the balance
in this account was $25.8 million of which $20.3 million represents the fund equity related to the certificates of deposit
and $5.5 million represents the fund equity related to the Brownfield Redevelopment bond proceeds.

Reserved for Loans Receivable: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that pertains to
long-term loans receivable and is not available for current expenditure. At December 31, 2005, $19.7 million has
been reserved for loan repayments.

Reserved for Debt Service: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that must be used to
fund principal and interest on Gateway Economic Development Revenue Bonds in the succeeding year as well as the
equity balance in the Debt Service fund. At December 31, 2005, $15.4 million has been reserved for debt service.

Designation accounts used by the County include:

Designated for Self-Insurance: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to fund any claims or judgments against the County which are not covered by insurance. At December
31, 2005, $2 million has been designated for self-insurance.

Designated for Proprietary Funds: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to retire outstanding Enterprise and Internal Service funds' deficits. At December 31, 2005, $2 million has
been designated for future Internal Service funds' subsidies.

NOTE J - Risk Management and Other Contingencies
Primary Government

Litigation and Claims: There are certain pending and threatened lawsuits and other claims against the
County. The County’s management, after consultation with the County Prosecutor, is of the opinion that the potential
uninsured claims against the County are not material to the County’s combined financial statements.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted
grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives.
The County believes that disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position.

Self-Insurance: The County has designated $2 million of the fund balance of the General fund, pursuant to
Ohio law, to provide monies for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies. Settled
claims from risks covered by the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past
three fiscal years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County in 2005 and estimates for
unsettled claims at December 31, 2005, including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial. The County is
also self-insured with respect to unemployment and workers’ compensation benefits. Self-insurance expenditures
were immaterial for unemployment compensation in 2005. Since 1992, the County has maintained an Internal
Service fund for its self-insured workers’ compensation benefits administered through a retrospective rating plan with
the State of Ohio. Prior to 1992, the County was fully insured for workers’ compensation benefits. The County uses
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a payroll-based rate to charge its various funds for workers’ compensation benefits. These charges are contributed
into the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and are based on estimates needed to pay current claims and
establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Changes to the estimated claims payable recorded in the
Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable — Workers Compensation 2005 2004
Estimated claims payable beginning of year.............ccccoeiiennnee. $ 17,263 $ 18,766
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates .................. 2,881 1,292
Less: Claim payments .........cccoooiieiiiiiiriiieie e 2428 2,795
Estimated claims payable end of year............ccccceeveeeiiiciieeneenn. $17,716 $ 17,263

The County is also self-insured with respect to its prescription drug plan and, beginning in 2005, one medical

plan. Changes to the estimated claims payable recorded in the General fund during the year ended December 31,
2005 were:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable — Health Insurance 2005
Estimated claims payable beginning of year................cccovveenennn. $
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates................... 11,009
Less: Claim payments ........ccccoeoiieeeiiiieeniee e 8,971
Estimated claims payable end of year............cccoociiiiiiiiiii. $ 2,038

Component Unit

Self-Insurance: The Hospital is self-insured for medical malpractice and workers’ compensation benefits.
For the professional and patient care liability, professional insurance consultants have been retained to determine
funding requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient care have been placed in an irrevocable, self-
insurance trust account, which is being administered by a trustee.

Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting
system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The reserve for estimated
self-insured claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported. The changes in the reserve were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

(Amounts in 000’s)

Estimated Claims Payable 2005 2004
Estimated claims payable beginning of year.............ccccoeniennnen. $ 45,774 $ 41,735
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates .................. 12,593 18,059
Less: Claim payments ........c.ueeiiiiiiiiiieieee e 11,676 14,020
Estimated claims payable end of year ..........ccccocceviennieiiennnen, $ 46,691 $ 45,774
Due Within ONE YA ......cccuiiiiiiiiieeiee e $ 21,989 $21,92

66




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE K - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all County funds during the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract-related expenditures/expenses. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the succeeding year.

At December 31, 2005, encumbrances outstanding in Governmental funds and Proprietary funds which
were reappropriated in the 2006 budget were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GeNEral fUNG ..o, $ 27,729
Human Services fund .............eevvvevevereeireeereeeeerereeevererenennns 40,176
County Board of Mental Retardation fund ........................ 9,135
Health and Community Services fund .............cccecoeeennen. 36,223
Other Governmental funds ..........ccooeveeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee, 88,148
Sanitary Engineer fund ............cccoooi i 725
Other Enterprise funds ..........cccoouieiiiiiiiiniieeeeieee 866
Internal Service fundS.......cccoooviiiiiieeeiieeee e 7,355
TOtal oo $210,357

On a GAAP basis, a portion of these encumbrances represented liabilities of the County. At December 31,
2005, encumbrances recorded as liabilities were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GeENEral TUNG... ..o eee e neans $ 2,429
Human Services fund ...........cooooieeieeeiiieeeee e 4,300
County Board of Mental Retardation fund ....................... 2,648
Health and Community Services fund .............cccccoooeeee. 8,614
Other Governmental funds ............ccoooivviiiiiiiiiiicieee e, 9,119
Sanitary Engineer fund ..........ccoceeiiiiiiini s 85
Other Enterprise funds ..........cccoeveiiiiiiiiiieee e 169
Internal Service fuNdS............evvvvveveriviririiiieieeirirrreeereraraaens 834
Total oo $ 28,198
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NOTE L - Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, tangible (used in business) and public utility property.
The assessed value upon which the 2005 tax collection was based follows:

Property Type (Amounts in 000’s)
Real Property.......ccccccveiieeciee i $ 27,318,158
Personal tangible property.........ccccccceeiniieeiniieecnnen, 2,384,697
Tangible public utility property ........ccooovvevevininennnnn. 944,717
Total assessed value ..........ccoccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiies $ 30,647,572

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.45 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value of which
.61 is designated for debt service and the remainder is credited to the County’s General fund. In addition to the 1.45
mills, 12.07 voted mills have been levied for debt service, mental retardation, health and human services and health
and welfare. A summary of voted millage follows:

Voter Rates Levied for Final
Authorized Current Year Collection
Purpose Rate() Collection(?) Year
Agricultural/ Commercial/
Residential Industrial

Debt SEIVICe .....ovveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeee $ 27 $ 27 $ 27 2013

Mental retardation (3) 3.90 3.90 3.90 Cont.

Health and human services.................. 3.00 1.65 2.14 2007

Health and welfare ..............cccccccoeis 4.90 4.45 4.82 2008

Total voted millage........c.cccovevvveuennnn.. $ 12.07 $ 1027 $ 11.13

(1) In mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

(2) Onhio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property.
The mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare levies are subject to this
credit.

(3) A continuing replacement levy was approved November 2005.

Real property taxes are levied each December on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1st, the
lien date. Assessed values are established the preceding year by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value. A revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in 2003. Public utility property taxes are assessed on
tangible personal property, as well as land and land improvements at true value, which is, in general, net book value.
Tangible property is assessed at 25% of true value except for inventories which are assessed at 23% of average
value. Personal property (other than public utility property) taxes are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
based on tax rates determined in the preceding year and assessed values determined at the close of the most recent
fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the current calendar year. Public utility real and
tangible personal property taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
on assessed values determined as of January 1 of that preceding year, the lien date. The County Treasurer bills and
collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in Cuyahoga County including the County. Taxes are payable
semi-annually. The County's practice is to extend the statutory due dates to January and July. Unpaid taxes become
delinquent after December 31 of the year they are due. Foreclosure proceedings may be initiated by the County
Prosecutor if delinquent taxes are not paid within one year.

The County Auditor periodically remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts. The final
settlements of real and public utility property taxes are made in June and November and tangible taxes in July and
December for the first and second halves of the year, respectively.
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Property taxes receivable represent outstanding current and delinquent taxes which are measurable as of
December 31. Property taxes receivable are levied to finance operations of the following year and, therefore, are
also recorded as deferred revenue. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied.

Property tax revenues were recorded in the following funds in 2005:

Governmental Funds (Amounts in 000's)
GENEIA....c.cc oo $ 21,793
Health and Human Services Levies.........cccccoeeeeeeeeeeennnen. 169,249
County Board of Mental Retardation ...............ccc..ccene 85,915
Health and Community Services ........cccccccoeeuvveieeeeennnns 13,839
Other Governmental ........ccoooeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 22,879
Total property tax revenues.........cccccoovieeiiee e $ 313,675

Property tax revenues include levies collected from both the current levy and delinquent levies. The
cumulative delinquency as of December 31, 2005 for Cuyahoga County was $32.1 million.

The delinquent property taxes described above do not include certain receivables that have been sold to a
third party. Since 1998, the County has sold, on a nonrecourse basis, certain qualifying, delinquent real estate tax
receivables, along with the related liens, to a third party in exchange for discounted cash payments that approximates
the penalty and interest on the receivable. Some older delinquencies are sold at a deeper discount. In connection
with the sale of the receivables, the third party obtained the right to foreclose on the related properties, as well as
charge interest and certain fees on the delinquent amounts. The cash payments received by the County were
credited to the County’s Undivided Tax Agency fund and distributed to the various taxing districts within the County
(including the County) in the same manner as if the delinquent receivables had been collected directly from the
taxpayers.

Beginning in 2006, personal property taxes will be reduced 25% per year for each of the next four years
through 2009 at which point the tax will be eliminated. Telephone companies will switch from being public utility to
general business taxpayers beginning in 2007. Over the next five years beginning in 2007, telephone property will
phase out and be eliminated from taxation in 2011. The revenue from personal property tax will be reimbursed to the
local governments beginning in 2006 from a new Commercial Activity Tax (CAT) collected by the State of Ohio. The
CAT tax will be phased in over five years and local governments will be held harmless by the state through
distribution of the tax for the first five years back to collections in the base year. Therefore, the County should suffer
no significant impact during this period.
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NOTE M - Other Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal components of other intergovernmental revenue for the year ended December
31, 2005 follows:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund:
State Public Defender reimbursement................ccooovvvnnnn... $ 4,706
State property tax reimbursement..............cccoccoeiiiiinenne 3,412
Election Assistance Commission (EAC) ......cccccoeeeevevneennn. 14,598
Other ... 1,327
Total General fund..........ccoooiiiiii e 24,043
Special Revenue funds:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ...... 22,215
U.S. Department of Justice.........ccccceeeiveiiiiiiiieceeieee, 6,184
U.S. Department of Labor...........ccccocoeiiiiiiiiieiieiieeeee, 170
U.S. Department of Education .............ccccovveeiiiiiiiiiiienennn. 1,523
U.S. Department of Homeland Security...........ccccoceeevnneen. 14,796
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services............... 10,618
Federal and State Mental Health and Retardation............. 200,396
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
AddiCtion SErVICES ......ouvveiiiiiieeee e 28,687
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.................... 334,885
Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections........... 3,951
Ohio Department of Transportation .............ccccceeeeeeinnnneen. 1,844
Ohio Department of Youth Services ...........cccoceiiiiiiinnnn. 1,978
State property tax reimbursement..............ccccciiiniiennee. 23,328
(@ =T PSSR 4,789
Total Special Revenue funds..........cccoccviiiniieiiiiii e, 655,364
Debt Service fund:
State property tax reimbursement.............ccccoceiiiiiiiinne... 4,011

Capital Projects fund:

Ohio Department of Transportation .............c.ccccoeeieennnee 11,907
O s 7,911
Total Capital Projects fund ..........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiin e, 19,818
Total Other Intergovernmental............c....cooeeeeeiiiicceiieecce. $ 703,236

NOTE N - Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds which are
classified as transfers. Transfers are interfund transactions that do not represent loans, reimbursements or quasi-
external transactions. Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them; to move unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations;
to provide additional resources for current operations or debt service; reclassification or prior year distributed monies,
to segregate money for anticipated capital projects; and to return money to the fund from which it was originally
provided once a project is completed

Transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in Governmental funds and as nonoperating
revenues (expenses) in Proprietary funds.
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A summary of interfund transfers by fund type follows for the year ended December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Transfer To
County
Board of Health and Other Other
Human Mental Community Governmental Enterprise
Transfer From General  Services Retardation Services Funds Funds Total

Transfers:
Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund ..........ccoooeiiiieiiiiieee $ $ $ $ 12,030 $ 10,279 $ 1,652 $ 23,961
Human Services.........ccovviiiiiciicinnne 228 228
Health and Human Services Levies ...... 38,726 92,967 131,693
Health and Community Services ........... 700 143 843
Other Governmental Funds ................ 444 688 41 1,562 7,066 9,801
Other Enterprise Funds ...... 990 990
Internal Services Funds.. o - 2,039 - 2,039
Total Transfers .........ocoeeeerireeeceereenns $1,144 $ 39414 $ 41 $ 106,787 $ 20517 $ 1,652 $ 169,555

NOTE O - Transactions with Gateway

In 1990, the County, the city of Cleveland and Gateway Economic Development Corporation of Greater
Cleveland (Gateway) entered into a three party agreement which authorized Gateway to construct, own and provide
for the operation of a sports facility which included a baseball stadium, an arena and a joint development site.
Gateway was incorporated on May 31, 1990 and is a not-for-profit corporation legally separate from any other entity.

The County and Gateway also entered into a revolving loan agreement whereby the County agreed to issue
bonds and loan the bond proceeds to Gateway to pay arena construction costs. As part of this agreement, the County
issued taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $75 million on September 24, 1992 and $45 million on
February 1, 1994. At December 31, 2005, the County has $95 million of debt outstanding relating to these bond
issues (See Note F).

In February 2004, the County refinanced the 1992 variable rate Gateway Economic Development Bonds
(See Note F). In April 2004, Gateway refinanced the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. In September 2004,
Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds.

The amount due from Gateway under the revolving loan agreement is $195.8 million at December 31, 2005,
including unpaid accrued interest. During 2005, Gateway repaid the County over $4.5 million and the remaining
amount is fully reserved due to the uncertainty of the repayment from Gateway.

The County, Gateway and the Convention and Visitors Bureau of Greater Cleveland (the Bureau) entered
into a cooperative agreement on September 15, 1992, which included a provision that allowed a credit to be given to
Gateway for the incremental amount the Bureau receives from the County Transient Occupancy Tax to use as
payment to the County for the bonds issued. This agreement was amended on December 22, 1998 to redefine the
annual incremental credit and to provide for the deposit by the Bureau for the years 1994 through 1998. The County
received $1 million from this agreement during the year ended December 31, 1999. The County will receive $.2
million during each subsequent year, subject to certain adjustments. The County received $.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

The County has also guaranteed the repayment of certain bonds issued by Gateway. See Note F for the
details of the County’s guarantee.

During 2004, Gateway completed negotiations on its stadium leases with the owners of the Cleveland
Indians and the Cleveland Cavaliers. The new agreements free the organization from covering minor repairs and
routine maintenance. Gateway’s $4.9 million annual expenses will be divided by the teams. Gateway agreed to give
up $1 million annually in naming rights from the Indians until 2016. The Cavaliers will no longer hold Gateway
responsible for $9.5 million of capital repairs which the Cavaliers paid and offset against previous rent payments.
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Although the County believes that the revenue sources that secure the repayment of the revenue bonds the
County has guaranteed will be adequate to provide for the future debt service requirements under the bonds, if
Gateway was to become insolvent, the impact on the County’s future financial condition and operations cannot
presently be determined because of uncertainties regarding the amount of Gateway’s future cash needs and the
extent (if any) of the County’s funding of such needs.

NOTE P - Loans

Loans receivable represent economic development and property rehabilitation loans outstanding under the
Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and various other grant and development programs. The
loans are either non-interest bearing or have below market interest rates and are made to qualifying citizens and
businesses for rehabilitation of real property within the County. The loans are secured by mortgages against the
individual properties and generally have various repayment terms which may extend over several years.
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Education:
Food Donation

National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program

Total Child Nutrition Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Education:
CCBMR Title VI-B School Age Grant
CCBMR Title VI-B School Age Grant
Total

Help Me Grow Part C

CCBMR Title VI-B Preschool Grant
CCBMR Title VI-B Preschool Grant
Total
Total Specia Education Cluster

CCBMR Title V Innovative Education

OFFICE OF ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR ELEMENTARY EDUCATIOI
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Drug Free Schools

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Devel opment:
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Total

Total U.S. Department of Energy

Federal
CFDA
Number

10.550
10.555

10.555
10.555

84.027
84.027

84.181

84.173
84.173

84.298

84.186

81.042
81.042
81.042

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

N/A
IRN66563

IRN66563
IRN66597

066563-6BSF-05
066563-6BSF-06

18-1-002-1-EG-0=

066563-PG-S1-2005
066563-PG-S1-2006

066563-C2-S1-2005

None

D-04-109
H-02-109
H-05-109

Grant
Expenditures

4,252

124,559
159,214
190,015
473,788

478,040

400,984
251,948
652,932

1,362,542

81,620
59,632
141,252

2,156,726

6,270

180,000

2,342,996

55,272

(29)
236,141
291,384

291,384

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

U.S.ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Programs:
EPA Brownfield's Fund

Passed Through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency
ODOT - LPA/E.93rd & Quincy Site Cleanup
CPC Brownfield's Fund
Total

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Programs:
Project Tapestry

Early Learning Opportunities Act

HIV Emergency Relief P.C. Support

HIV Emergency Relief P.C. Support

HIV Emergency Relief P.C. Support
Total

Strengthening Communities-Y outh Project
Comprehensive Care Juv Justice 2003
Total

Adult Drug Court
Dually Diagnosed Homeless Women
Girls Empowered

Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Health:
HIV Emergency/Planning Support Council
HIV Emergency/Planning Support Council

Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcohol
and Addiction Services:
Ohio Second Chance
Ohio Second Chance
Ohio Second Chance
Ohio Second Chance
Total

Federal
CFDA
Number

66.817

66.818
66.818

93.104

93.577

93.914
93.914
93.914

93.230
93.230

93.243
93.243
93.243

93.917
93.917

93.230
93.230
93.230
93.230

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

EPA-500-F-03-07¢

BP-98574401-2
BP-98574401-0

1-U79-SM56055-01

90LO0111

5H89HA00045-08
2H89HA00045-0¢
2H89HA00045-1C

6-U79-TI-13322-01-1
6-U79-TI-13322-01-1

1H79T114109-01
1 H79 T116543-01
4 H79 T113505-03-2

18-1-002-1-BV-04
18-1-002-1-BV-0¢

5-UDI-T113577-01
5-UDI-T113577-0z
5-UDI-TI113577-0%
5-UDI-TI113577-0¢

Grant
Expenditures

130,264

315,000
238,290

553,290

683,554

1,860,951

328,000

152,229
1,218,139
2,186,436

3,556,804

15,000
1,228,262
1,243,262

653,311
299,690
498,428

1,451,429

19,110
16,565

35,675

(147,125)
175,032
467,279

24,746

519,932

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families:

TANF Lead Clean-up

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Devel opment:
Home Energy Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Program
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcohol
and Drug Addiction Services:
Health Block Grant
UMADOP
Women's 15%
Y ment
TASC
Community Prevention
Project Safe
Drug Free Community Coalition
Treatment Alternative to Street Crime FY '02
Treatment Alternative to Street Crime FY '04
Treatment Alternative to Street Crime FY '05
Treatment Alternative to Street Crime FY '06

Total

Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Mental Health
Services

Fast 05

Fast 05

Community Mental Health Services Block Grant

Social Services Block Grant - Title XX

Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX

Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Job and Family

Services
Title IV-E Administration Juvenile Court

Federal
CFDA
Number

93.558

93.568
93.568
93.568

93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959

93.778

93.556
93.556
93.958
93.667
93.778

93.658

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

H-05-109

H-04-109
H-03-109
H-05-109

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
18-02962-00-TASC-T-02-919¢
18-02962-00-TASC-T-04-919¢
18-02962-TASC-T-05-919¢
18-02962-TASC-T-06-919¢

N/A

N/A
N/A
MH12
MH12
N/A

N/A

Grant
Expenditures

17,000

171,114
(61)
435,068

606,121

6,367,716
471,354
1,570,952
76,998
100,000
135,000
145,335
63,644
(1,328)
(30,081)
478,189
420,747

9,798,526

6,694,944
16,493,470

182,134
32,878
759,575
1,452,294

43,890,777
46,317,658

411,862

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Mental Retardation

and Developmental Disabilities:

TCM - SCHIP
CAFS - SCHIF
Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX
Medicaid Assistance Program - Waiver Administration
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX
Total

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Public Safety:
Emergency Management

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Emergency
Management Assistance:
Homeland Security Grant Part |
Homeland Security Grant Part 11
Homeland Sec/Critical Infrastructure Security
Homeland Sec/Critical Infrastructure Protection
Homeland Security Equipment Fund
Homeland Security Equipment Fund
Domestic Preparedness Prog-First Respond
Homeland Security Training

State Homeland Security Prog
State Homeland Security USAR Equip

Total

Urban Area Secruity Initiative (URSI)

Urban Area Secruity Initiative (URSI)
Urban Area Secruity

Total
Citizens Corps Council Grant Prog
Community Emergency Response Team Grani

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Federal
CFDA
Number

93.767
93.767
93.778
93.778
93.667

97.042

97.004
97.004
97.004
97.004
97.004
97.004
97.004
97.004

97.004
97.004

97.008

97.008
97.008

97.053

97.054

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
MR-18-01

34-6000.817

2003-TE-TX-0199
2003-MU-P3-0015
2003-MU-T3-0015
2003-MU-T3-0015
2003-TE-TX-0199
2005-TE-TX-0199
2002-TE-CX-0106
2003-TE-TX-0199

2005-GE-T4-0025
2005-GE-T4-002&

2003-EU-T3-0012
2004-EU-T3-0012
2004-TU-T4-0015
2005-GC-T4-002&E

EMC-2003-GR-706€

Grant
Expenditures

19,643
19,366
33,204,054
556,589
1,062,379

34,862,031

107,704,195

150,420

254,946
1,592,743
74,568
1,624,056
41,528
149,486
691
49,500

772,924
211,921

4,772,363

5,671,648
2,803,036
384,000

8,858,684

50,144

16,301

13,847,912

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs:

CDBG - Entitlement

Emergency Shelter Grants Program

Supportive Housing Program

Shelter Plus Care Program

CDBG Home Investment Partnership Program

HUD Section 108

Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing

Healthy Homes Initiative

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS -

VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN
Stop Abuse and Sexual Assault

OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENC?
PREVENTION - JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENC*
PREVENTION - ALLOCATION TO THE STATE!

Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:

Female Aftercare Prj 2005
Community Y outh Sanction Prograrr
JAIBG Administration I
2003 JAIBG Block Grant
2004 JAIBG Block Grant
2005 JAIBG Block Grant

Total

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention:

JUV Justice & Deliquency Titlell

JUV Justice 2005

JIDP Block Grant FY 2003

JIDP Block Grant FY 2004

2004 Cuyahoga JJ Administration

2005 Cuyahoga JJ Administration

Total

Federal
CFDA
Number

14.218
14.231
14.235
14.238
14.239
14.246
14.900
14.901

16.528

16.523
16.523
16.523
16.523
16.523
16.523

16.540
16.540
16.540
16.540
16.540
16.540

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2005-EW-AX-K-00¢

04-JB-011-A11€

03-JB-011-A124
2003-JB-RPU-0324
2002-JB-RPU-070C
2003-JB-ADM-0324
2004-JB-RPU-070C

2002-J3-RPU-0795
2004-J3-RPU-0795
2003-J3-RPU-0795
2004-J3-RPU-0795
2003-J3-ADM-032C
2004-J3-ADM-032C

Grant
Expenditures

4,313,132
135,373
1,722,337
7,275,618
3,210,856
454,950
771,571

9,392

17,893,229

37,858

23,421
1,097
45,769
3,020
128,628

180,406

382,341

46,741
61,337
56,364
93,528
14,266

17,874

290,110

(Continued)
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Federal

CFDA Pass-Through

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Grantor Number
Internet Crimes 16.542 2000-MCCX-K016
Protection Order Projec 16.554 2000-RU-N39-9138

OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS - DRUG CONTROL AND
SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT ACT

Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Edward Byrne Memorial Admin FY 2003 16.579 2003-DG-ADM-7431
Victim Restitution Prog 16.579 2004-DG-D-B-017
Psychological Counseling 16.579 2003-DG-D-B-010
Psychological Counseling 16.579 2004-DG-D-B-010
Evidence Collection Training FY 2004 16.579 2003-DG-EO01-B-005
Evidence Collection Training FY 2005 16.579 2004-DG-C02-B-005
Straight Release Overflow Unit FY 2004 16.579 2003-DG-CB-006
Straight Release Overflow Unit FY 2005 16.579 2004-DG-CB-006
LILGH.T.S 16.579 2004-DG-B-B022
FY 2004 Byrne Administration 16.579 2004-DG-ADM-7431
Byrne Victim Family Advocate 2005 16.579 2004-DG-D-B051
FY 2002 Narcotics Control Grant 16.579 2002-DG-RPU-0727
FY 2003 Narcotics Control Grant 16.579 2003-DG-RPU-0737
FY 2004 Narcotics Control Grant 16.579 2004-DG-RPU-0747
Proware Enhancement Grant 16.579 2003-DG-G-B-040
Operation Deadbest 16.579 2004-DG-B-B-052
GRAD 16.579 2003-DG-G-B-038
Competency Research 16.579 2003-DG-G-B-035
JA-CJIS-Byrne 16.579 2003-DG-F-B-026
JA-CJIS-Byrne 16.579 2004-DG-F-B-026
Juvenile Court Advocate Byrne 2005 16.579 2004-DG-D-B-007
Public Defender Info Systems Upgrade 16.579 2003-DG-G-B037
Old School Boxing Club After School Program 16.579 2004-DG-B-B057
Y outh Intervention/Prevention Network 16.579 2003-DG-G-B-033

Tota

FY 2003 VAWA Block Grant 16.588 2003-WF-RPU-0738
FY 2005 VAWA Block Grant 16.588 2005-WF-RPU-0748
FY 2005 VAWA Administration 16.588 2005-WF-ADM-8668

Total

Total of 16.579 & 16.588 Passed Through the Offic

of Criminal Justice Services

Grant
Expenditures

258,105

164,553

18,842
16,574
84,654
5,023
10,844
10,293
3,115
34,238
11,985
68,664
20,197
2,290
277,111
683,708
14,893
10,525
4,982
6,117
51
19,712
19,164
24
34,342
4,952

1,362,300

175,680

372,554
14,163

562,397

1,924,697

(Continued)
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Federal
CFDA

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number

OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS - NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF JUSTICI
Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:

Training Toward Accreditation 16.560
OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS - OTHER
Direct Programs:
Gang Free Communities 16.544
Gun Violence Prosecution 16.609
Tri-County Juvenile Gun Violence 16.609
Tota
JAG Asst Justice 2005 16.738
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Youth Services:
Truancy Prevention Title V 16.548
Truancy Prevention Title V 16.548
Tota
Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Standardizing Forensic Info 2004 16.580
RSAT Therapeutic Community 2004 16.593
RSAT Therapeutic Community 2005 16.593
Tota
Violent Fugitive Task Force 16.609
Project Safe Neighborhood 16.609
Tota
Ohio Department of Rehab and Corrections
C.0.R.E Going Home 16.202
C.O.R.E BIP Project 16.202
C.O.R.E TASC Project 16.202
Tota
Total U.S. Department of Justice
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Direct Programs:
Workforce Incentive Grant 17.266

Total

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

2003-PC-NFS-7807A

2001-JD-FX-0002

2003-GP-CX-0033
2003-GP-CX-0147

2005-DJBX-1550

2002-JV-TS0-5112
2005-JV-T5-5112

2004-DG-G-B-030
2002-RS-SAT-120A
2003-RS-SAT-120

2003-PS-PSN-315
2003-PS-PSN-310

2002-RE-CX-003
04-CORE-0002
04-CORE-0001

WI-14194-04-60

Grant
Expenditures

6,265

192,791

24,806
94,962

119,768
625,994
11,636

22,851
34,487

5,040

1,084
155,014

156,098

91,361

74,239

165,600

293,243

33,394
48,793

375,430

4,739,137

180,638
180,638

(Continued)
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Job and Family
Services:

Reed Act

Y outh Settlement Funds
Total

Workforce |nvestment Act of 1998 Passed Through the Ohio
Department of Job and Family Services:
WIA Adminstration
WIA Adult
Special Projects
Veterans Short-Term Training Program

Tota
WIA Adminstration
WIA Youth
Specia Projects
User Acceptance Testing
Workforce Training & Developmen

Tota
WIA Adminstration
WIA Dislocated Worker
WIA Rapid Response
Specia Projects- LTV
Tota

Total WIA Cluster (17.258, 17.259, 17.260)

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING
ADMINISTRATION
Employment for Y outh 200~

Total U.S. Department of Labor

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Natural Resources
Euclid Creek Watershed Planning

Total U.S. Department of Commer ce

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct Program:
County Airport - Airport Improvement Program
County Airport - Airport Master Plan - Phase 1
County Airport - Acquisition of Land
Tota

Federal
CFDA
Number

17.225
17.261

17.258
17.258
17.258

17.258

17.259
17.259
17.259
17.259
17.259

17.260
17.260
17.260

17.260

17.261

11.419

20.106
20.106
20.106

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

G-04-15-0983
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
6000817

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

Y F-14834-05-60

NAO3NOS4190009¢

3-39-0021-1201
AlP3-39-0021-1404
N/A

Grant
Expenditures

218,009
10,000

228,009

173,020
2,471,103
(531)
3.760

2,647,352

166,776
2,054,574
(512)
3,174
1,977

2,225,989

118,018
1,307,089
1,000,000

(203)

2,424,904

7,298,245

17,795

7,724,687

75,000

75,000

54,390
272,087
742,927

1,069,404

(Continued)
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Transportation:
ODOT - Detroit- Superior Bridge Intersection
ODOT - LPA / Emery Roac
ODOT - Fdls Road
ODOT - Hilliard Boulevard
ODOT - Pleasant Valley Road & Bridge No.58
ODOT - LPA / &t. Clair Ave. Phase |l Road
ODOQT - Smith Road
ODOT - LPA/ Stumph Road
ODOT - LPA / Triskett Road Bridge #195
ODOT - LPA / Wolf Road Bridge #€
ODOT - West 140th Street
ODOT - LPA / West 117th Street Project
Total Highway Planning & Construction Cluster

Passed Through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency:
Hazardous Materials Prepar. Train.

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Passed Through the Ohio Secretary of State
Cert Elections Registration Admin Grant

Voter Registration Grant

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
Direct Program:
Americorps

Total Corporation for National and Community Service

ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION

Passed Through the Ohio Office of Secretary of State:
Help America Vote

Total Election Assistance Commission

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal
CFDA
Number

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

20.703

39.011
39.011

94.006

90.401

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

EO33 (602)
E033 (040)
EO35 (988)
EO40 (428)
G000 (382)
E036 (064)
G020250
G020105
E051 (079)
E035 (672)
E034351
G000015

HMEOHB8016060

05-HAVA-CERA-18
04-SOS-HAVA-1¢

JIWC-003-04

E05-5407-18

Grant
Expenditures

236,237
1,811,086
976,424
1,931,522
3,653,262
504,560
201,744
37,225
60,106
1,868,979
209,508
79,408

11,570,061

12,939

12,652,404

1,000
83,530

84,530

2,162

2,162

14,598,900

14,598,900

183,118,130

(Concluded)
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. BASISOF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “ Schedul€”) reflects the
expenditures of the primary government of Cuyahoga County, Ohio, under programs financed by the
U.S. government for the year ended December 31, 2005. The Schedule has been prepared using the cash
basis of accounting. For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include the following:

Direct federal awards
Pass-through funds received from non-federal organizations made under
federally sponsored programs conducted by those organizations.

The information presented in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (“*CFDA") Numbers or Primary Grant Numbers are presented for those programs
for which such numbers are available.

The County’ s basic financial statementsinclude the operations of MetroHealth System, a discretely
presented component unit, which expended $8,609,207 in federal awards during the year ended
December 31, 2005. These expenditures are not included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards for the year ended December 31, 2005 because MetroHealth System had a separate
audit performed in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

2. LOANSRECEIVABLE

As shown in the table below, the County had loans receivabl e outstanding at December 31, 2005 under
the Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) Entitlement and Home Investment Partnership
programs. All of the loans outstanding at December 31, 2005 pertained to federal awards received by the
County, or program income associated with these awards, and provided asloansto eligible recipientsin
prior years. The loan balances detailed below were not included in federal expenditures presented in the
accompanying Schedule because the provisions of the grant agreements pertaining to such loans do not
reguire the repayment of the grant monies to the federal government. The loans outstanding at

December 31, 2005 under federal grant programs were as follows:

Loan Amounts
Outstanding at

Federal December 31,
Program Title CFDA No. 2005
CDBG—Entitlement and (HUD-Administered) Small Cities Cluster 14.218 $10,397,160
CDBG Home Investment Partnership program 14.239 8,030,740
$18,427,900

82



CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

3. SUBRECIPIENTS

Certain funds are passed through to subgrantee organizations by the County. Expenditures incurred by
the subgrantees and reimbursed by the County are included in the accompanying Schedule.

4. MEDICAID ASSISTANCE PROGRAM—TITLE XIX

The total amount expended by the County during 2005 under the Title X1X Medicaid Assistance
Program (CFDA No. 93.778) is summarized as follows:

Amount
Passed Through From Expended
Ohio Department of Alcohal and Drug Addiction Sarvices $ 6,694,944
Ohio Department of Mental Hedlth Services 43,890,777
Ohio Department of Mental Retardati on and Devel opmental Disabilities 33,760,643
Totd $ 84,346,364

5. TITLE XX SOCIAL SERVICESBLOCK GRANT

Thetotal amount expended by the County during 2005 under the Title XX Socia Services Block Grant
(CFDA No. 93.667) is summarized as follows:

Amount
Passed Through From Expended
Ohio Department of Mental Health Services 1,452,294
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities 1,062,379
Total $ 2,514,673

* k k % % %
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Deloitte

127 Public Square

Suite 3300

Cleveland, OH 44114-1303
USA

Tel: +1 216 589 1300
Fax: +1 216 589 1369
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS (AS REVISED)

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the “ County”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005,
which collectively comprise the County’ s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated June 9, 2006 (February 28, 2007 as to the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401), which report
includes an explanatory paragraph regarding MetroHealth System’ s change in its method of accounting
for conditional asset retirement obligations in 2005 and also was modified to include areference to the
report of other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Sandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. This report does
not include the results of our testing of Metro Health System’sinternal control over financial reporting or
compliance and other mattersthat are reported on separately by us. Other auditors audited the financia
statements of the MetroHealth Foundation, Inc., as described in our report on the County’s financial
statements. This report also does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control
over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’ sinternal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financia reporting. Our
consideration of theinternal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all mattersin
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weaknessisa
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to arelatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would
be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

However, we noted other mattersinvolving the internal control over financial reporting that we have
reported to the management of the County in a separate letter dated June 9, 2006.

Member of 84
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’ s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

However, we aso noted certain immaterial instances of nhoncompliance that we have reported to the
management of the County in a separate letter dated June 9, 2006.

Thisreport isintended solely for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, County
Auditor, County Treasurer, County management, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities and the

Auditor of the State of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Detitty ¢Tons, LLP

June 9, 2006

(February 28, 2007 as to the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401)
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Deloitte

127 Public Square

Suite 3300

Cleveland, OH 44114-1303
USA

Tel: +1 216 589 1300
Fax: +1 216 589 1369
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM (AS
REVISED)

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the “County”) with the types of

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The County’s mgjor federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors
results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programsis
the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
County’ s compliance based on our audit.

The County’ s basic financial statementsinclude the operations of MetroHealth System, a discretely
presented component unit, which expended $8,609,207 in federal awards during the year ended
December 31, 2005 which is not included in the County’ s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of
MetroHealth System because the component unit engaged us as auditors to perform a separate audit in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on amajor federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence about the County’ s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides areasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide alegal determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County, complied, in al materia respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2005. However, the
results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements, that is
required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs asitem 2005-1.

Member of 86
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’ sinternal control over
compliance with requirements that could have adirect and material effect on amajor federal programin
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all mattersin
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weaknessis a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to arelatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
that would be material in relation to amajor federal program being audited may occur and not be detected
within atimely period by employeesin the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

This report isintended solely for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, County
Auditor, County Treasurer, County management, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities and the

Auditor of the State of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Detitty ¢Tons, LLP

June 9, 2006

(February 28, 2007 as to the Help America Vote grant, CFDA #90.401)
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (AS REVISED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Summary of Auditors’ Results

e Typeof Report Issued on the Financial Statements as of and for the Y ear Ended December 31, 2005—
Unqualified.

e |nternal Control Over Financial Reporting:
e Materia weaknesses identified?>—No

¢ Reportable conditions identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?—
N/A (none reported).

¢ Noncompliance noted that is Material to the Financial Statements—N/A (none reported).
e Internal control over major programs:

e Material weaknesses identified?>—No
¢ Reportable conditions identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?—
N/A (none reported).

o Type of Report Issued on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Major Federal Award
Programs—Unqualified.

e The audit disclosed one finding which was required to be reported under Section .510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133. See Findings Related to Federal Awards below.

o Major Federal Award Programs Identified for the Y ear Ended December 31, 2005:

CFDA #93.778 Medicaid Assistance Program

CFDA #97.004 State Domestic Preparedness Equipment Support Program
CFDA #97.008 Urban Area Security Initiative

CFDA #17.258, 17.259, 17.260 Workforce Investment Act Cluster

CFDA #14.218 Community Development Block Grant

CFDA #20.205 Highway Planning and Construction Grant

CFDA #90.401 Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments

e Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and Type B Programs—$3,000,000.
e The County was not considered to be a Low Risk Auditee as defined under OMB Circular A-133.

Findings Related to the Financial Statementsthat are Required to be Reported Under Government
Auditing Standards:

None
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Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awardsthat are Required to be Reported Under
Government Auditing Standards:

Finding No. 2005-1
Federal Award Program—Title XI1X Medicaid CFDA #93.778

Condition—There is inadequate verification and review by management of services recorded in the billing
system, resulting in over and under billing of services rendered. We viewed the underlying documentation of
services billed, noting inconsistenciesin units billed for services rendered when compared with relevant
source documents.

Criteria— Billings are based on units of service and should accurately indicate the actual servicesthat were
performed.

Effect—The services billed and reimbursed with Federal Awards may not be a true representation of those
services actually rendered.

Questioned Costs—Known questioned costs are $124.43. Based on errors noted in a sub-selection population

of $4,601, the total likely questioned costs may exceed $10,000. In addition, errors appear to be isolated to
the Cuyahoga County Board of MRDD.

Recommendation—The Board should implement review and verification procedures to ensure services billed
are an accurate representation of services rendered.

View of Responsible Officials—The Cuyahoga County Board of MR/DD is taking the following actions in
response to Finding No. 2005-1.

1. CCBMR/DD has replaced the INSY ST (legacy) billing system, which had been utilized to document

and bill nearly al of the services during the audit period. The newer Provider Gateway system, now
used to document and bill TCM services, requires time-in and time-out data, which reduces the
possibility of errors by eliminating the need to calculate hours and minutes, as required under the
former system. The transfer of hours and minutes data from progress notes to billing logs accounted
for two of the errors noted. Second, the Gatekeeper system, which recently replaced the INSY ST
system for the billing of day program services, also has safeguards for properly tracking the duration
of services.

CCBMR/DD will be conducting internal audits of its Medicaid billings by randomly selecting 50
records from each monthly TCM billing file before the claim is electronically submitted to the State.
The outcome of this review of service data billed will also be used to determine the need and scope of
additional staff training requirements.

CBMR/DD has corrected the specific billing errors identified in the Single Audit and submitted
corrections directly to ODMR/DD's Medicaid Billing System. CBMR/DD understands that these
corrections may or may not be accepted because of State time limitations for submitting claims.

CBMR/DD will develop internal controls in all of our billing software applications (already in
Gatekeeper) to prevent possible duplicate entry of service data into the system, which was the cause
of two of the errors noted in the audit. An attempt to enter another service of the same type for a
consumer on the same day will be controlled.
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5. CCBMR/DD will be scheduling a high level management meeting to re-emphasize the importance of
following proper service documentation and billing procedures to all of our staff, and to identify
specific management reports that management should be using for monitoring purposes.

6. Finally, CBMR/DD will refine and update its internal billing documentation procedures, covering
Medicaid and other funding sources, as well as all billing systems utilized by the organization.
These procedures will be distributed to CCBMR/DD staff service providers, with follow-up to ensure
that they are understood and being implemented by all.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORTS

CUYAHOGA COUNTY ALCOHOL AND DRUG ADDICTION SERVICES BOARD
STAKEHOLDER ASSISTANCE REVIEW FINDINGS

In areport dated January 19, 2006, the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services completed
its Stakeholder Assistance Review for the period ended June 30, 2004 of the Cuyahoga County Alcohol and
Drug Addition Services Board. The principal finding resulting from the performance audit relating to internal
control and legal compliance matters that was unresolved as of the 2005 Single Audit Report is as follows:

Lack of Segregating Funds by Funding Source

Observation—Good record keeping and internal controls include having accounting procedures that permit
the preparation of reports that adequately identify the source of funds and also allow the tracing of funds to
ensure the expenditures are reasonable and allowable. In fiscal year 2004 the Board combined state and
federal per capitatreatment expenditures and local levy fund expenditures in the same general ledgers
account. The Board also combined state and federal per capita prevention and local levy expendituresin the
same general ledger account.

Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Recommended Corrective Action—The
Cuyahoga County Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board should implement an accounting system that
segregates both revenues and expenditures in the general ledger for the funding sources identified above.

Management’s Response—The Board is subject to certain policies and procedures that are set by the
Cuyahoga County Auditor that allow the measurement of financial results against the County’ s operating
budget as approved by the Board of County Commissioners. The Board's general ledger is maintained to
allow ease in reconciliation of the Board' s general ledger with the County’ s general ledger. The Board does
provide supplemental information that allows the Auditor’ s Office to prepare reporting schedules as required
under OMB Circular A-133. The Board has worked with the County Auditor’s Office to segregate special
initiative funds by funding source and will continue to work with the Cuyahoga County Auditor’s office to
segregate SAPT Block Grant, State Per Capita/Needs and County General Revenue fund expenditures by
funding source. The Board will adapt its general ledger to reflect this segregation of funds by funding source
no later than the start of Fiscal Y ear 2007.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORTS (CONTINUED)

CUYAHOGA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
WIA PROGRAM MONITORING REPORT FINDINGS

During 2005, the Ohio Department of Job & Family Services (“ODJFS’), issued areport detailing the
observations and recommendations resulting from its financial monitoring and technical assistance visit at the
Cuyahoga County Department of Workforce Development (“CCDWD”). The significant finding resulting
from the audit relating to internal control and legal compliance matters was as follows:

Private Sector Representation

Observation—The membership of the Area 3 Workforce Investment Board (“WIB”) does not comply with
the composition requirements in 8117(b) of the Act and 8661.315(d) in the Federal Regulations. The Board
does not have private sector representation which exceeds 50% of total membership. The Area3 WIB
currently has fifty-two (52) members with only twenty-four (24) representing the private sector. Failureto
meet this requirement will prevent certification of the Area 3 Board and may also impact the Phase |1 One-
Stop certification of Area 3.

Ohio Department of Job & Family Services Recommended Corrective Action—The Area needs to add five
members from the private sector to ensure the required private sector majority.

Management’ s Response—The recommendation concerning the private sector representation is being taken
under advisement, but it would require the cooperation of other elected officials whose participation is critical
to this process. It is not known at thistime if other elected officials would wish to participate.

* k * * % %
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FRANK RUSSO

CUYAHOGA COUNTY AUDITOR

June 12, 2006

The Citizens of the County of Cuyahoga

We are pleased to present the 2005 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of
Cuyahoga. This report provides a full and complete disclosure of the financial position and
operations of the County for the year ended December 31, 2005. My office believes that the data
herein is accurate in all respects and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a
maximum understanding of the County's financial affairs have been included.

Preparation of this report represents a renewed commitment to the prudent financial management
of Cuyahoga County. The annual report provides Cuyahoga County's elected officials and
managers with accurate and reliable financial information for making important decisions
affecting the quality and level of service provided to residents of the County.

We are proud that Cuyahoga County has received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting 21 times from the Government Finance Officers Association. Attainment
of this prestigious award is an annual goal of our office.

I thank Steven C. Letsky, Director of Accounting, and his staff for their efforts in this endeavor.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Russo
Cuyahoga County Auditor

1219 ONTARIO STREET o CLEVELAND, OHIO 44113-1657 e TELEPHONE (216) 443-7010 ¢ FAX (216) 443-5090
OHIO RELAY SERVICE (TTY) 1-800-750-0750
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June 12, 2006

Honorable Frank Russo
Cuyahoga County Auditor

Honorable Jimmy Dimora
Honorable Tim Hagan

Honorable Peter Lawson Jones
Cuyahoga County Commissioners

Honorable James Rokakis
Cuyahoga County Treasurer

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of Cuyahoga
for the year ended December 31, 2005. This report contains the financial statements and other
financial and statistical data that provide a complete and full disclosure of all material financial
aspects of the County. The responsibility for the accuracy of all data presented, its completeness
and fairness of presentation rests with the County Auditor's Office (specifically the Financial
Reporting Section), the Board of County Commissioners and the County Treasurer's Office.

This is the twenty-third consecutive year that the County has issued a Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). This report, which is prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, is indicative of the commitment by County
management to provide quality financial information to the citizens of the County and all other
interested parties.

The CAFR is organized in three sections: The Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Introductory Section contains a table of contents, letters of transmittal, the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 2004, a list of elected officials
and an organization chart. The financial section includes the independent auditors’ report,
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), Basic Financial Statements, supplementary
information and various other statements and schedules pertaining to the County’s funds and
activities. The Statistical Section provides selected financial, economic and demographic
information, which may be used to indicate trends for comparative fiscal periods.

REPORTING ENTITY

The County of Cuyahoga is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. It encompasses 59
municipalities, villages and townships, of which Cleveland is the largest. The County includes 459
square miles and has an estimated population of 1,335,317 making it the 27™ largest county in the
United States. The County provides general governmental services to its citizens including: Social
services including drug and alcohol abuse programs and programs for the mentally retarded, health
and community assistance related services, civil and criminal justice system services, road and
bridge maintenance and other general administrative support services. The County operates
several enterprise activities including a sewer system, an airport, a parking garage and a crime
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information system. The County also operates a hospital, which is presented in the financial
statements as a Discretely Presented Component Unit.

For financial reporting purposes, the entity consists of the primary government, organizations for
which the primary government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion could
cause the County's Basic Financial Statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board and
either the County's ability to impose its will over the component unit or the possibility that the
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Recent economic news has not been encouraging, but there were some positive developments in
2005. The market for Class A buildings in downtown Cleveland is fairly strong with vacancies
dropping from 14% in 2004 to 12% in 2005. The east suburbs’ vacancy rate dropped considerably
from 16% in 2004 to 9% in 2005, while south suburb rates were only slightly down from 2004 (28%
to 27%). There was less movement in Class B vacancies where the numbers remained virtually
unchanged from 2004 to 2005. Overall, among all classes of property, vacancy rates for office
space went from 21.8% in 2004 to 21.7% in 2005, and vacancy rates for industrial space dropped
from 12.5% in 2004 to 10.8% in 2005. For the fourth consecutive year, the vacancy rate in northeast
Ohio shopping centers declined to 7.5% from 7.8% one year ago.

The Rock and Roll Hall of Fame and Museum opened in 1995 and celebrated its 10™ anniversary in
September 2005. After years of planning the Rock Hall is to begin construction on a new Center for
Innovation in the Arts at Cuyahoga Community College’s Metropolitan Campus (CCC). The
research facility and repository will occupy 20,000 square feet of the 70,000 square foot CCC
building with up to 12,000 square feet of high-density storage. In addition to offices and areas for
viewing material, the library will also display Rock Hall items. It is scheduled to open in late 2007.
In order to alleviate pressure on the operating budget, the Cleveland-Cuyahoga County Port
Authority refinanced the remainder of $39 million in bonds issued in 1993 which helped pay for the
construction of the museum. The refinancing freed up at least $224,000 per year. Proceeds from a
1.5% county bed tax, corporate sponsorships and a 3% admission surcharge were pledged to repay
the original bonds. If the admission surcharge failed to generate $224,000 toward repayment of the
bonds, the museum was responsible for making up the difference from its operating fund. The bed
tax is the pledged source of repayment on the refinancing bonds and is currently generating enough
money to cover the annual debt service. Also, corporate sponsorship was not heavily pursued
because proceeds would be earmarked for the bond reserve fund. The Rock Hall is trying to change
its image to become more of a destination and less of a symbol. One change being proposed is for
the enshrinement to be held at the Rock Hall at least every 5 years. The Rock Hall was set to open
a new home away from home facility in Phoenix, Arizona in 2006, but was delayed due to a switch in
sites. The Rock Hall is also pursuing an “on tour” outlet in Memphis, Tennessee, which should be
up and running by spring 2006. The “on tour” facilities are designed to showcase temporary exhibits
and ideally encourage tourists to visit the Cleveland site.

The Civic Vision 2000 and Beyond report is a comprehensive plan that can serve as a blueprint for
transforming downtown Cleveland in the 21 century. The report calls for spending upwards of $2.7
billion in public and private funds over 10 years on 5 initiatives of major importance: (1) Dramatically
change the lakefront; (2) Develop a new and competitive downtown convention center; (3) Restore
and beautify Euclid Avenue; (4) Double the number of downtown residents; and (5) Develop
attractive and user-friendly systems of connectivity. In addition, the Steering Committee
recommended supporting the Greater Cleveland Growth Association (now the Greater Cleveland
Partnership) task force review of Northeast Ohio’s required air service needs, improving the
Cleveland public schools and building inter-relationships with adjoining neighborhoods. Most of the
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Euclid Avenue projects are under construction. Civic Vision’s goal is 3,000 new housing units with
1,200 having already been added and 7,000 new downtown hotel rooms with 617 currently in place.
One proposal, the “Connecting Cleveland: The Waterfront District Plan,” is being considered for the
lakefront which consists of shifting the shoreway, a main freeway connecting downtown with the east
and west sides of the County, which runs along Lake Erie. Parts of the shoreway would become a
tree-lined boulevard and an eight mile lakefront bike path would be created. It is felt this proposal
would facilitate development along the lakeshore. Highlights of such a project would include 500
acres of new public space, 5 new marinas, 7,400 new housing units, 2.5 million square feet of office
space, 1.4 million square feet of new commercial space and 9.2 miles of lakefront. The project could
cost over $1 billion and the funding source has not been identified. Design of a 35 mph boulevard to
replace the three-mile West Shoreway is underway. This project is funded and scheduled for
completion by 2010.

A new Convention Facilities Authority (CFA) was appointed by the Board of County Commissioners
(4 members), the Mayor of the city of Cleveland (4 members) and the Cuyahoga County Mayors and
Managers Association (3 members). The authority will determine location, size, financing and
operations of a new convention center. The authority must decide whether to rebuild the existing
facility or construct a new one. There are two sites under consideration. A state of the art
convention center could cost over $450 million. Funding will also have to be addressed. Planning
for a new downtown convention center has been put on hold pending determination as to whether a
medical merchandise mart is feasible in the city.

Another proposed project would revitalize the east bank of the area known as the Flats. The $230
million project would include mixed-use development composed of 300 housing units, split between
condominiums and apartments, and commercial components that include a movie theater, grocery
store, bookstore and other retail. The developer has encountered resistance from some Flats
business owners on the sale of their properties. The current timetable has a start date in 2006 with
construction beginning in 2007 and completion by the end of 2009.

The expansion of Cleveland Hopkins International Airport had been debated and disputed for
decades. Cleveland’s second runway was completed in 2002 at a cost of $50 million. In 2004,
Cleveland completed expansion of the new runway extending it 2,000 feet making it 9,000 feet in
total. The expanded runway allows Hopkins to handle more takeoffs and landings in a shorter
amount of time. The new runway expansion is the first major airfield expansion at Hopkins in more
than 50 years. The cost of $450 million was funded by bonds, which will be repaid by airport
revenue and secured grants from the Federal Aviation Administration. Hopkins can now
accommodate 525,000 takeoffs and landings a year instead of the previous 368,000.

Tyco International Ltd. (formerly Scott Technologies Inc. and Figgie International Incorporated)
agreed in 1989 to relocate its headquarters from Richmond, Virginia to an area known as Chagrin
Highlands on land owned by the city of Cleveland. The development on 650 acres will include a 3.5
million square foot office complex and 250,000 square feet of retail space as well as 1,000 hotel
rooms. Developers expect six hotels with one 300 room full service inn and the rest in the 80 to 120
room range to be constructed. The project is expected to take 15 to 20 years to complete and will
provide 16,000 to 20,000 permanent jobs when completed, generating $44 million yearly in income
taxes among five communities and $8 million in income taxes from construction jobs over the project
life. Ground was broken in June 1998 on the $14 million four story 112,000 square foot office
building and was completed in Fall 1999. Tyco occupies 15,000 square feet of the multi-tenant
building. University Hospitals Health System constructed a 100,000 square foot, four story
technology advanced outpatient specialty medical center in the Chagrin Highlands at an estimated
cost of $29.2 million which opened in February 2001. The project also includes a four story 114,000
square foot office building, an Extended Stay America hotel and a restaurant. A complex of 3
restaurants with a total of 810 seats has been proposed for the project. A 300 unit Marriott hotel was
being constructed in the Chagrin Highlands office and mixed-use development. Construction began
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during 2004 and was completed in summer 2005. The full service hotel includes 14,000 square feet
of meeting space, a 7,500 square foot ballroom that can accommodate 700 people and boardrooms.

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (RTA) proposed a scaled down version of an
earlier rejected transportation system now called the Euclid Corridor Improvement Project. The
Euclid Corridor Improvement Project consists of a dedicated electric trolley bus line between Tower
City and University Circle and will relocate 3 stations and renovate 3 others to be completed in 2008.
The Federal government previously approved $13 million to enable RTA to move ahead on the
$168.4 million bus-rapid transit line. RTA obtained almost 50% of the funding from the Federal
government. The remainder of the project will be funded by $50 million from the Ohio Department of
Transportation, $17.6 million from RTA, $10 million from the Northeast Ohio Area-wide Coordinating
Agency and $8 million from the city of Cleveland. Construction began in late 2004. In addition to the
actual Euclid Corridor project, there is related street work which will cost an estimated $21.4 million
and which will be done simultaneously. Various downtown Cleveland city streets have bus only
lanes for the first time.

While certain segments of the local economy have struggled recently, the health care industry has
had noticeable expansion. Greater Cleveland’s second largest health-care system, University
Hospital, is embarking on a $1 billion building spree that will expand emergency room services and
bring Northeast Ohio a free standing cancer hospital. In addition, the project will expand and
renovate its neonatal and emergency departments, implement an electronic medical records system,
build two new outpatient medical centers and expand cardiology and orthopedic services at three
hospitals in the eastern suburbs. The cancer hospital will generate 300 new jobs. The various
projects will be completed beginning in 2007 through 2009. The County’s largest hospital system,
the Cleveland Clinic, is spending $77 million on renovations and expansions at suburban sites in
addition to its $475 million heart center and $95 million Glickman Pavilion scheduled to open on its
main campus in 2008. Also, the Cleveland Clinic received $32.8 million from the State of Ohio’s
Third Frontier money. The Third Frontier is a program designed to promote high-tech research and
the new companies it generates. Of the money from the State, $22.8 million is to create the Atrial
Fibrillation Innovation Center, $6 million for macular degeneration research and $4 million for a
Clinical Tissue Engineering Center.

In November 2004, a lifestyle center on the west side of Cleveland called Crocker Park opened
some of its retail operations. Crocker Park is a pedestrian oriented, neo-traditional, mixed-use
planned unit development on 75 acres. It is comprised of 600,000 square feet of retail, 40,000
square feet of restaurants, 225,000 square feet of office and 900,000 square feet of residential
space consisting of loft apartments, townhouses and attached luxury homes. Crocker Park’s first
floor retail space is nearly all occupied and 70,000 square feet of office space and three quarters of
the 160 apartments are also occupied. The owners are ready for the next phase which will include
116 housing units on 21 acres. A 200 room boutique hotel is planned in 2007.

The Cleveland Museum of Art launched a plan for a $258 million expansion of the Museum’s 89 year
old complex. The Museum will be closed for six months in 2006. The first phase will cost $160
million and be completed in late 2008 with the opening of the new east wing. Phase two, which will
cost $98 million, will begin in 2008 and be completed in 2011. Gallery space overall will increase
almost 41 percent from 89,000 to 125,000 square feet and the Museum will increase from 398,000
to 588,000 square feet. ]

The largest development in the greater downtown area concerns a baseball stadium, basketball
arena and private development of land surrounding the area called the Gateway project. Gateway
Economic Development Corp. is a private nonprofit entity formed by an agreement between the city
of Cleveland and Cuyahoga County for the purpose of constructing and operating the baseball and
arena facilities. The County Commissioners authorized by resolution a public vote on an excise tax
on liquor, beer, wine and cigarettes (sin tax). The tax amounts to 16¢ on a gallon of beer, 32¢ on a
gallon of wine, $3 on a gallon of liquor and 4.5¢ on a pack of cigarettes imposed at the wholesale
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level throughout the County. The tax remained in existence for a period of 15 years. Upon
completion of the facilities, Gateway revealed a cost overrun of $21.5 million. The cost overruns
represented monies owed to contractors. Cuyahoga County agreed to loan Gateway $11.5 million
to pay contractor claims. The $11.5 million interest free loan was to be repaid with 10 year
commitments from the city of Cleveland for $.3 million per year, the Convention and Visitor's Bureau
for $.5 million per year and Gateway for $.4 million per year. None of the proposed repayment
sources have agreed to their respective contributions except the city of Cleveland which has agreed
to repay the County with interest earned on future sin tax monies, if any, supporting debt for the new
Cleveland Browns stadium beginning in the year 2006. The remaining $10 million was loaned to
Gateway by a local bank. Repayment was to come from a grant from the State of Ohio capital
budget. However, the state legislature agreed to provide a $10 million interest free loan to be repaid
by both the County and the city of Cleveland equally over 20 years from State Local Government
monies. During 2004, Gateway completed renegotiations on its stadium leases with the owners of
the Cleveland Indians and the Cleveland Cavaliers. The new 10 year agreements free the
organizations from covering minor repairs and routine maintenance. In addition, rent payments will
no longer be tied to ticket sales, and Gateway’s $4.9 million in expenses will be divided by the teams
annually after its budget is submitted in mid-November. Gateway agreed to give up- $1 million
annually in naming rights from the Indians until 2016. Gateway will only be responsible for items
over $.5 million. The Cavaliers had held Gateway responsible for all capital repairs of Quicken
Loans Arena (formerly Gund Arena) and deducted the amounts from rent. As part of the agreement,
the Cavaliers credit against rent which equaled $9.5 million is no longer Gateway’s responsibility. In
March 2005, the Cleveland Cavaliers were sold to a new group headed by Dan Gilbert, owner and
founder of Quicken Loans, the nation’s largest online home lender. The change in ownership is not
expected to impact the lease agreements with Gateway. In August 2005, the sin tax bonds were
retired and sin tax receipts were no longer being used for any activities related to Gateway.

In Summer 1995, the city of Cleveland passed a council resolution authorizing the imposition and
collection of an 8% parking tax on all public parking in Cleveland and a 2% admission tax on all
entertainment events for the purpose of funding a football stadium. The County agreed to fund a
portion of the cost of the project by extending the excise tax on beer, wine, alcohol and tobacco from
the year 2005 through 2015. The sin tax was originally approved to repay bonds used to build the
baseball stadium. Its life would have expired in the year 2005, when the sin tax bonds were retired.
The County Commissioners placed the 10 year tax extension on the ballot. During the fall campaign
to pass the tax, the owner of the Cleveland Browns, Art Modell, announced he was moving the team
to Baltimore. The tax passed with 75% of the vote in favor as a show of fan support for keeping the

Browns in Cleveland. The City sued Art Modell over a specific performance clause in the stadium .

lease, which required the Browns to play in the stadium during the life of the lease which expired
after the 1998 season. In January 1996, during National Football League (NFL) meetings in
Chicago, a compromise was reached whereby Art Modell was allowed to take his team to Baltimore
but the team name and colors would remain in Cleveland with a promise from the NFL that a new or
existing team would be located in Cleveland by the year 1999, and Modell would be required to pay
$9.3 million in damages. In return, the City agreed to build a new stadium with city and county taxes
passed for this purpose. Since the county and city taxes would not support the full cost of a new
stadium, the NFL agreed to loan up to $48 million to the project with repayment to come from the
sale of private seat licenses. A 30-year lease between the city of Cleveland and the NFL was
negotiated which gave the NFL the right to assign the lease to the new team. Demolition of
Municipal Stadium began in fall 1996. Groundbreaking on the new stadium commenced in May
1997 with the project originally estimated to cost $247 million. The stadium opened in August 1999
but cost overruns increased the price to almost $300 million. The NFL agreed to provide an
additional $15 million toward any overruns and the City has stated it has sufficient funding to cover
the remainder. The County began distributing its sin tax contribution in August 2005. The County
will contribute $87 million over 10 years for debt service. An additional $29 million will be earmarked
for repair and renovation. Any sin tax collections above $116 million will remain with the County and
be used to reimburse the County for Gateway debt.




Both the County Commissioners and the Juvenile Court judges agree that a new Juvenile Court and
Youth Detention Center are necessary but cannot agree on where to locate this new complex. The
site picked by the County Commissioners, which is four miles from their current site, is property
currently owned by the County and recently underwent some environmental remediation. The
Juvenile Court judges prefer a site closer to downtown. The Juvenile Court judges want the
Supreme Court of Ohio to order the County Commissioners to choose an alternative site for the new
juvenile courthouse based upon the advice and recommendation of Juvenile Court. The new joint
building facility is estimated to cost $120 million but the financing has not yet been determined.

The County Commissioners were seeking a site for a new County Administration building. The plan
was to consolidate and relocate the offices of the County Commissioners, the Auditor, the Treasurer,
the Recorder and the Board of Elections whose employees reside in four other buildings and to sell
the other buildings to help offset the cost of the new building. Itis also hoped that additional savings
can come from lower maintenance costs. The chosen site is currently vacant and the County has
purchased the building for $24.4 million, including an 850 space parking garage that generates $1.2
million in revenues annually. The new building would house nearly 2,000 employees. Construction
costs and plans remain to be determined. The purchase agreement requires the project to begin
within three years. Two of the County Commissioners want to demolish the 28 story tower and three
smaller buildings and put up a new tower. One Commissioner favors a less expensive plan to
renovate the current tower and build an adjoining tower.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

The County utilizes an automated accounting system, which provides the capability to prepare
financial information based on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) for governments. Financial Accounting and Management Information System,
known by the acronym FAMIS, is the enabling technology used for the County's accounting and
budgetary controls. All operations of the County, with the exception of the Hospital, use FAMIS.
Adequate internal accounting controls are an integral part of this system and are designed to
achieve the fundamental objectives of safeguarding assets and providing reasonable assurance that
financial transactions are properly recorded.

The County's day-to-day accounting and budgetary records are maintained on a basis other than
GAAP. For financial reporting purposes, the accounting records are converted to the modified
accrual basis for all Governmental funds for the governmental fund financial statements and the
accrual basis for the government-wide financial statements and the Proprietary and Fiduciary funds.
A further discussion of the two bases of accounting and their reconciliation can be found in Note B of
the notes to the financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Investment Advisory Committee, comprised of three County Commissioners, the Clerk of Courts
and the County Treasurer, establishes investment policies and monitors all investment activity.
Public Financial Management, Inc. (PFM) provides investment advisory services. Amendments to
Ohio Revised Code Section 135 (Senate Bill 81) now restrict the type and length of investments and
require ongoing investment training for County Treasurers.

The County Treasurer, through a change in State statute, contracted for the sale of delinquent
property tax receivables. A delinquent sale which occurred in 2005 resulted in an additional $.8
million of delinquent tax collection. In addition, there was an increase in collections of prior tax
delinquencies because taxpayers wished to settle past due taxes with the County rather than deal
with a private owner of the receivable. A delinquent property tax sale took place in May 2006 and




netted $3.4 million. The buyer has also continued to purchase subsequent tax liens for
delinquencies previously obtained.

The County Treasurer has established a linked deposit loan program for the purpose of enhancing
housing in participating cities. The County has entered into agreements with certain eligible lending
institutions and local communities to provide loans at below market interest rates to owners of real
property located in the contracting community for certain housing repairs and improvements. After a
linked deposit loan is made to an eligible borrower, the Treasurer will use monies from the County’s
portfolio of inactive funds to place a certificate of deposit with the lending institution at below market
rates. The contracting community is responsible for inspecting the improvements to ensure their
compliance with local building codes. More than 5,600 homeowners have borrowed over $70 million
since the program’s inception in July 1999. The County believes increases in property values
resulting from the loan program will eventually bring additional revenues to the County.

A similar linked deposit program was established in 2002 to provide low interest home improvement
loans to owners of older and historic properties. The Preservation Resource Center of the Cleveland
Restoration Society provides assistance to property owners and monitors home improvements
completed through this program. Since its inception, 224 loans have been issued amounting to $7.5
million.

It is the policy of the County Treasurer that all deposits be covered either by insurance or
collateralized. The collateral is held by the pledging institution's agent in the name of the depository
or the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland in pooled securities accounts consisting of government
securities. The County's investment policy objectives consider safety, liquidity and yield. Before a
security is purchased, the cash flow needs of the County and the cash flow forecast are analyzed.
Key factors of decision making on the purchase of securities include type, term to maturity, principal
value and rate of return.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County has designated $2 million of General fund balance to provide reserves for claims and
judgements not covered by various County insurance policies. Settled claims from risks covered by
the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three fiscal
years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County and estimates for claims
including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial in 2005. The County is also self-insured
with respect to the Ohio Unemployment Compensation program. Self-insurance expenditures for
unemployment compensation were not material in 2005. The County maintains an Internal Service
fund for the self-insurance of workers compensation through a retrospective rating plan with the
State of Ohio. All payroll funds in the County contribute to the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation
fund based on estimates needed to pay claims and to establish a reserve for claims incurred but not
reported. The County also maintains one self-insured medical plan and prescription drug plan. The
estimates for unsettled claims including those incurred but not reported are recorded in the General
fund.

THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report is an unqualified audit opinion rendered on the County's basic financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 by our independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche
LLP. County management will continue to subject the financial statements to an annual independent
audit as part of the preparation of the CAFR. An annual audit serves to help maintain and
strengthen the County's accounting and budgetary controls.
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The County participates in the Federal "Single Audit" program, which consists of a single audit of all
federal and federal flow-through funded programs administered by the County. As a requirement for
continued federal funding eligibility, congressional legislation has made participation in the single
audit program mandatory for a majority of local governments including Cuyahoga County.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The County of Cuyahoga’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report
of the'independent auditors.

GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Cuyahoga, Ohio for
its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

AWARD

In May 2006, the Auditor of State, Betty Montgomery, awarded the Cuyahoga County Auditor, Frank
Russo, the “Auditor of State Award” for the 2004 and 2003 audited financial reports. The award
recognizes Cuyahoga County for excellent financial accountability and outstanding commitment to
the highest standards of financial reporting. The award is given to fewer then five percent of all
agencies audited by the Auditor of State.
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financial reporting staff of the County Auditor's Office. We would like to express appreciation to each
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Budget and Management. We would also like to thank Frank Russo, County Auditor, who has
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Suite 3300

127 Public Square
Cleveland, OH 44114-1291
USA

Tel: +1 216 589 1300
Fax: +1 216 589 1369
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County of Cuyahoga, Ohio (the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 31,
2005, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the MetroHealth Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation’), which represents 3% of the
assets, 8% of the net assets, and 8% of the change in net assets of the discretely presented component unit,
The MetroHealth System. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely
presented component unit, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
respective financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, such financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of December 31, 2005, and the respective changes
in financial position and respective cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund, Human Services Fund, Health and Human Services Levies Fund,
County Board of Mental Retardation Fund, and Health and Community Services Fund, for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note B to the financial statements, The MetroHealth System changed its method of
accounting for conditional asset retirement obligations in 2005.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 15 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the County’s management. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit such information and we do not express an opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the County’s basic financial
statements. The accompanying introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the
County’s management. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

:Dt-Qa;Ite € Tonatre LLP

June 8, 2006



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Cuyahoga County, we offer readers of Cuyahoga County’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Cuyahoga County for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letters of transmittal, which can
be found on pages iv-xii of this report.

Financial Highlights

¢ The assets of Cuyahoga County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $739.1 million (net assets).

e The government’s total net assets increased by $101.2 million.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $403.3 million, an increase of $39.2 million in comparison
with the prior year. Approximately 85% of this total amount, $342.4 million, is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $134
million, or 43.1% of total general fund expenditures.

e Additions to Cuyahoga County’s total debt were $81.7 million during the current fiscal year.
Reductions in debt during 2005 amounted to $103 million for a net decrease of $21.3 million.
The County replaced existing debt (bond anticipation note) with new debt (sewer bond) and
refinanced (advance refunded) existing debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Cuyahoga County’s basic
financial statements. Cuyahoga County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Cuyahoga County’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Cuyahoga County is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Cuyahoga County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and




charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of Cuyahoga County include general
government, judicial, development, social services, health and safety and public works. The
business-type activities of Cuyahoga County include a sanitary sewer authority, an airport, a parking
garage and a crime information system.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Cuyahoga County itself (known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate hospital for which Cuyahoga County is financially
accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 — 19 of the report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Cuyahoga
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Cuyahoga County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government'’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Cuyahoga County maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general, human services, health and human
services levies, county board of mental retardation and health and community services funds which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other five governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Cuyahoga County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and the other major
funds as well as the motor vehicle gas tax and debt service funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 — 29 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. Cuyahoga County uses enterprise funds to account for its sanitary sewer,
airport, parking garage and crime information system. Internal service funds are an accounting




device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among Cuyahoga County’s various
functions. Cuyahoga County uses internal service funds to account for its central custodial,
maintenance garage, data processing, printing, reproduction and supplies, communications and self-
funded workers’ compensation services. As these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
sanitary engineer which is considered to be a major fund of Cuyahoga County. Conversely, the
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 — 33 of this report.

Fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support Cuyahoga County’s
own programs.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 34 of this report.

Budgetary fund financial statements. The County’'s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The budgetary statements for the general fund and all annually budgeted major
special revenue funds are presented to demonstrate the County’s compliance with annually adopted
budgets.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 35 — 70 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain other supplementary information. The combining statements referred to
earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds and internal
service funds are presented in the other supplementary information. Combining and individual fund
statements and schedules can be found on pages 72 — 112 of this report.




Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of Cuyahoga County, assets exceeded liabilities by $739.1 million at the close
of the most recent fiscal year. This is the fourth year for Cuyahoga County in implementing
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. This statement requires
a comparative analysis of government-wide data in the Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) section.

Cuyahoga County’s Net Assets
(December 31; amounts in 000's)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Current and other assets............... $ 908,644 $ 841,777 $ 11,782 $ 13,898 $ 920,426 $ 855,675
Capital assets.......ccceceeeercereennnen. 634,954 619,334 50,065 44,165 685,019 663,499

Total assets......ccceeeeeveeeiiiciiinnnns 1,543,598 1,461,111 61,847 58,063 1,605,445 1,519,174
Long-term liabilities outstanding.... 430,594 464,502 12,199 14,380 442,793 478,882
Other liabilities...........cevvvvveveveeeennnn. 422,578 400,964 946 1,364 423,524 402,328

Total liabilities..........ccceevvvrvnnnnnnns 853,172 865,466 13,145 15,744 866,317 881,210
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt..........eeveeeeeeeeeeieiiieennnns 386,234 350,959 38,866 31,236 425,100 382,195
Restricted..........cooovvveieiiii 35,678 38,995 35,678 38,995
unrestricted...........coeevvveeeeeeeeeinnns 268,514 205,691 9,836 11,083 278,350 216,774

Total net assets.......cccecevvvvvneen.. $ 690426 $ 595645 $ 48,702 $ 42,319 $ 739,128 $ 637,964

At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities.

By far the largest portion of Cuyahoga County’s net assets (57.5%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding. Cuyahoga County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Cuyahoga County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of Cuyahoga County’s net assets, restricted net assets (4.8%), represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance
of unrestricted net assets ($278.4 million) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Current and other assets increased due primarily to the growth in cash balances of the general fund,
health and human services levies fund, county board of mental retardation fund and health and
community services fund amounting to $12.9 million, $23.3 million, $30.9 million and $22.1 million,
respectively. The general fund increase was due to less money being needed to be transferred for




human services and capital projects subsidies and increased investment earnings. The replacement
health and welfare levy passed in 2003 and commenced collection in 2004. This alleviated the
general fund’'s obligation to fund human services. In 2004, the general fund supported various
capital projects including the purchase of Whiskey Island for $4 million which was not needed in
2005. The health and human services levy fund cash balance grew as a result of the State of Ohio
changing its allocation method for Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) which
alleviated some of the need in 2005 to subsidize the human services funds. The county board of
mental retardation fund cash increase was due to settlement of prior year audits of the Community
Alternative Funding System (CAFS) program amounting to $13.8 million and three new programs
including Developmental Disabilities Active Treatment. The health and community services fund
cash balance increased due to additional subsidies not yet allocated to programs and decreases in
spending for children in foster care placement as more children were adopted. Some of the cash
increases were offset by the large draw down of funds in the capital projects funds primarily due to
the purchase of the new County Administration building and parking garage amounting to $24.4
million.

Other liabilities increased due primarily to the higher volume in childcare services, new programs in
human services for early start, the Tinker's Creek Project in community development beginning at
the end of 2005 and Medicaid increases for the mental health board. The capital assets in the
Business-type activities increased due to the purchase of a new county parking garage.

Overall, the net increase in capital assets of the governmental activities (exclusive of internal
services funds) grew by $17.3 million while net long-term debt (exclusive of internal services funds
and inclusive of accrued interest payable and unamortized bond issuance costs) were reduced by
$38 million which accounted for a $55.3 million increase in governmental activities net assets.




CUYAHOGA COUNTY’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(Year ended December 31; amounts in 000's)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for ServiCes ........cccccvvevveerveeneennnen. $ 96,837 $ 98,354 $ 16,977 $15468 $ 113,814 $ 113,822
Operating grants and contributions ............. 622,402 578,794 308 145 622,710 578,939
Capital grants, contributions and interest.... 36,289 25,305 6,160 42,449 25,305
General revenues:
Property taxes......cccoceeviiiiiiiii 313,675 315,172 313,675 315,172
Sales and other taxes 194,487 197,562 194,487 197,562
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs ...........cccceeeeuee 41,838 41,982 41,838 41,982
(©]1 01T O 69,101 64,598 43 102 69,144 64,700
Total reVENUES .....cooeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 1,374,629 1,321,767 23,488 15,715 1,398,117 1,337,482
Expenses:
General government .........ccccceveveeeeiieeennne 81,196 69,154 81,196 69,154
Judicial ...oooeeeeiieiiieiceec, 297,292 292,417 297,292 292,417
Development..........cccvvvee.. 31,653 32,524 31,653 32,524
Social Services.........o......... 580,962 570,871 580,962 570,871
Health and safety 207,386 178,342 207,386 178,342
Public works........cccccveveveees 64,765 59,421 64,765 59,421
INEErESt...coi i, 15,932 18,412 15,932 18,412
Sanitary ENgineer.........ccccvveeeieiiiciiiieneeee 11,293 9,604 11,293 9,604
PN (o To] ¢ AP 1,697 1,302 1,697 1,302
Huntington Park Garage 2,299 2,418 2,299 2,418
Cuyahoga County Information System........ 2,478 2,773 2,478 2,773
Total EXPENSES....c.vvvveeeieeiiieee e 1,279,186 1,221,141 17,767 16,097 1,296,953 1,237,238
Increase (Decrease) in net assets
before transfers.......ccccccvevivii 95,443 100,626 5,721 (382) 101,164 100,244
Transfers.....cooeeeeeeeeeeeevvnnnnnn.. (662) (2,811) 662 2,811
Change in net assets 94,781 97,815 6,383 2,429 101,164 100,244
Net assets — Beginning of year ...................... 595,645 497,830 42,319 39,890 637,964 537,720
Net assets — End of year.........ccccceevveeeveennnn. $690,426 $ 595,645 $ 48,702 $42,319 $ 739,128 $ 637,964

The County’s revenues and expenses grew proportionately by $60.6 million and $59.7 million,
respectively. The County’s net assets increased by $101.2 million. The State changed its
methodology for computing the allocation of TANF dollars to counties, which resulted in an increase
in allocations to the human services fund of approximately $27 million. This resulted in the health
and human services levy fund not needing to allocate a portion of its $23.3 million balance. The
money will be used for subsidies in future years. There was also an increase in the county board of
mental retardation balance of $28.9 million because of new federal programs amounting to $8.9
million and an audit reconciliation settlement related to the CAFS program amounting to $13.8
million. There were also new programs related to Early Childhood.

Overall, the purchase and construction of capital assets offset by the reduction of long-term debt
accounted for a significant part of the change in net assets.




Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

(Amounts in 000’s) %
a. Charges for ServiCes.......ccoovvrrirrieerieeieareanes $ 96,837 7.0
b. Operating Grants and Contributions.................. 622,402 45.3
c. Capital Grants, Contributions and Interest......... 36,289 2.6
d. Property TaX...oooieeeeiiiieieeeeeeeciiiiee e eevnvee s 313,675 22.8
€. SAIES TAX cevuiiiiiiiiiee e 167,125 12.2
f. Other TaX coueveiiiiee e 27,362 2.0
g. State Local Government...........ccccceeeeeiiiiiineeen. 38,131 2.8
h. Grants and Contributions not restricted
to specific programs. ..........cccceevvveeeinieeeeninnenn. 41,838 3.0
[T © 1 Y PSSR 30,970 2.3
Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
(Amounts in 000's)
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

d

b. a.
(Amounts in 000’s) %
a. Charges for Services .......cccccceeeeviniiiiennenn. $16,977 72.3
b. Operating Grants and Contributions .......... 308 1.3
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased Cuyahoga County’s net assets by
$94.8 million. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e The increase in the health and human services levy fund resulted from the State allocating
additional TANF monies amounting to approximately $27 million for human services which offset
some of the planned subsidy payments. The balance in the health and human services levy
fund will be drawn down in future years.

e The increase in the county board of mental retardation fund resulted primarily from new federal
grant programs amounting to $8.9 million and an increase in the CAFS program revenue of
$13.8 million due to an audit reconciliation in 2005 for 2004.

e Reductions of long-term debt of $38 million while adding additional assets amounting to $17.3
million grew net assets by $55.3 million.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased Cuyahoga County’s net assets by
$6.4 million. The key element of this increase is the purchase of a $6 million Administration building
parking garage which was purchased through a capital project fund to be financed by a future bond
issue.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Cuyahoga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Cuyahoga County’'s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information
is useful in assessing Cuyahoga County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $403.3 million, an increase of $39.2 million in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately $342.4 million constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that
it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed (1) for restricted assets
($25.8 million), (2) for loans ($19.7 million) or (3) to pay debt service ($15.4 million).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Cuyahoga County. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $134 million, while fund balance reached
$170.2 million. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 43.1% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
54.7% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the Cuyahoga County’s general fund, health and human services levy fund,
county board of mental retardation fund and health and community services fund each increased by
$7.5 million, $25.9 million, $28.9 million and $12.7 million, respectively. The capital projects fund
had a decrease in fund balance of $30.9 million. The key factors in these changes are as follows:

e The general fund increase of $9 million in investment earnings due to rising interest rates and a
higher average daily balance.
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e The general fund subsidies decreased by $37.6 million in 2005 due to increased subsidy to the
human services funds from the health and human service levy fund instead of the general fund,
a difference of $22.3 million. There were also less subsides needed for various capital projects.

e There was a $7.3 million decrease in revenues for indirect costs due to a smoothing calculation
for 2005 and a one time payment in 2004 of $9.2 million for the settlement of a non-prosecution
agreement in the general fund.

e The health and human services levy fund balance increased by $25.9 million partially due to the
increased amount of TANF allocation from the State for the human services fund. The
remainder is is due to planned future draw downs.

e The increase in the county board of mental retardation fund of $28.9 million is due to an increase
in other intergovernmental revenue for new federal grant programs along with the $13.8 million
audit reconciliation settlement.

e The $12.7 million increase in health and community services was a result of a $2.3 million
increase to the alcohol and drug board for new programs and a $7.8 million decrease in
expenditures in children’s services fund due to fewer children in foster care.

e The decrease of $30.9 million in fund balance in the capital projects fund resulted from ongoing
construction in various projects and the purchase of the new County administration building for
$24.4 million.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the sanitary engineer at the end of the year amounted to $8.4 million and
all others amounted to $1.2 million. The total increase in net assets for the sanitary engineer was
$1.1 million and all others amounted to $5.3 million. Other factors concerning the finances of these
two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of Cuyahoga County's business-type
activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $15.2 million and
differences between the final amended budged and the actual expenditures were $12.3 million. The
variances can be briefly summarized as follows:

e The change in original verses final budget was a result of $1.4 million increase in Board Care of
Prisoners, an increase in Information Services Center charges amounting to $4 million and
additional personnel costs in Juvenile Court-Legal and Sheriff's office amounting to $5 million.

e The operating transfers increases of $6.5 million includes increases in subsidy payments for
Certificate of Title Administration, County Planning Commission, CRIS and Youth Services and
an increase of the subsidy for repayment of the assessment fund for Board of Revision. There
was also an increase in the cash match for the Justice Affairs Department and the general fund
support of the Geo Information systems.

e The positive variance in final budget versus actual expenditures was a result of not being
required to use the amount reserved for the Gateway Bond Guarantee and to lower than
anticipated claims for self-insurance, space maintenance charges being less than anticipated
and the Veterans Services Commission not making anticipated expenditures.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Cuyahoga County’'s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of December 31, 2005, amounts to $685 million (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings structures
and improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and construction in
progress. The net increase in Cuyahoga County’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal
year was 3.2% (a 2.5% increase for governmental activities and a 13.4% increase for business-type
activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

CUYAHOGA COUNTY’'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(December 31; net of depreciation, amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Land......ccocoeeeiiniiiiiie e $ 52959 $ 44535 $ 7,753 $ 5,752 $ 60,712 $ 50,287
Land improvements................. 10,816 10,485 2,413 2,658 13,229 13,143
Utility plant ........ccccoooiiiieeneenn. 25,651 26,639 25,651 26,639
Buildings, structures and

improvements..........ccccveeeennn. 311,699 305,279 11,004 6,742 322,703 312,021
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment .............cceveeee. 12,545 13,919 351 243 12,896 14,162
Vehicles ... 4,343 4,035 953 961 5,296 4,996
Infrastructure..........ococeevvineens 191,138 199,601 191,138 199,601
Construction in progress ......... 51,454 41,480 1,940 1,170 53,394 42,650
Total ..o $ 634954 $ 619,334 $ 50,065 $ 44,165 $ 685,019 $.663,499

The County was involved in a number of construction projects and purchases that resulted in the
capitalization of various assets in 2005. Under construction was the Pleasant Valley Road bridge
and Wolf Road bridge amounting to $8.1 million and $1.8 million respectively. Improvements to
safety for the county courthouse amounting to $1.8 million and the construction of a new youth
intervention center amounting to $2.8 million were some of the other larger projects. The County
purchased the marina portion of Whiskey Island for $2.3 million and a property that will be the future
County administration building amounting to $12.3 million for the building and $6.1 million for the
land.

The Business-type activities increases in capital assets were due primarily to the purchase of a new
parking garage associated with the new County administration building and the land under the
garage amounting to $4.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. In addition, some land amounting to
$.8 million was purchased for use by the county airport.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s capital assets can be found in Note E on pages 49 —
51 of this report.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County had total bonded debt
outstanding of $341.3 million. Of this amount, $224.9 million comprises debt backed by the full faith
and credit of the government and $6.5 million is special assessment debt for which the government
is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment. The remainder of
Cuyahoga County’s debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e.,
revenue bonds) and other debt such as loans and an installment purchase agreement financed by
non-tax sources.

Cuyahoga County’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Other Long-term Debt
(December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

General obligation bonds .............. $ 224861 $ 241445 $ $ $ 224861 $ 241,445
Special assessment debt with

governmental commitment........... 6,505 2,250 6,505 2,250
Revenue bonds.........cccccccveevnnennn. 109,950 113,735 109,950 113,735
Bond anticipation notes................. 5,950 5,950
LOANS .evvveiiveeeeciiee e 5,752 3,054 4,694 4,729 10,446 7,783
Installment purchase agreements. 7,881 9,808 7,881 9,808
Total oo $ 348444 $ 368,042 $ 11,199 $ 12,929 $ 359,643 $380,971

Cuyahoga County’s total debt decreased by $21.3 million (5.6%) during the current fiscal year. The
County refinanced some general obligation bonds and replaced its bond anticipation notes with
sewer bonds. The reduction was primarily the result of paying down its debt.

Cuyahoga County maintained a “AA+” rating from Standard & Poor’s, “AAA” from Fitch and a “Aal”
rating from Moody’s for general obligation debt. The revenue bonds have been rated “Aa3” by
Moody'’s.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 1%
of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation (voted and unvoted) for Cuyahoga County
is $571.8 million which is significantly in excess of Cuyahoga County’s outstanding general
obligation debt.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s long-term debt can be found in Note F on pages 52 -
60 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

o The unemployment rate for Cuyahoga County is currently 6.1%, compared to 6.2% a year ago.

e The region’s commercial real estate sales amounted to $1.25 billion in 2005 which represented a
73% increase from the $723 million in 2004. Northeast Ohio climbed to 44™ position in the
nation in dollar volume sales in 2005 up from 51°* place in 2004.
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e The 2001 recession and its aftermath caused Cuyahoga County to lose more jobs than any
other county in the state from 2000 to 2005. Cuyahoga County lost almost 76,000 jobs, or
approximately 37% of the overall jobs lost in Ohio.

Each of these factors were considered in preparing Cuyahoga County’s budget for the 2005 fiscal
year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased $9.1 million.
Various factors including reduction in subsidies to human services and capital projects and growth in
investment earnings contributed to this increase.

The County purchased a new administration building for $24.4 million including a parking garage for
future use after renovation. Various County department will be relocated to the new site. The
County will issue debt to cover the purchase and renovation costs.

The County partially refunded some general obligation bonds, replaced its bond anticipation notes
with a bond and paid down debt.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’'s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Frank
Russo, Cuyahoga County Auditor, Cuyahoga County, 1219 Ontario Street, Room 121, Cleveland,
Ohio 44113.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-Type MetroHealth
Activities Activities Total System
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments............c.cccevenereciinienns 344,819 $ 9,534 $ 354,353 $ 4,381
Cash and investments-segregated accounts...............ccccceveennes 233,196
Receivables:
Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles)............c.cccccvevvennen 346,835 346,835
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 608 282 890 53,331
Special assessments (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 2,243 2,243
Accrued interest 4,067 4,067
Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles). 19,739 19,739
Net receivables.... 371,249 2,525 373,774 53,331
Internal balances 718 (718)
Due from other governments. 155,607 399 156,006
Inventory of supplies 43 16 59 5,891
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 21,870
OthEr @SSEtS.......cuiiiiiiiiiicicec e 6,706 26 6,732 5,652
Restricted assets:
Cash and iNVESIMENES...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 29,502 29,502 58,472
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
LaN.....ooiii e 52,959 7,753 60,712 9,377
Land improvements. 10,816 2,413 13,229 909
Utility plant. 25,651 25,651
Buildings, structures and improvements. 311,699 11,004 322,703 189,922
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 12,545 351 12,896 42,910
Vebhicles 4,343 953 5,296 6,179
Infrastructure. 191,138 191,138
Construction in progress 51,454 1,940 53,394 13,964
Net Capital ASSELS. .......ccviiiiiiiiie e 634,954 50,065 685,019 263,261
TOTAL ASSETS ..ooveeeeeeeeeeee e 1,543,598 61,847 1,605,445 646,054
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. .....viiiiiiiieieiieiee e 72,856 778 73,634 24,701
Unearned revenue 315,662 315,662
Due to other governments.. 20,444 8 20,452
Accrued wages and benefits.. 10,704 136 10,840 28,771
Matured bonds payable... 14 14
Other liabilities 800 24 824 10,957
Accrued interest payable............cccoooeeiiiiiii s 2,098 2,098 2,656
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 44,756 1,204 45,960 45,746
Due in more than one year.. 385,838 10,995 396,833 292,843
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...ttt 853,172 13,145 866,317 405,674
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..............cccceceeneen. 386,234 38,866 425,100 68,571
Restricted for:
Restricted assets-expendable..............ccceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 20,255 20,255 10,848
Restricted assets-nonexpendable. 5,864
Debt service.. 15,423 15,423 36,359
Unrestricted 268,514 9,836 278,350 118,738
TOTAL NET ASSETS.. oottt 690,426 $ 48,702 $ 739,128 $ 240,380

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Charges for
Functions/Programs Expenses Services
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:

GENETAI GOVEIMIMENT. ... eeeet ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e et ettt e et e e e e e e e e s e e e e bbb et eeeeeeaeaeeas $ 81,196 $ 67,738
Judicial...........cooeveennnn. 297,292 20,831
Development 31,653 204
IS Yo Yot = Y <Y V7 o = 580,962 4,160
HeEAIth @Nd SAFELY.....u i et 207,386 1,688
Public works.........cccccueeeene... 64,765 2,216
Interest on long-term debt 15,932
Total governmental ACHIVItIES. .. ......uuuuiii et eeeees 1,279,186 96,837
Business-type activities:
SE-TaT eV =l aTo 11 =TT PSPPSR PPPPP 11,293 12,480
a1 oL o S PP POPPRPPPPPN 1,697 945
HUNEINGLON PArk Garage........cceeiiiiiiiiiee e eeee ettt e e e e e e e e e eeetb e e e e e e eeeaees 2,299 2,368
Cuyahoga County Information System.. 2,478 1,184
Total bUSINESS-tYPE ACHVItIES. .....uuuiiii ettt eeeeeees 17,767 16,977
Total Primary gOVEIMIMENT. ....coouiiuiiiiiii ettt ettt e e e ettt b s e e e e e e e eeanbaaaaans $ 1,296,953 $ 113,814
Component unit:
MErOHEAIN SYSTEIM.....uiii e et e et e e e e e e e eeeaea $ 592,080 $ 523,950

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Operating Capital Grants, Business- Component Unit
Grants and Contributions and Governmental Type MetroHealth
Contributions Interest Activities Activities Totals System
18 $ 14,598 $ 1,158 $ $ 1,158 $
48,358 (228,103) (228,103)
22,883 (8,566) (8,566)
410,817 (165,985) (165,985)
140,160 (65,538) (65,538)
166 21,691 (40,692) (40,692)
(15,932) (15,932)
622,402 36,289 (523,658) (523,658)
1,187 1,187
308 43 (401) (401)
6,117 6,186 6,186
(1,294) (1,294)
308 6,160 5,678 5,678
622,710 $ 42,449 (523,658) 5,678 (517,980)
43,530 $ 712 (23,888)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property. 313,675 313,675
Sales and use... 167,125 167,125
27,362 27,362
Unrestricted state local government fund. 38,131 38,131
Unrestricted investment earnings 17,147 18 17,165 10,290
Grants and contributions
not restricted to specific programs...........cccccceeee.. 41,838 41,838
Miscellaneous... 13,823 25 13,848 26,346
Transfers.. (662) 662
Total general revenues, and transfers.... 618,439 705 619,144 36,636
Change in net assets 94,781 6,383 101,164 12,748
Net assets-beginning of year (See Note B)... 595,645 42,319 637,964 227,632
Net assets-end of Year........cccovevvvverviieieceeieeeene $ 690,426 $ 48,702 $ 739,128 $ 240,380
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Health and County
Human Board of
General Human Services Mental
Fund Services Levies Retardation
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments..............ccccveviene. $ 70,437 $ $ 39,178 $ 63,900
Receivables:
Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles).................... 60,176 154,334 96,196
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles) ............... 251
ACCIUE INLEIESE ... 4,067
Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..................... 1,000
Net receiVabIes.........cccueecvei i 65,494 154,334 96,196
Due from other funds............ccooeiiiiiiiiiieeeen 40,981 42,977
Due from other governments...........cccocevveiienieiiennennne. 24,837 71,368 7,757 9,440
Restricted assets -
Cash and iNVeStMEeNtS..........ccoocvviiiiniiice e 29,502
TOTAL ASSETS. ..ot $_ 231251 $ 71,368 $ 244246 $ 169,536
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable..........cccooviirininee e $ 4,424 % 17,460 $ $ 3,750
Deferred reVENUE............cveiirieriiisiie e 47,143 160,850 100,383
Due to other funds..........cccevieiiiiiiiiieeee e 3,307 51,879 1,038
Due to Other gOVEIMMENTS.........ceviveirierieiireseeenienieiens
Accrued wages and benefits...........cccoeiiiiiiiinicneen. 5,368 2,029 1,476
Matured bonds payable............cccoeiiiiiiniiiicic
Other Liabilities.......ccceiviiiiiie e 800
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt e 61,042 71,368 160,850 106,647
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
ReStrCted aSSeLS. ... .ccuviiveiiieie e 25,756
Loans receivabl..........ccoveiiieeiiee e 1,000
DEDt SEIVICE. ... .ot 9,480
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund:
Designated for self-insurance............ccccooeviinnennen. 1,978
Designated for proprietary funds............c.ccocevvereiene 1,961
UNdeSIignated..........coouveviiieeriieiieiee e 130,034
Special Revenue FUNdS...........ccoovriiiiieiieiie e 83,396 62,889
Capital Projects FUNd...........coccovviiiiniiniciieicee e
TOTAL FUND BALANCES .......ccooiiniiirireieneeeenree 170,209 83,396 62,889
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES................ $__ 231251 $ 71368 $ 244246 $ 169,536

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Health

and Other Total
Community Governmental Governmental
Services Funds Funds
79,190 $ 32,761 $ 285,466
12,204 23,925 346,835
356 607
4,067
18,739 19,739
12,560 42,664 371,248
83,958
11,715 29,762 154,879
29,502
103,465 $ 105,187 $ 925,053
30,561 $ 14,467 $ 70,662
12,106 30,827 351,309
18,323 11,627 86,174
2,728 2,728
824 369 10,066
14 14
800
61,814 60,032 521,753
25,756
18,739 19,739
5,943 15,423
1,978
1,961
130,034
41,651 28,715 216,651
(8,242) (8,242)
41,651 45,155 403,300

103,465 $ 105,187 $ 925,053
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Total fund balances for governmental fUNAS. ..........coocuiiiiiiiiii e $

Capital assets used in governmental activities (excluding internal service fund capital
assets) are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds...........cc.ccccooeviiiiiiiicnnnen..

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred inN the fUNAS............ooiiiii e

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement Of NET ASSELS.........cc.uiiiiiiiii e
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest payable,

are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

ACCIUE INTEIEST PAYADIE. ... ..ttt ettt et e e e e ettt et e e e e e e e e s n bt et et e eeeeaaeeeeeeaeeeeeenneneneee (2,098)
Long-term debt (425,471)
Unamortized DONd ISSUANCE COSES.......ooiiiiiiiiiiieee e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e tabaaneeeaas 6,706

TOTAL NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.......ccciiiiiiiii e $

403,300

627,728

35,647

44,614

(420,863)

690,426

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Property taXeS......ccuuiiiui i
Sales and USe taX...........ccevvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
(@] 4 =T = ST
State local government fund..............cccccveiiiiiiiiiiiiineens
Licenses and PermitS.........ccouuuiiieeiiiiiiineeeeeiiie e eeeeeenns
Charges for SEIVICES. .......ccuuuuuuiiieiiiiiii e
Fines and forfeitures............ccoooviiiiiiii e,
Investment earnings.............couvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeieens
Other intergovernmental............cccoeeviiiiiiiiieiiineeie e,
MiISCEIlIANEOUS........uiiiiiiiii e
TOTAL REVENUES........cotiiiiiiiei e

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General gOVEIMMENT. .......ccuuvuiuiiieaeiiiiie e e e e e e
Judicial
DeVeloOPMENT.........oiiiiiiiiiie e
SOCIAl SEIVICES. ...ovuiiiiiiiiiii et
Health and safety
Public works............cc.......

Capital OUtIaY............eeviiiiiiiiiii s

Debt service:

Principal retirement.............cceiiieiiiiiiiiecceeeeee
INnterest..........ooviviiieennnns
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES..........cctviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiennes

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TranSTers iN.....o e
Transfers out:

Issuance of refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.....................
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)........

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..........................

FUND BALANCES AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR............oooiiii

FUND BALANCES AT
END OF YEAR.......ooiiiiiiiiiii e,

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Health and County
Human Board of
General Human Services Mental
Fund Services Levies Retardation
$ 21,793 $ $ 169,249 $ 85,915
167,156
7 59 30
38,548
86
64,652 1,903 1,967
7,713
15,510 90
24,043 278,428 23,328 110,195
1,961 458 1,489
341,469 280,789 192,636 199,686
66,433
230,914
6,595
5,836 319,975 170,857
1,370 35,000
25
311,173 319,975 35,000 170,857
30,296 (39,186) 157,636 28,829
1,144 39,414 41
(5,737)
(18,224) (228) (131,693)
(22,817) 39,186 (131,693) 41
7,479 25,943 28,870
162,730 57,453 34,019
$ 170,209 $ 0% 83,396 $ 62,889
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Health and Total
Community Other Governmental
Services Governmental Funds
$ 13,839 $ 22,879 $ 313,675
167,156
28,587 28,683
38,548
1,729 1,815
18,390 86,912
186 250 8,149
802 1,457 17,859
177,308 89,934 703,236
3,069 6,872 13,849
215,323 149,979 1,379,882
17,604 85 84,122
45,485 17,378 293,777
5,041 20,672 32,308
87,437 3,718 587,823
151,034 19,975 207,379
1,948 56,433 58,381
38,981 38,981
22,851 22,851
16,450 16,475
308,549 196,543 1,342,097
(93,226) (46,564) 37,785
106,787 20,517 167,903
(5,737)
(843) (9,801) (160,789)
80,020 80,020
(80,020) (80,020)
105,944 10,716 1,377
12,718 (35,848) 39,162
28,933 81,003 364,138
$ 41,651 $ 45155 $ 403,300
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Net change in fund balances-total governmental fUNAS...........c.cooiiiiiiiii s $ 39,162
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the cost of those assets that meet capitalization requirements

is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capital outlays ($50,917) exceeded depreciation ($33,651) in the current period................ 17,266

Net effect of sales and other disposals Of Capital ASSELS.........cciuiiiiiiiiiiieie e (23)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues iN the fUNAS. ..ot (2,215)

Expenses reported as compensated absences and special termination benefits in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in goVErNMENTAL fUNDS..........iiiii ittt ettt et e et e e ssbe e sbe e e beembeesbeeenbeeenneenneeenees 15,757

Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the governmental funds, but is
reported as incurred in the statemMent Of ACHVILIES..........cuiiiiiiiiii e 566

The issuance of long-term debt, (notes, bonds, capital leases, etc.) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds and is not reported in the statement of activities. ..........c.ccccceeverieenennne (76,389)

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Capital [€aSe ODIIGALIONS. ........c.oviiiiiiie e e e 1,545
Environmental Protection Agency loan 27
Ohio Department of Development loan 250
Installment purchase agreement...... 1,927
General obligation and revenue bonds 94,339
Certain net expenses of the internal service funds are reported with
governmental activities in the statement of ACHVItIES. ............cciiiiiiii i 2,569
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.....cciitiiiiiitte ettt et $ 94,781

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

General Fund

Human Services

Variance-with

Variance-with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget- Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts Poswtive(Negative Original Final Amounts Positive(Negalivez
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 21,890 $ 21,844 $ 21,845 $ 1% $
Sales and use ta 167,800 168,990 168,990
Other tax 12 14 7 )
State local government fund.... 38,539 38,539 38,539
Licenses and permit: 100 73 86 13
Charges for service: 57,358 62,489 65,261 2,772 1,632 1,810 1,903 93
Fines and forfeiture: 6,250 7,096 7,565 469
Investment earning: 11,500 20,000 16,522 (3,478)
Other intergovernmental 8,141 8,807 9,290 483 256,249 329,928 289,690 (40,238)
Miscellaneou 5,254 4,992 1,966 (3,026) 3,823 5,137 458 (4,679)
TOTAL REVENUES. 316,844 332,844 330,071 (2,773) 261,704 336,875 292,051 (44,824)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel 27,723 28,219 27,604 615
Other. 27,591 31,808 26,480 5,328
Capital 99 175 156 19
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT. 55,413 60,202 54,240 5,962
JUDICIAL
Personnel 153,009 159,004 158,264 740
Other. 78,000 77,172 74,095 3,077
Capital 476 1,059 977 82
TOTAL JUDICIAL 231,485 237,235 233,336 3,899
DEVELOPMENT
Personnel 716 776 740 36
Other. 6,448 4,502 4,498 4
Capital 2 6 6
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT.... 7,166 5,284 5,244 40
SOCIAL SERVICES
Personnel 2,054 2,054 1,753 301 133,323 133,420 130,523 2,897
Other. 6,330 6,232 4,327 1,905 195,455 207,889 200,435 7,454
Capital 123 136 102 34 415 1,704 1,410 294
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES. 8,507 8,422 6,182 2,240 329,193 343,013 332,368 10,645
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Personnel 758 863 862 1
Other. 509 524 411 113
Capital 6 6 6
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 1,273 1,393 1,273 120
PUBLIC WORKS
Personnel
Other
Capital
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .... 303,844 312,536 300,275 12,261 329,193 343,013 332,368 10,645
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES... 13,000 20,308 29,796 9,488 (67,489) (6,138) (40,317) (34,179)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in. 1,144 1,144 67,445 75,591 38,429 (37,162)
Transfers out:
Debt 1t (7,301) (7,301) (5,737) 1,564
Other. (12,531) (19,019) (18,224) 795 (350) (228) 122
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES).... (19,832) (26,320) (22,817) 3,503 67,445 75,241 38,201 (37,040)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (6,832) (6,012) 6,979 12,991 (44) 69,103 (2,116) (71,219)
FUND BALANCES(DEFICITS) AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR, 107,053 107,053 107,053 (59,704) (59,704) (59,704)
FUND BALANCES(DEFICITS) AT
END OF YEAR. $ 100221 $ 101,041 $ 114,032 $ 12991 $ (59,748) 9399 $_ (61,820) $ 71,219

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

28



Health and

Human Services Levies

County

Board of Mental Retardation

Variance-with

Health and Community Services

Variance-with

Variance-with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget- Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget- Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget-
Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative) Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative Original Final Amounts Positive(Negative)
$ 167,686 $ 169,458 $ 169,460 $ 23 87,994 $ 87,308 $ 85,879% (1,429) $ 13,941 $ 13,941 $ 13,850 $ (91)
54 18 59 41 30 30
1,610 1,633 1,729 96
808 1,967 1,159 17,908 17,901 18,335 434
167 149 186 37
25 75 90 15 533 675 735 60
22,494 23,614 23,328 (286) 84,505 96,958 97,417 459 171,310 159,723 179,154 19,431
4,260 4,425 1,750 (2,675) 10,129 11,462 3,275 (8.187)
190,234 193,090 192,847 (243) 176,784 189,604 187,133 (2,471) 215,598 205,484 217,264 11,780
11,391 11,936 11,774 162
4,220 7,622 7,492 130
37 69 54 15
15,648 19,627 19,320 307
28,463 29,310 28,692 618
18,732 19,080 15,672 3,408
297 779 649 130
47,492 49,169 45,013 4,156
1,716 1,746 1,634 112
3,253 3,754 3,529 225
5 5 15 (10)
4,974 5,505 5,178 327
87,893 87,893 83,826 4,067 1,064 1,064 916 148
87,665 87,665 83,290 4,375 107,861 98,426 91,577 6,849
3,630 3,630 3,106 524 62 147 100 47
179,188 179,188 170,222 8,966 108,987 99,637 92,593 7,044
6,954 6,942 6,714 228
33,559 35,000 35,000 131,924 143,666 141,375 2,291
78 77 42 35
33,559 35,000 35,000 138,956 150,685 148,131 2,554
378 384 383 1
1,490 1,665 1,618 47
1 15 6 9
1,869 2,064 2,007 57
33,559 35,000 35,000 179,188 179,188 170,222 8,966 317,926 326,687 312,242 14,445
156,675 158,090 157,847 (243) (2,404) 10,416 16,911 6,495 (102,328) (121,203) (94,978) 26,225
41 41 41 104,340 102,472 110,630 8,158
(156,672) (134,550) __ (134,550) (857) (843) 14
(156,672) (134,550) (134,550) 41 41 41 104,340 101,615 109,787 8,172
3 23,540 23,297 (243) (2,363) 10,457 16,952 6,495 2,012 (19,588) 14,809 34,397
15,881 15,881 15,881 24,335 24,335 24,335 29,451 29,451 29,451
$ 15,884 $ 39421 $ 39,178 $ (243) $ 21972 $ 34792 $ 41.287% 6,495 $. 31,463 $ 9.863 $ 44,260 $ 34,397
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Governmental
Other Total Activities-
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and invesStments...........ccoccvevieeniieenieesie e $ 7,439 $ 2,095 $ 9,534 $ 59,353
Receivables:
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..............cccocevviriininin 3 279 282 1
Special assessements (net of allowance for uncollectibles).. 250 250
Net receivables 253 279 532 1
Due from other funds 13 13 8,387
Due from other governments.. 168 231 399 728
Inventory of supplies... 16 16 43
Total current assets 7,860 2,634 10,494 68,512
Noncurrent assets:
Special assessments receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..... 1,993 1,993
Other @SSELS.......eiiiiiiiiiii it 26 26
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
[ T o FO PO PPUR P UPUPPRRPTPPINE 472 7,281 7,753
Land improvements.. 473 1,940 2,413
Utility plant 25,651 25,651
Buildings, structures and improvements 2,496 8,508 11,004
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 148 203 351 6,661
Vehicles 859 94 953 565
Construction in progress.... 1,407 533 1,940
Net capital assets.... 31,506 18,559 50,065 7,226
Total noncurrent assets.. 33,525 18,559 52,084 7,226
TOT AL ASSETS .. e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeeeeeaaas 41,385 21,193 62,578 75,738
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ... 200 578 778 2,194
Due to other funds 263 652 915 5,269
Due to other governments.. 8 8 17,716
Accrued wages and benefits.... 481 129 610 2,688
Other liabilities 24 24
Capital lease obligations 134
Special termination benefits.. 401 39 440 2,276
Loans payable.. 357 357
Bonds payable. 360 360
Total current liabilities...............cociiiiiiiii s 2,094 1,398 3,492 30,277
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease 0bligations...........ccoouuiiiiiiiiiiie e 341
Special termination benefits.. 76 10 86 322
Loans payable 4,337 4,337
Bonds payable 6,145 6,145
Total noncurrent liabilities.... 10,558 10 10,568 663
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt 12,652 1,408 14,060 30,940
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.............cccooouiieeiiiiiiiieiiiiines 20,307 18,559 38,866 6,750
Unrestricted 8,426 1,226 9,652 38,048
TOTAL NET ASSETS.... $ 28,733 $ 19,785 $ 44,798
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund
activities related to enterprise funds..............cccooiiiiiiiiii 184
NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES..........oooviiiiiiiiiiies $ 48,702

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000's)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Governmental
Other Total Activities-
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ... couiiuiiieieiieiese sttt sae e e sre et eneas $ 12,480 $ 4,497 $ 16,977 $ 73,908
Other revenue 9 16 25 321
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES... 12,489 4,513 17,002 74,229
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 6,540 1,576 8,116 37,335
Contractual services and claims 904 1,004 1,908 9,199
Commodities 736 183 919 11,764
Depreciation 1,640 778 2,418 1,743
Other expenses.... 1,249 2,794 4,043 9,556
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 11,069 6,335 17,404 69,597
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,420 (1,822) (402) 4,632
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income..... 18 18
Interest expense (281) (281) (23)
Grants 308 308
Loss on disposal of capital @SSetS..........cccvveriiriiiiniciic e (9) (2) (11) (72)
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES).....cciiiiiiiiiiriiiiieiere et (272) 306 34 (95)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS......... 1,148 (1,516) (368) 4,537
L= U ) (=TT TSRS 1,652 1,652
Transfers out:
(95) (95)
Other.......ccccoeeue (895) (895) (2,039)
Capital contributions. 6,160 6,160
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.... 1,148 5,306 6,454 2,498
TOTAL NET ASSETS
BEGINNING OF YEAR......cotiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 27,585 14,479 42,300
TOTAL NET ASSETS
END OF YEAR.......oiiiiiiiiie ittt $ 28,733 $ 19,785 $ 44,798
Adjustment to reflect consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds............ccccevveniennens (71)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS-BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES.........ccccvennene $ 6,383

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers
Other operating cash receipts.
Cash payments to suppliers for

goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services..
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other funds............cooiiiiiiii e
Transfer to other funds
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan-net...
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES..

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt............cccovviiiiiiiiiiiii e
Receipts from capital GrantS.........ocvveviienieninie e
Acquisition and construction of capital assets....
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on 1ong-term debt..........cccoviiiiiiiiii e

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.....ccooiiiiiiiiieiicie s

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 0N INVESIMENTS...........cooviiiiiiiiiic e
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES........ccccecvneniiiiiiene

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.........
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.........cccoviiiiiiiinn

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-
Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
13,271 $ 4553 $ 17,824 $ 321
9 16 25 74,734
(4,567) (3,989) (8,556) (32,735)
(6,494) (1,559) (8,053) (37,014)
2,219 (979) 1,240 5,306
1,652 1,652
(990) (990) (2,039)
613 613 2,197
1,275 1,275 158
4,593 4,593
253 308 561
(853) (1,261) (2,114) (58)
(6,482) (6,482) (122)
(412) (412) (23)
(2,901) (953) (3,854) (203)
9 9
9 9
(673) (657) (1,330) 5,261
8,112 2,752 10,864 54,092
7,439 $ 2,095 $ 9,534 $ 59,353

32



RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS)......ceueueuiiuiiiieiieeei ettt

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPIECIALION. ...ttt
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable-Net.............cocooviviiiiiiii e
Due from other funds..................
Due from other governments.
Inventory of supplies........c.ccccevernenne
Accounts payable..
Due to other funds.
Due to other governments
Accrued wages and benefits..
Special termination benefits...........cccooiiiiiiiii e
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ...ttt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES...........

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contributions - capital @SSets...........ccccvviviriiiniiiiieeceee e
Capital assets acquired through capital lease
TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-

Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
1,420 $ (1,822) (402) 4,632
1,640 778 2,418 1,743
9 (23) (14) 11
33 33 (1,520)
33 33 2,336
(6) (6) (5)
(406) 47 (359) 130
(34) 2 (32) 244
(5) (5) 453
83 15 98 80
(488) (36) (524) (2,798)
799 843 1,642 674
2219 $ (979) 1,240 5,306

$ 6,160 6,160

135
(U] 6,160 6,160 135
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Agency Funds

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and invesStments...........cccccvvevenieieencenennns $ 215,573
Cash and investments-segregated acCoUNtS............ccevverueeverieenenns 47,021
TaxeS reCeIVADIE.........eeiiee e 1,378,238
TOTAL ASSETS.. oottt ettt et $ 1,640,832
LIABILITIES

Due t0 Other gOVEIMMENLS. .........ccverieiieiie e $ 1,581,212
Other abIlItIES. ......eveevereeere et ens 59,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....ctitiiiiiiettieet ettt $ 1,640,832

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

34



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE A - Description of Cuyahoga County and Basis of Presentation

The County: Cuyahoga County (the County) operates as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The
County was formed by an act of the Ohio General Assembly in 1810. The three member Board of County
Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In
addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in Ohio law.
These officials are Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. There
are also thirty-four Common Pleas Court Judges, five Domestic Relations Court Judges, six Juvenile Court Judges,
two Probate Court Judges and twelve Court of Appeals Judges elected on a County-wide basis to oversee the
County's justice system.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance or equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. The County uses the following fund types:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not
recorded elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use tax, property taxes, state local government
fund receipts, intergovernmental receipts and various service fees.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative
action. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and federal and state grant programs.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used to account for revenues received and used to pay principal and
interest on all long-term bonded debt except those payable from Enterprise funds. Revenues are derived primarily
from property taxes.

Capital Projects Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital assets
(other than those financed by Proprietary funds). Revenues and financing resources are derived from the issuance of
debt, transfers from the General and Special Revenue funds and capital grant programs.

Permanent Funds: Permanent funds are for the purpose of accounting for resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs. The County does not utilize permanent funds at this time.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services that are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for the goods or services provided by certain
County departments to other County departments and funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments, other funds and individuals. These assets include property and other taxes as well as other
intergovernmental resources that have been collected by the County and will be distributed to other taxing districts
located within the County.

Private-purpose Trust Funds: Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for other trust arrangements
which benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. For accounting measurement purposes, the
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

private-purpose trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. The County does
not utilize private-purpose trust funds at this time.

Other Fiduciary Funds: Other fiduciary funds include pension trust funds and investment trust funds. The
County does not utilize any such trust funds.

NOTE B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America for local government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Reporting Entity: Cuyahoga County is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The three member board
of County Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal
officer. In addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in
Ohio Law. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which Cuyahoga County is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements (see Discretely Presented Component
Unit below for description) to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County.

Discretely Presented Component Unit: In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units, the MetroHealth System (the Hospital or Component Unit) is included as a discretely presented Component
Unit in the County's basic financial statements. The Hospital provides health care and hospitalization to the general
public and care for the County’s indigents. The County appoints the majority of the Hospital's Board of Trustees. The
Hospital's annual operating budget and investment policy are both approved by the County. The Component Unit is
included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationships with
the County. The financial information of the Hospital is presented in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the government. Furthermore, the MetroHealth Foundation (Foundation), which is a component unit of
the Hospital, is presented for the first time in 2005 in the Hospital's financial statements, resulting in an increase in
beginning net assets of the Component Unit of $16.5 million. The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization
supporting the Hospital. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the resources
that are available to the Hospital in support of its programs. Although the Hospital does not control the timing or the
amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, which they hold and invest, are
restricted to support the activities of the Hospital. Complete financial statements for the Hospital can be requested
from the County Auditor.

Basic Financial Statements:  Financial information of the County is presented as a set of basic financial
statements in the following format:

Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities
of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. The policy of the County is to allocate indirect expenses to functions in
the statement of activities. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues. Internal service fund balances, whether positive or negative, have
been eliminated against the expenses and program revenue shown in the statement of activities.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements and the fiduciary funds. The County uses only agency
funds as fiduciary funds which have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year for which they are levied. State and local government fund shared revenues are recognized
when the provider government recognizes its liability to the County. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales and use taxes, other tax, state local government funds, licenses and permits and
interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within
the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
County, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Human Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and expenditures
used to provide entitlement services, senior and adult programs, children and family services and employment
services to eligible county residents.

Health and Human Services Levies accounts for revenues from Health and Human Services Levies.
Levies and expenditures are determined by policies of the Board of County Commissioners.

County Board of Mental Retardation accounts for revenues primarily from the State and the special
mental retardation levy and expenditures thereof that are used for the benefit of the mentally retarded and
developmentally disabled.

Health and Community Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and
expenditures thereof as prescribed under the various health and community service functions including mental health
and alcohol and drug programs.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Sanitary Engineer accounts for the maintenance operations of county sewer lines. The office also enforces
compliance of county sanitary regulations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
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County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The Hospital has elected to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants, contributions and interest
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise
funds and of the County’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap-in fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the
General fund, certain Special Revenue funds and the Debt Service fund. Major Special Revenue funds which are
budgeted annually include Human Services, Health and Human Services Levies, County Board of Mental Retardation
and Health and Community Services. The Motor Vehicle Gas Tax fund is a nonmajor special revenue fund which is
annually budgeted. The County Administrator prepares the budget, which is approved by the Board of County
Commissioners. The Office of Budget and Management prepares a separate budgetary report. The Board of County
Commissioners approves amendments to the original budget throughout the year as allowed by State statute. The
County maintains budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting expenditures/expenses
and encumbrances to exceed appropriations for personnel, capital purchases and other costs. Elected officials and
managers may amend the budget without approval of the County Commissioners as long as amendments are within
legal categories. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. Encumbrances are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered and reappropriated at the start of the
following year.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis). The accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances — budget and actual (non-GAAP budgetary basis), comparing budget to actual results of operations for the
General fund and all annually budgeted major special revenue funds, is presented to demonstrate the County’s
compliance with legally adopted budgets and reflects only budget revisions formally adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners. The Commissioners and their staff monitor the level of revenues and expenditures throughout the
year, and policy decisions are made based on the available current information. Formal revisions to previous
budgets may not be processed if actual results are within previously budgeted levels. Consequently, large variances
may appear on the budget and actual comparisons in the accompanying statements.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for certain grants (including Community
Development and Other funds) and the Capital Projects fund. Appropriations are made on a multi-year basis with the
free balance and encumbrances being reappropriated annually. The administrative control is on a grant/project basis
and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriated funds do not provide meaningful data. The County adopts
annual budgets for Proprietary funds, however, there is no legal requirement to report on compliance with such
budgets.

38



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

The major differences between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budgetary) as opposed to being closed
to unreserved fund balance/fund net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the
following year (GAAP).

A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the budget basis follows:

Net Change in Fund Balances
(Amounts in 000's)
Health and County

Human Board of Health and
General Human Services Mental Community
Fund Services Levies Retardation Services
GAAP DASIS.....oiiiiiiiiiiiiec e $ 7479 % $ 25,943 $ 28,870 $ 12,718
Increase/decrease:
Accrued receivables at 12/31/05
not recognized in the 2005 budget............cccneeee. (131,312) (71,368) (205,068) (105,636) (24,275)
Accrued receivables at 12/31/04
recognized in the 2005 budget...........cccoecveeinneenn. 137,006 82,630 207,359 91,287 25,938
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/05 not recognized in the 2005 budget......... 61,042 71,368 160,850 106,647 61,814
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/04 recognized in the 2005 budget............... (63,789) (82,630) (165,787) (90,272) (54,072)
Encumbrances at 12/31/05 recognized as
expenditures in the 2005 budget..........c.cccceveevneene (22,597) (36,912) (7,239) (34,862)
Encumbrances at 12/31/04 not recognized as
expenditures in the 2005 budget.............cocveeenneee. 14,823 19,823 7,657 27,616
Other GAAP adjustments 1. 4,327 14,973 (14,362) (68)
BUAGEL DASIS ... $ 6979 $.(2116) $ 23,297 $ 16,952 $ 14,809

(1) Change in the amount of short-term interfund loans by the General fund, unrealized loss on
investments, net expenses for the Brownfield project, Gateway debt and agency funds reclassified as cash
for financial reporting purposes.

Statement of Cash Flows: The County utilizes the direct method with respect to the statement of cash flows
as defined by the GASB Statement No. 9. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all
highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Investments: Cash resources of a majority of individual funds are combined to form a pool
of cash and investments, which is managed by the County Treasurer. Investments in the pooled cash and
investments accounts consist of U.S. Treasury Notes, Strips and other Federal Government securities, certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, corporate notes, revenue anticipation bonds and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Investments: The County accounts for its investments under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, which established
accounting and financial reporting standards for government investments and investment pools, requiring most
investments to be recorded at fair value and the recognition of unrealized gains and losses in the financial
statements. The County has the ability and intent to hold all investments to maturity. Interest on investments is
accrued as earned and distributed to appropriate funds utilizing a formula based on the average month-end balance
of cash and cash equivalents of appropriate funds. County policy requires interest earned on investments to be
credited to the General fund except where there is a legal requirement such as the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Special
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Revenue fund or where there are bond proceeds for capital improvements such as the Capital Projects fund. Fair
value is determined by quoted market prices.

Inventory of Supplies: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in first-out method)
or net realizable value. Costs are expensed when inventory is consumed for Proprietary funds and for the Discretely
Presented Component Unit. Costs are recognized as expenditures when inventory is purchased for Governmental
funds.

Restricted Assets: The primary government’s restricted assets are composed of the unspent proceeds of
certain borrowings that are restricted for use in specified economic development activities and capital projects, as
well as deposits and investments held at certain financial institutions throughout the County to support the County’s
Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.), which allows homeowners in County communities to borrow money
from participating financial institutions to repair or remodel their homes or rental property at below market interest
rates. Included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit column are restricted assets, consisting of investments
restricted by donors, and assets under the control of the bond trustee that are used for payment of principal and
interest on the Hospital's bonds when due. A portion of the Component Unit's restricted net assets has been
designated as nonexpendable due to restrictions set up in the Foundation. All other restricted net assets are deemed
expendable.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings, structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles and infrastructure assets (primarily bridges constructed and
maintained by the County), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements to the extent the County’s capitalization threshold is met. The County defines
capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of 4 years (3 years for the Component Unit) and an
individual cost of more than $9 thousand. Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date
contributed.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The valuation
bases for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital assets.

Cost for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. However, costs for repairs and upgradings
that materially add to the value or the useful life of an asset and meet the above criteria are capitalized.

The County and the Component Unit depreciate capital assets on a straight-line basis using the following
estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 5to 20 years
Utility plant 20 to 50 years
Buildings, structures and improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 22 years
Vehicles 4 t0 9 years

Infrastructure 20 to 69 years

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on construction projects in the
proprietary funds until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is amortized on the straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the asset. During 2005, capitalized interest for the County and the Component Unit
was not material.

Compensated Absences: The County records accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime pay benefits
as accrued wages and benefits payable when earned by employees. For Governmental funds, the portion of the
liability, which is not currently due and payable, is not reported. In the government-wide financial statements and for
proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences (current and noncurrent) is reported as a liability. The
County utilizes the termination payments method to determine the liabilities for compensated absences as defined in
GASB Statement No. 16.
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Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Normally, all vacation
time is to be taken in the year available unless administrative approval for carry-over is obtained. Sick time not taken
may be accumulated until retirement. Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time at the employee’s current wage rate upon retirement up to a maximum of thirty days. Certain
agencies of the County that are not under the control of the Board of County Commissioners may have slightly
different policies for compensated absences.

Net Patient Service Revenue: Net patient service revenue of the Hospital is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. The Hospital's classification of patients under the Medicare and Medicaid programs and the
appropriateness of their admission are subject to an independent review by a peer review organization. Differences
between the estimated amounts accrued at interim and final settlements are reported in the Statement of Activities in
the year of settlement. The Hospital recorded a favorable adjustment of $4.2 million in 2005 due to prior year
retroactive adjustments to amounts previously estimated.

Net revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 25.3% and 32.9%,
respectively, of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Compliance
with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
The Hospital believes that an adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for any adjustments that
may result from final settlements.

Charity Care: Throughout the admission, billing and collection processes, certain patients are identified by
the Hospital as qualifying for charity care. The Hospital provides care to these patients without charge or at amounts
less than its established rates. The charges foregone for charity care provided by the Hospital, totaling $160.1
million, represent 12.8% of gross charges in 2005, and are not reported as revenue. The Hospital accepts certain
indigent Ohio residents and all residents from the County regardless of their ability to pay.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting allows for the reservation of appropriations to provide for
purchase commitments pertaining to purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances are closed
to unreserved fund balance/unrestricted net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the
following year.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds including transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. Interfund transactions are
generally classified as transfers in the accompanying financial statements. Transfers out are further categorized as
transfers for debt retirement or other purposes. Transfers for debt retirement represent monies transferred to the
Debt Service fund. Other transfers represent all other transfers out.

Fund Balance: In the governmental fund financial statements, the County records reservations of portions of
fund balances that are legally segregated for specific future uses or do not represent available, spendable resources
and, therefore, cannot be appropriated for expenditures. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

Risk Management: The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues. Employees’ health insurance is provided primarily
through a commercial insurance program. The County pays a premium to the insurance providers without additional
risk to the County for all it's medical plans except for one medical plan and the prescription drug plan, which are self-
insured. Beginning in 2006, the County is self-insured for two medical plans and the prescription drug plan. The
County maintains an Internal Service fund to account for the self-insurance of workers’ compensation benefits
through a retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio. The County recognizes a liability for self-insured claims if
information prior to the issuance of the basic financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition,
the County has designated a portion of the fund balance of its General fund, pursuant to Ohio law, to provide for
claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies.
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Changes in Accounting Principles: During March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47 (FIN
47), Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143. FIN 47
clarifies that an entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if
the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The Hospital adopted the provisions of FIN 47 as of
December 31, 2005 for the Hospital obligations related to those portions of the ashestos abatement liability that are
considered imminent. At December 31, 2005, the Hospital recorded approximately $5.4 million as an asbestos
abatement liability. The amount of the asset and liability at the date the obligation was incurred in 1973 totaled $1.4
million. The amount of interest accretion and depreciation expense charged to net assets, as the cumulative
changes in accounting principle, for the year 1974 through 2005 totaled $5.2 million. The cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principle was recorded as a $5.2 million decrease in beginning net assets.

New Accounting Standards: During November 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets. Under provisions of this statement, a
capital asset is considered impaired when its service has declined significantly and unexpectedly. This statement
also clarifies and establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. The provisions of this statement are
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2004. The County and the Component Unit have
determined that Statement No. 42 has no impact on its reported financial condition and results of operations.

During August 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should
account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other nonpension
benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment benefits, or OPEB.
Statement No. 45 also establishes disclosure requirements for information about the plans in which an employer
participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation process and assumptions, and for certain employers,
the extent to which the plan has been funded over time. Statement No. 45 will not be effective for the County until the
year ending December 31, 2007, and as such, the County has not determined the impact that this statement will have
on its financial statements.

During December 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Legislation, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. This statement clarifies that a legally enforceable enabling legislation
restriction is one that a party external to government-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary — can
compel a government to honor. The Statement states that the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation restriction
should be reevaluated if any of the resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified
by the enabling legislation or if a government has other cause for reconsideration. Although the determination that a
particular restriction is not legally enforceable may cause a government to review the enforceability of other
restrictions, it should not necessarily lead a government to the same conclusion for all enabling legislation
restrictions. This Statement also specifies the accounting and financial reporting requirements if new enabling
legislation replaces existing enabling legislation or if legal enforceability is reevaluated. Finally, this Statement
requires governments to disclose the portion of total net assets that is restricted by enabling legislation. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for the County for the year ending December 31, 2006, and as such, the
County has not determined the impact, if any, that this statement will have on its financial statements.

During July 2005, the GASB issued Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits. Statement 47
provides accounting and reporting guidance for state and local governments that offer either voluntary termination
benefits (e.g., early retirement incentives) or involuntary termination benefits (i.e., severance). The significant
requirements of Statement 47 include the recognition in accrual basis financials as a liability and expense for
involuntary termination benefits when (1) a termination plan has been approved by those with the authority to commit
the government to the plan, (2) the plan has been communicated to employees, and (3) the amount can be
estimated. A liability and expense for voluntary termination benefits should be recognized when the offer is accepted
and the amount can be estimated. Statement 47 also requires employers to disclose a description of the termination
benefit arrangements, the cost of the termination benefits and the significant methods and assumptions used to
determine termination benefit liabilities. Statement 47 is effective for the County in 2006; as such, the County has not
determined the impact, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.
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NOTE C - Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments:

Pooled Cash and Investments: Certain monies of the General fund, certain Agency funds and the Hospital
are deposited and maintained in individual segregated bank accounts or invested in specifically segregated
investments. All other funds of the County are held in a common group of bank accounts and investments.
Collectively, these bank accounts and investments represent the Pooled Cash and Investments account. Amounts
reported as cash and investments for the segregated funds and the pooled funds principally consist of bank balances,
certificates of deposit, United States Treasury Notes, U.S. Agency obligations, municipal obligations of political
subdivisions of the State of Ohio and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Certain funds have made disbursements from the pooled cash account in excess of their individual equity in
the pooled cash account. These amounts are reported in the balance sheet — governmental funds and the statement
of net assets — proprietary funds as "Due to other funds" and are offset against the General fund’s equity in pooled
cash and investments.

A summary of the Pooled Cash and Investments account balance by fund type at December 31, 2005,
follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Due To Equity In
GENETAL ...ttt $ $ 111,418
Due From:

Special REVENUE ........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 24,909

Capital Projects 11,208

Enterprise............ 628

Internal Service 4,236 (40,981)
Net General ........ccooveeiiiiiieeee e 70,437
Other major governmental 182,268
Other governmental ...................... 32,761
Major ENtEIPriSE .....ceiiiiiiieeie e 7,439
Other enterpriSe.........coovvuiiieiiee i 2,095
Internal Service 59,353
Total government-wide 354,353
AGENCY it 215573
Total Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments ...... $ 569,926

Amounts due to other funds by Special Revenue funds will be paid from collection of reimbursements under
grant programs from the Federal and State governments. Amounts due to other funds by Capital Projects funds will
be paid primarily from the issuance of general obligation bonds. Amounts owed by the Enterprise funds will be paid
through increased Airport rental charges. Amounts owed by the Internal Service funds will be paid through collection
of charges for services.

Deposits and Investments:
Primary Government

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
$126.4 million and the bank balances were $106.3 million. Any differences between the account bank balances and
investments and the cash and investments recorded in the financial statements are due to normal reconciling items.
The pooled securities serve as collateral for all public deposits held by the banks, including the County's deposits.
The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) requires that the market value of securities held in the pool be at least equal to 105%
of the public deposits held by the banks. Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and
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loan associations located in Ohio. County policy is to utilize federally insured banks and savings institutions located
in the County.

All monies are deposited in the Cuyahoga County banks designated by the Board of County
Commissioners. Interim funds not needed for immediate expenditures are invested in interest bearing or non-interest
bearing accounts or invested pursuant to the Statement of Investment Policy adopted by the Cuyahoga County
Investment Advisory Committee.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure the County’s deposits might not be recovered. The
County’s bank deposits at December 31, 2005 totaled $106.3 million and were subject to the following categories of
custodial risk:

(Amounts in 000’s)

(0 aToTo] =1 =1 [4=Tc [T $ 98,731
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution’s trust

department (O.R.C. 135.18) but not in the County’s name 5,011
Total amount subject to custodial riSK.............cccvvveveeeeiiiinnen.n. 103,742
Amount insured (FDIC INSUFANCE) .......ocuuvvieeeeeeiiiiiiieeee e eeiieeee e 2,550
Total bank balanCes........cccooviveiii i $ 106,292

Component Unit

Deposits: All monies are deposited to the Hospital's banks or trust companies designated by the Board of
Trustees. Funds not needed for immediate expenditure may be deposited in interest bearing or non-interest bearing
accounts or U.S. government obligations.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the Hospital’s deposits might not be recovered.
The Hospital's bank deposits at December 31, 2005 totaled $4.9 million and were subject to the following categories
of custodial risk:

(Amounts in 000’s)

Hospital Foundation Total
UNCONALETAIIZEA ..o $ 3,921 $ 584 $ 4,505
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging
institution’s trust department, but not in the Hospital's name.... 77 _ _ 17
Total amount subject to custodial risk 3,998 584 4,582
Amount insured........... 200 100 _300
Total bank balances $ 4,198 $ 684 $ 4,882

At December 31, 2005, the financial statement carrying amount of the Hospital's deposits was $5 million.
The difference from the reported amount represents outstanding checks payable and normal reconciling items.

Primary Government

Investments: The County’s Statement of Investment Policy, approved by the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee, authorizes investment by the County in investments permitted under the ORC. Eligible investments
include U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Strips, backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government, obligations of
U.S. government agencies, commercial paper, bankers acceptances, obligations of political subdivisions of the State
of Ohio, certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts in an eligible institution defined in the ORC, State
Treasurer's Investment Pool, corporate notes, shares in open-end no-load money market mutual funds registered
under the Federal Investment Act of 1940 and repurchase agreements. Ohio statute prohibits the use of reverse
repurchase agreements. County investment policy restricts repurchase agreements to durations of 30 days or less
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and all investments to maturities of not more than 5 years. In January 2006, the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee voted to revise the County’s Investment Policy to include foreign notes as an eligible investment. The
notes must be rated at the time of purchase in the three highest categories by two nationally recognized standard
rating services. All interest and principal shall be denominated and payable in United States funds. The notes must
be backed by the full faith and credit of the foreign nation and there can be no prior history of default. The maturity of
foreign notes cannot exceed five years from purchase and in total, they cannot exceed one percent of the County’s
total average portfolio.

At December 31, 2005, the fair value of the Primary Government investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Fair Value/Carrying Value
RepUrchase AgreEmMENTS ........c.uveeiuiieiiiieesiiee s stee e s see e e siee e se e e snaeeenneeas $ 60,200
U. S. Treasuries........c.ccceeenune 5,953
U.S. Government Agencies ... 447,681
[Ofe] g ool = 1=\ (0] (=TRSO UPRRR 5,033
Municipal OBlIGAtiONS..........eciiiiiiiiie e 1,200
Total Primary Government INVEStMENLS ..........ccocevviieniiiiiciienieeeeeen $ 520,067

Interest Rate Risk. The ORC and the County’'s Statement of Investment Policy limits the purchase of
securities to a stated maturity of no more than 5 years from the date of purchase unless the security is matched to a
specific obligation or debt of the County. The purchase of any security with a maturity of greater than 5 years must
be approved in advance by the Investment Advisory Committee.

At December 31, 2005, the County’s investments had maturities as follows:

Maturities Percentage
LeSS than 1 Year ......cccueeiiiiiiiiiieeiee e 48.38%
LEO 5 YRANS . 51.62%

Further, the Statement of Investment Policy specifies that the portfolio be structured to diversify investments to
reduce the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific
type of investment. Each investment type is limited to a maximum percentage of the total average portfolio.

Credit Risk. The ORC and the County's Statement of Investment Policy govern the minimum investment
rating for each type of eligible investment security. Commercial Paper and Banker's Acceptances must have a
minimum rating of “A-1" or “AA”.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The County has implemented several controls to mitigate custodial risk. All security
transactions are executed on a delivery versus payment basis. All securities are delivered to the County’s custodian
bank before payment is made to the broker dealer for the security. Securities delivered to the custodian are held in
the name of the County. If market conditions or liquidity needs require the sale of a security, the County will identify
securities for sale that mitigate the amount of market loss. With repurchase agreements, the County requires that the
counterparty deliver securities with a market value at least equal to 102% of the purchase price of the securities. If
the counterparty fails to repurchase the securities per the terms of the agreement, the County reserves the right to
sell the securities in the market.
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Component Unit

At December 31, 2005, fair value of the County’s Component Unit investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Fair Value/Carrying Value
Hospital Foundation Total

Cash and iNVEStMENES ..........cceevveveeriesieece e $ 85,686 $ $ 85,686
U.S. Government AgENCIES .......ccovierviriienieeieeneeaeeene 173,580 173,580
Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Federal Pools)...... 7,988 7,988
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations...........c.ccccooeeveveenen. 1,064 1,064
COrporates ......cuvveeeeeeeiiiiieeee s 4,195 4,195
Mutual Funds..... 5,155 5,155
Common StocK ........ccccveeeeeeiiiiiinn. 12,667 12,667
Premier Purchasing Partners, L.P. ... 723 723
Total INVESIMENES ....c.oocvieiiecieeiccie e $ 272,513 $ 18,545 $ 291,058

Interest Rate Risk. The Hospital’s investment policies limit investment portfolio to maturities of five years or
less. All of the Hospital’'s investments at December 31, 2005 have effective maturity dates of less than five years.

Credit Risk. All of the Hospital's investments are rated “AAA” by Standard and Poor's. The Hospital's
investment policies are governed by State of Ohio statutes that authorize the Hospital to invest in U.S. government
obligations and “AAA” rated corporate bonds. The Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and Federal Mortgage pools
are investments that are grandfathered from previous statutes that allowed such investments. These investments
have an effective maturity date of less than one year.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Hospital will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Of the Hospital's investments, only the repurchase agreements are exposed to
custodial risk. Repurchase agreements (included in the U. S. Government Agencies) at December 31, 2005 totaling
$23.5 million are uninsured, are not registered in the Hospital's name and are held by the financial institution’s trust
department.
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NOTE D - Interfund Receivables and Payables

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances as of December 31, 2005 follow:

(Amounts in 000's)

Interfund Interfund

Fund Types Receivables Payables
Governmental Funds:

General Fund ............... $ 40,981 $ 3,307

Human Services 51,879

Health and Human Services Levies...........cccccceevnneen. 42,977

County Board of Mental Retardation .................ccc.u... 1,038

Health and Community Services ...........ccccuveveeeennnnnnns 18,323

Other governmental funds ............occvvveeeeiiiniiiiieeneenn, 11,627
Total Governmental FUNS .........c.ooovviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeees 83,958 86,174
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Funds:

Sanitary ENQINEEr........ccvvvieiiee e eiiiee e 263

Other enterprise funds.........cccccoiviiiiin e 13 652
Total Enterprise FUNAS..........c.eeeeeiiiiiiiiieeeeeiiee e 13 915
Internal Service FUNAS: ...........evevivivevrieriiinireeeeeneeenenennnnn. 8,387 5,269
TOLAIS ..o $ 92,358 $ 92,358
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fund.

A summary of interfund receivables/payables of the General fund follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Fund Types Receivables Payables

Major Governmental Funds:

HUMEN SEIVICES ...t $ 24,909 $
Total Major Governmental Funds .........cccccoeeviiiiiieneenniins 24,909

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Capital ProjeCt ......cccooi it 11,208
Total Nonmajor Governmental FuNds...........occcvvveeeeennins 11,208

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

COoUNLY AIMPOIT ..o 628

Cuyahoga County Information System - 10
Total Nonmajor Enterprise FUNds..........cccceeevvcivviieneeeiinnns 628 10
Internal Service Funds:

Maintenance Garage ........ccooveuvueeeeeeeeiiiiiiieeeeeeeesiines 730 31

Data Processing Center ..........ooccvveeeeeeiiniiiiieeeeeeenins 3,062

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies .........ccccccceernee 444 249

Communications 137

Self-Funded Workers Compensation..............ccceco.... 2,880
Total Internal Service FUNAS ...........occviiiieeiiiiiiiiiee e 4,236 3,297
o] 2= $ 40981 $ 3307

The receivables represent amounts overdrawn from the pooled cash account which are owed to the General

The amount payable to the Cuyahoga County Information System is for computer charges from various

General fund agencies. The amounts payable to Internal Service funds represent unpaid charges at December 31,

2005.
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NOTE E - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Governmental Activities: 2005 Additions Deductions 2005
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
$ 44535 $ 8,424 $ 52,959
Construction in progress. 41,480 25,796 15,822 51,454
Total capital assets, not being depreciated..............cccvvvveee. 86,015 34,220 15,822 104,413
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements.............cc..c..... 12,323 945 13,268
Buildings, structures and improvements.. 540,912 24,470 32 565,350
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 50,008 1,608 808 50,808
VERNICIES.....cviiiiiiiiiiiii e 15,472 1,452 585 16,339
Infrastructure 440,205 4,235 444,440
Total capital assets, being depreciated..............cccceeveeeernnnes 1,058,920 32,710 1,425 1,090,205
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land impProvVemMENTS.......cocuuviiiiiiiiiiieie e e e e e e s s 1,838 614 2,452
Buildings, structures and improvements..............ccccveveeees 235,633 18,050 32 253,651
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 36,089 2,888 714 38,263
Vehicles.......cccooovieiiiiiiiiiiies . 11,437 1,144 585 11,996
Infrastructure................... . 240,604 12,698 253,302
Total accumulated depreciation... . 525,601 35,394 1,331 559,664
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............ccccvvveeees 533,319 (2,684) 94 530,541
Governmental activities capital assets, Net...........c.ccceeeeenene $ 619,334 $ 31,536 $ 15,916 634,954
(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Business-type Activities: 2005 Additions Deductions 2005
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LaNG. s $ 5752 $ 2,001 $ 7,753
Construction in progress 1,170 1,591 821 1,940
Total capital assets, not being depreciated. 6,922 3,592 821 9,693
Capital assets, being depreciated: .
Land improvements............... . 10,850 44 182 10,712
Utility plant..........cccoooeeiennen. . 53,633 53,633
Buildings, structures and improvements 14,766 4,983 19,749
Furniture, fixtures and equipment. 2,503 185 106 2,582
Vehicles.......ooooiiiiiiiiiieeee, . 3,948 347 77 4,218
Total capital assets, being depreciated.............c.cccceviiennnne 85,700 5,559 365 90,894
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 8,192 286 179 8,299
Utility plant 26,994 988 27,982
Buildings, structures and improvements 8,024 721 8,745
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,260 67 96 2,231
Vehicles 2,987 356 78 3,265
Total accumulated depreciation... 48,457 2,418 353 50,522
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net... 37,243 3,141 12 40,372
Business-type activities capital assets, net... $ 44,165 $ 6,733 $ 833 50,065

49



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

Component Unit: 2005 Additions Deductions 2005
Capital assets, not being depreciated:............cccoceveeiiienennns

LaNG. .ottt $ 9,634 $ $ 257 $ 9,377

CoNStruction iN Progress. ........ccocveeereeeeeieeeeee e 11,093 34,615 31,744 13,964
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 20,727 34,615 32,001 23,341
Capital assets, being depreciated:.............ccccevveriiiriicriennns

Land improvemMeNtS..........cooueieiiiiiie e 7,829 119 145 7,803

Buildings, structures and improvements............c.cccccveenen. 445,697 27,315 4,681 468,331

Furniture, fixtures and equipment...........ccccoocveeiieeee e, 213,309 12,783 8,440 217,652

VehiCles.......ooovviiiiiiiiiccicec s 9,728 508 168 10,068
Total capital assets, being depreciated 676,563 40,725 13,434 703,854
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvemMeNtS..........cocuuieiiiiiie e 6,860 179 145 6,894

Buildings, structures and improvements............cc.cccceeeeene 265,162 16,758 3,511 278,409

Furniture, fixtures and equipment...........ccccocveeiiieennnnen. 171,359 11,773 8,390 174,742

Vehicles.......coocvviiiiiiiiiiiieien, 2,758 1,299 168 3,889
Total accumulated depreciation.............coocceeeeiiiieeiiiienenins 446,139 30,009 12,214 463,934
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net...........ccccevvveenne 230,424 10,716 1,220 239,920
Component unit capital assets, Net.........cccoeeveeeiiiieeeiiiieenns $ 251,151 $ 45331 $ 33,221 $ 263,261

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government in 2005 as follows:

Governmental Activities: (Amounts in 000’s)
General gOVEINMENL........oooiiiiiiiiieee e a e e $ 3,213
JUAICHAL . 11,387
DeVelOPMENT... ..o 4
SOCIAl SEIVICES.......viiiiiiiiie et 5,824
Health and safety..........cuuuiiiiiiii e 157
PUBIIC WOTKS.....c.oviiiiiiiiic e 13,066
Capital assets held by the government’s internal

service funds are charged to the various functions

based on their usage of the assets...........occuviieiiieiiiiinnenn. 1,743
Total depreciation expenses charged to

governmental acCtiVities..........coocviirieee e $ 35,394
Business-type Activities:
Sanitary ENGINEET.......ccouiiiiiiiieiiiceiee e $ 1,640
COUNLY AITPOI. ...ttt 360
Huntington Park Garage............ccveereeeeiiieeeiniiiee s 412
Cuyahoga County Information System............cccccovvvuvveeeeeenn. 6
Total depreciation expenses charged to

business-type activities. ..o $ 2418
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A summary of construction commitments for governmental activities at December 31, 2005 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Function Amount December 31, 2005 Commitments
General QOVEIMMENL........cuiiiiaieiie et $ 14,640 $ 7,373 $ 7,267
Judicial..........ccceeueene. 42,366 26,635 15,731
Social services... 1,254 633 621
Public works....... 34,629 16,813 17,816
Totals.............. $ 92,889 $ 51,454 $ 41,435

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through bonded debt.

A summary of construction commitment for business-type activities at December 31, 2005 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Business-type Activity Amount December 31, 2005 Commitments
Sanitary ENQGINEET.......c.oiiiiiiiiiieiie et $ 2,955 $ 1,407 $ 1,548
XL 1 o S RSP 877 533 344
TOLAIS. ..ttt $ 3,832 $ 1,940 $ 1,892

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through special
assessments and grants.

The Hospital has future contractual commitments for the construction of various projects totaling
$12.7 million. The projects are being funded with operating funds.
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NOTE F - Debt and Other Obligations

Notes Payable and Long-Term Liabilities:

A summary of the County’s notes payable and long-term liabilities at December 31, 2005 is provided below:

(Amounts in 000's)

Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligation, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absence: $ 22,410 41,333 $ 39,881 $ 23,862_$ 2,386
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007. 7.75%-8.00% 35,098 1,273 18,482 17,889 15,489
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2029 25,100 1,545 23,555 1,694
2003 Installment Purchase Agreement-Due thru 2010, [$13,742] 3.72%-3.87% 9,808 1,927 7,881 1,693
Loans Payable:
1989 Environmental Protection Agency-Due thru 2007, [$494] None 54 27 27 27
1997 Ohio Department of Development Loan
- Due thru 2016, [$5,000] None 3,000 250 2,750 250
2005 Ohio Department of Transportation Loan-Due thru 2013, [2,975]..........cccouveiiiiinicnecnnns 0%-3% 2,975 2,975
Total Loans Payable. 3,054 2,975 277 5,752 277
General Obligation Bonds-Unvoted:
1993 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-Due thru 2012, [$75,395] 2.20%-5.25% 25,150 3,610 21,540 3,795
1993 Rock and Roll Hall of Fame-Due thru 2018, [$12,000] 2.75%-5.65% 8,495 415 8,080 440
1995 Various Purpose Improvements-Due thru 2015, [$35,145] 3.75%-5.50% 15,975 15,975
2000 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2020, [$96,615] 4.30%-5.75% 84,230 63,670 20,560 3,750
2004 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2024, [$84,490] 2.50%-5.25% 84,490 2,575 81,915 3,475
2005 General Obligation (limited tax) Refunding Bonds-due thru 2020, [$73,970] 3.00%-5.00% 73,970 100 73,870 1,000
Total General Obligation Bonds-Unvoted. 218,340 73,970 86,345 205,965 12,460
General Obligation Bonds-Voted:
1991 Jail Il Series - Due thru 2006, [$5,086] 6.95%-7.05% 3,516 1,819 1,697 1,697
1993 Jail Facilities and Various Purpose Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2013, [$65,254] 2.20%-5.25% 19,589 2,390 17,199 2,510
Total General Obligation Bonds-Voted 23,105 4,209 18,896 4,207
Total Tax Supported Bond 241,445 73,970 90,554 224,861 16,667
Revenue Bonds:
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022, [$35,000]. 8.625% 35,000 35,000
1994 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2023, [$45,000]. 4.45%-7.60% 33,080 1,635 31,445 1,745
2000 Shaker Square Redevelopment-Due thru 2030, [$2,855] 6.886% 2,825 10 2,815 10
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series 2004A Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2011 [$10,750] 1.50%-4.25% 10,750 1,415 9,335 1,440
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series 2004B Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2022 [$19,200] Variable 19,200 19,200
2004 Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Project Refunding Bonds
Series 2004C -Due thru 2018 [$12,880] 1.50%-5.10% 12,880 725 12,155 740
Total Revenue Bond 113,735 3,785 109,950 3,935
Bond premium/discount related to various issues-net. 5,988 6,317 584 11,721
Total Bonds Payable. 361,168 80,287 94,923 346,532 20,602
Internal Service Funds:
Compensated Absence: 2,005 2,368 2,323 2,050 205
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007. 7.75% 5,396 2,798 2,598 2,276
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2009 463 135 123 475 134
Total Internal Service Fund: 7,864 2,503 5,244 5,123 2,615
Total Governmental Activities. $ 464,502 128,371 $ 162,279 $ 430,594 $ 44,756
(CONTINUED)
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(Amounts in 000's)

Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligation, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year
Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absence $ 401 $ 588 $ 515 $ 474 $ 47
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007 7.75% 1,050 524 526 440
Various Loans Payable-Due thru 2025. 4.04% - 7.00% 4,729 307 342 4,694 357
Bond Anticipation Notes:
2002 Olmsted Township Water and Sewer-Due in 2005 [$5,950]..........cccccuvrviiniininiieiniinns 2.50% 5,950 5,950
Total Notes Payable. 5,950 5,950
Self-Supporting Bonds Payable:
2000 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2020, [$1,040] 4.55%-5.55% 905 40 865 40
2003 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2012 [$1,500] 2.00%-3.55% 1,345 150 1,195 160
2005 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2025 [$4,445] 2.00%-3.55% 4,445 4,445 160
Total Self-Supporting Bonds Payable 2,250 4,445 190 6,505 360
Total Business-type Activiite: $ 14,380 $ 5340 $ 7,521 $ 12,199 $ 1,204
Component Unit
Compensated absence: $ 25,153 $ 3,857 $ 2,852 $ 26,158 $ 2,938
Amounts due third party payors (See Note B) 41,435 5,784 3,343 43,876 8,185
Claims payable (See Note J) 45,774 12,593 11,676 46,691 21,989
Asset Retirement obligations (See Note B) 5,161 550 5711 1,434
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2009 4.958%-4.96% 2,294 218 859 1,653 763
2004 Cuyahoga County Sanitary Engineer Loan -Due thru 2018 None 91 7 84 6
2003 General and Professional Liability Note -Due in 2006. 3.75% 4,576 5,750 5,980 4,346 4,346
Various Notes Payable-Due thru 2010 3.96% 296 204 119 381 80
Bonds:
1997 Hospital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds-Due Thru 2027, [$70,000] 3.90%-5.80% 46,634 179 4,615 42,198 4,825
1997 Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2019, [$77,525] 4.10%-5.50% 68,572 306 265 68,613 275
1999 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2029, [$56,995] 6.125%-6.15% 56,814 56,814
2003 Hospital Inprovement Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2033, [$30,545] Variable 30,010 580 29,430 600
2005 Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2035, [$74,535] Variable 74,535 5,087 69,448 305
Total Bond: 202,030 75,020 67,361 209,689 6,005
Total Component Unit (See Note B) $ 326,810 $ 103,976 $ 92,197 $ 338,589 $ 45,746

Capital Lease Information: The following summarizes future minimum lease payments under the capital
leases, and the present values of net minimum lease payments for the Primary Government at December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)
Governmental Internal Service
Year Activities funds

$ 3,728 % 156

3,756 156

3,796 130

3,824 77
2010.......... 3,858
2011-2015... 12,330
2016-2020. 3,133
2021-2025... 68
2026-2029 46

Total Minimum Lease Payments.... 34,539 519

Amount Representing Interest (10,984) (44)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease PaymentS..........cccoevviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeninniiiiieeeeeeee $ 23,555 $ 475
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The following summarizes future minimum payments and the present values of net minimum lease
payments for the Component Unit's equipment capital leases and loan obligation at December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)
Year Lease and Loan Obligation

Component Unit
2006, .. ettt bbbt bRttt e et ah et e e b e b e enbe e e $ 832
2007 -t h Rt h e Rkttt eh et bbbt b e enbe e e 832
2008 ettt bbbt Rt bRkt et eR bt b e et bt nbe e e e beenee e 53
2009, ..t ettt nR e et s e ne 53
2000. 1ttt bt E bRt b e et n Rt et e e ba e b e aa e be et e 7
2010-2005. ..ttt bbbt b et n et enee 33
2016-2018.... e ieieiee ittt r et r e 20
Total Minimum Lease PayMENES.........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee it 1,830
Amount Representing INtEreSt........coocuiiiiiiiiii e (93)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments.........ccccoiieiiiieeiniiiiiiiee e ssiiiieeee e $ 1,737

As of December 31, 2005, the net book value of capital leases which include land, buildings, structures and
improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment was $6.1 million, $39.2 million and $.5 million respectively.
Component Unit's capital lease net book value which includes furniture, fixtures and equipment and vehicles was
$3.3 million and $4.1 million, respectively.

Future Debt Service Requirements: A summary of the County’s future debt service requirements for its
outstanding long-term bonds, installment purchase agreement and loans payable at December 31, 2005 are as
follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Revenue
Bonds Bonds

Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 16,667 $ 13,940 $ 3935 $ 6,913
19,380 10,115 4,110 6,726
15,314 14,157 4,330 6,516
15,867 13,597 4,550 6,283
15,686 12,968 4,805 6,027
61,952 44,709 28,365 25,746
2016-2020.... 59,735 14,121 35,355 15,131
2021-2025.... 20,260 2,357 23,870 2,883
2026-2030. 630 122
Totals $ 224,861 $ 125,964 $ 109,950 $ 76,347

(Amounts in 000's)
Installment Purchase Loans
Agreement Payable

Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006.......ceeeeeiei s $ 1693 $ 307 $ 217 $
20070 1,920 232 250
2008......ccceeirinii 1,999 154 584 177
2009 S o 2,080 73 594 76
2000...000vevevveeereeveeessiis 189 5 605 66
2011-2015....ccrereieieeeerierienie 3,192 164
2016 .. sttt 250
TOAIS .o vvvvvvvvevvissssssssssss st $ 7881 $ 771 $ 5752 $ 483
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(Amounts in 000's)
Total Governmental
Activities

Due In Principal Interest
2006ttt E ettt Rt r Rt r e r et $ 22572 % 21,160
2007..... 25,660 17,073
2008..... 22,227 21,004
2009..... 23,091 20,029
2010......... 21,285 19,066
2011-2015... 93,509 70,619
2016-2020... 95,340 29,252
2021-2025... 44,130 5,240
2026-2030... 630 122
TOTAIS. ..ttt $ 348,444  $ 203,565

(Amounts in 000's)
Business-type Activities
Various Loans Bonds
Payable Payable
Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006.......... 357 $ 144 $ 360 $ 250
2007 .. 367 134 365 239
2008. 377 124 380 229
2009. 388 113 385 216
2010. 399 102 405 203
2011-2015 1,961 329 1,630 806
2016-2020.... 757 60 1,545 495
2021-2025 88 8 1,435 177
TOMAIS. ... $.. 4694 $ 1014 $ 6505 $ 2,615
(Amounts in 000’s)

Due In Total Business-type Activities

Principal Interest

2006, et E e E bbbt eh bbb $ 717 $ 394

2007 732 373

2008 757 353

2009 773 329

2010.... 804 305

2011-2015... 3,591 1,135

2016-2020... 2,302 555

2021-2025... 1523 185

LI 1T PPV P PP PRSP $ 11,199  $ 3,629

In May 2003, the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $10 million from
the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT). The money is provided through the state infrastructure bank fund,
which are federal funds, to be used to improve a road and reconstruct a bridge. The loan carries a 0% interest rate
for the first 12 months and a 3% rate thereafter, for 10 years. The County pledged its motor vehicle license tax as the
source of repayment. State Issue Il and ODOT monies were used first for this project and when funding was
exhausted the loan was exercised for this purpose. During 2005, the County received approximately $3 million from
ODOT and has recorded a liability in the Government-wide statements.

In January 2005, the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $2.6 million
from the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) on a taxable basis and in turn, loaning the funds
received from Fannie Mae to private developers for the purpose of constructing housing projects. As security for
repayment of the borrowing, the County will pledge loan repayments from the private developers, non-tax revenues
and provide collateral in the form of cash or a letter of credit equal to 25% of the principal amount of the borrowing.
Borrowing must be repaid in full within three to five years with periodic principal and interest payments to be made
during the term of the borrowing. The County has not received nor loaned any of this funding through the date of this
audit.
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During 2005, the Hospital entered into an agreement with a bank for a demand line of credit with a maximum
amount available of $20 million. The contract interest rate is .90% per annum plus one month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR). For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Hospital did not have an outstanding balance on
the line of credit and the Hospital did not access the credit line during the course of the year.

At December 31, 2005, the bonded debt service requirements of the Component Unit are as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Hospital Revenue Bonds
Component Unit

Due In Principal Interest
200B..... ettt ettt ettt R £ Rttt R Rt e Rt e R et R et e e n e Ren e be e ten e ae s enentenennene $ 6,005 $ 6,146
2007..... 6,300 5,886
2008..... 6,600 5,618
20009..... 6,920 5,322
2010......... 7,280 4,996
2011-2015.... 42,435 19,463
2016-2020.... 49,680 8,783
2021-2025 41,520 2,939
2026-2030 38,355 287
2031-2035.... 17,835
LI L LRSS PSSR 222930 $ 59,440
Unamortized difference between reacquisition

price and the net carrying amount of

previously defeased debt...............coo i (11,801)
Unamortized discount.............ccoueeeveeenneen. (1,440)
Present value of net minimum payments $ 209,689

(Amounts in 000's)
Foundation Notes Payable
Component Unit

Due In Principal Interest
70 T TR, $ 80 $ 14
80 11

80 8

80 5

61 2

$ 381 $ 40

Component Unit Swap Agreements: The Component Unit entered into various interest rate swap
agreements with a total outstanding notional amount of $104 million. The Hospital's objectives of its derivative
instruments include managing the risk of increased debt service resulting from rising market interest rates, the risk of
decreased surplus returns resulting from falling interest rates and the management of the risk of an increase in the
fair value of the outstanding fixed rate obligations resulting from declining market interest rates. The fair value of the
swap agreements based on current settlement prices at December 31, 2005 was $2.4 million. Such amounts are due
from the counterparties and are included in other assets. In 2005, the fair value increase of $1 million was recorded
as unrealized gains on investment. As a result of the agreements, the Hospital incurred additional interest expense
of $ .1 million for 2005.

On July 28, 2005, the Hospital entered into a swap agreement with an amortizing notional amount of $74.5
million. The notional amount is based on the Series 2005 Bond principal repayment schedule that ends in 2035. Per
the agreement, the Hospital pays a fixed rate of 3.3% and the counterparty pays 70% of the 3 month USD LIBOR.
2005 LIBOR rates ranged between 2.4% and 4.4%. The net amount is exchanged monthly between the two parties.
The Hospital has an early termination option.
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On May 14, 2003, the Hospital entered into a twenty-one month swap agreement with a fixed notional
amount of $56 million. The agreement ended on February 15, 2005. The Hospital paid a fixed rate of 1.5% and the
counterparty paid a floating rate equal to the Bond Market Association Municipal Index (BMA Swap Index), an index
of seven-day high-grade tax-exempt variable rate demand obligations. During the agreement, BMA index rates
ranged between .7% and 2%.

On March 13, 2003, the Hospital entered into a swap agreement with an amortizing notional amount of
$30.5 million. The amortizing notional amount is based on the Series 2003 Bond principal repayment schedule
ending on March 1, 2033. Per the agreement, the Hospital pays a fixed rate of 3.5% and the counterparty pays 75%
of the USD LIBOR rate. Net settlement amounts are exchanged monthly. The Hospital has the option to terminate
the agreement prior to the February 2035 expiration date.

On September 1, 1999, the Hospital entered into a swap agreement with a fixed notional amount of $56
million. On February 15, 2005, the agreement ended when the counterparty exercised its early termination option.
The agreement was originally scheduled to terminate on February 15, 2014. Per the agreement, the Hospital paid
the BMA Swap Index rate and the counterparty paid a fixed interest rate of 5.4%. During the agreement, the BMA
index rates ranged between .7% and 5.8%.

Long-Term Bonds: All long-term general obligation bonded debt of the Primary Government is retired from
the Debt Service fund, except bonds payable from Enterprise funds which will be paid from cash flows generated by
these funds. General obligation bonds are secured by the County’s ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax
within limitations of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds, except revenue bonds, are secured by an unvoted property tax
levy; however, each bond indenture provides for principal and interest to also be paid from user charges. The
revenue bonds are secured by non-tax revenue of the County.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$108.6 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Accrued Wages and Benefits: County employees become eligible to receive one-fourth of their accumulated
unpaid sick leave upon retirement after a minimum of ten years of service. Certain agencies may have policies that
vary with regard to payment of accrued sick leave upon retirement. Termination of employment must be by
retirement to receive accumulated unpaid sick leave. Employees with a minimum of one year of service become
vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Vacation time may not be accumulated for more than three years.
Unused vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. In general, employees are eligible to be paid for
unpaid overtime and unused compensatory time upon termination of employment. All sick, vacation, compensatory
and overtime payments are made at the employee's current wage rate. Balances for compensated absences are
kept at various department levels, therefore, the data is only combined annually for reporting purposes. Since data
for increases and decreases in compensated absences is not available, amounts are estimated based on sample
data.

Payments for compensated absences are made from the following major funds: The General fund, Human
Services, County Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services and the following non-major funds:
Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, Community Development and Other.

The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $25.9 million
liability recorded in the statement of net assets (Governmental Activities) at December 31, 2005 was based were as
follows:

Amount

Governmental Activities Hours (in 000's)
SCK 1ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et t e e ht e te e et e ettt e bt e R teeaateantee st e ebeeennaeanaeenneeanteennnean 27,447 $ 543
Vacation. 1,181,623 23,395
OVEITIMIE. ..ottt e e eh e bbbt b e st se e bt e b e bt n b nbe e 99,687 1,974
TIOTAL ettt bbb 1,308,757 $ 25,912
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The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $.5 million liability
recorded in the statement of net assets (Business-type Activities) at December 31, 2005 was based were as follows:

Amount
Business-type Activities Hours (in 000's)
543 $ 12
20,301 443
871 19
21,715 $ 474

Special Termination Benefits: In May 2001, the Board of County Commissioners authorized the purchase of
additional service credit (equal to 20% of accumulated service time up to a maximum of 5 years) under OPERS (see
Note G) for certain employees close to retirement as an incentive to retire early. The Early Retirement Incentive
Program (ERIP) was approved for participating departments and agencies of the County by agreement with the
County Commissioners. Eligible employees had until June 30, 2002 to elect to participate in the program. As of June
30, 2002, 1,127 employees had accepted the program resulting in a total cost of $101.3 million payable to OPERS.
In addition, the County Board of Mental Retardation (CBMR) adopted an ERIP plan in 2005. CBMR will purchase up
to 2 years of service credit for eligible employees to be paid over a period of 2 years for employees in both OPERS
and STRS Ohio. As of December 31, 2005, 23 employees agreed to participate at a cost of $1.3 million and an
outstanding liability of $.5 million.

Payments for special termination benefits are made from the following major funds: The General fund,
Human Services, County Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services and the following non-major
funds: Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, and Other.

Payments are made to OPERS in quarterly installments over the life of the purchased service credit. The
following summarizes the future payment requirements to fund the cost of the special termination benefits for the
employees who had elected to participate in the plan at December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental Business-type
Year Activities Activities
D200 TP PP PPPPPPPR $ 18,800 $ 467
2007 i 2,779 88
Total Termination Benefit Payments.... 21,579 555
Amount Representing Interest............. (1,092) (29)
INEE AMIOUNT. ...ttt e e et e et e e e ettt e e e et eeeeeasteeeeeeessseeeeenssseeaeeassseeeeeeanssseeeeesnnsseeeannsneees $ 20,487 $ 526

Advance Refunding of General Obligation Bonds: On March 19, 1993, the County issued general obligation
bonds amounting to $140.7 million with interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.25%. The issues consisted of voted and
unvoted refunding debt as well as new voted debt. The unvoted refunding debt amounted to $75.4 million, the voted
refunding debt amounted to $49.4 million and the additional voted debt amounted to $15.9 million. The refunding
debt proceeds were used to advance refund outstanding debt of $115.6 million which consisted of $49.6 million and
$66 million of voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The County advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt
service payments over the next 20 years by $1.5 million and $2.9 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively,
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $1.2 million and $2.2 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The aggregate amount of the
defeased General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2005 was $21.4 million. The remaining proceeds
from the issuance were used to fund various capital projects.

The County issued $74 million of General Obligation (limited tax) Refunding Bonds dated April 21, 2005 to
advance refund a portion of the County’s $35.1 million General Obligation (limited tax) Various Purpose Improvement
Bonds, Series 1995, and advance refund a portion of the County’s $96.6 million General Obligation (limited tax)
Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2000. The proceeds of the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were used to advance
refund $13.3 million of the Series 1995 bonds that are callable in November 2005 and $60.1 million of the Series
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2000 bonds that are callable in December 2010. The non-callable portion of the refunded bonds, which total $26.8
million, remained outstanding at the time the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were issued. The County advance
refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt service payments by $3.3 million and to obtain an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $3.1 million. The
aggregate amount of deferred General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2005 was $60.1 million.

Advance Refunding of Component Unit Bonds: Effective February 1, 1997, the County issued $70 million of
Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1997. The proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were
used to advance refund $20.9 million of Series 1989 Bonds scheduled to mature on February 15, 2007; to advance
refund $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $2.7 million of the Series 1989 Bonds stated to mature on February 15, 1999,
February 15, 2000 and February 15, 2001, respectively; to finance the construction of various improvements and
additions to the MetroHealth Medical Center; and to pay costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

Effective November 1, 1997, the County issued $77.5 million of Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1997A. The proceeds of the Series 1997A Bonds were used to advance refund $73.7 million of Series 1989 Bonds
scheduled to mature on February 15, 2019. The 1997 refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $9.8 million. This unamortized difference ($6.7 million at
December 31, 2005) is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from long-term debt and is
being charged to operations through the year 2019 using the effective interest method.

Effective September 1, 1999, the County issued $57 million of Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 1999 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series 1999 Bonds are
being used to finance the construction of a 150-bed long-term care facility and acquire, construct, renovate, equip
and improve operating rooms and other hospital facilities. On July 28, 2005 a portion of the proceeds from the 2005
Series Bond issue was placed in escrow to advance refund the outstanding Series 1999 Bonds.

Effective March 13, 2003, the County issued $30.5 million of Hospital Improvement Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2003 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series
2003 Bonds are being used to pay costs of constructing and equipping an administrative building and the Critical
Care Pavilion. The bonds bear interest at a variable rate (not to exceed 10%) determined weekly as established by
the Remarketing Agent based on current market values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates until
2033. The rate at December 31, 2005 was 3.6%.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Hospital entered into a Reimbursement
Agreement with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the Hospital entered into an Irrevocable
Letter of Credit (Letter of Credit) issued by a local bank that expires on March 22, 2008. Under the terms of the Letter
of Credit, the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make principal and interest payments. The Letter
of Credit is subject to various financial covenants.

Effective July 28, 2005, the County issued $74.5 million of Hospital Improvement and Refunding Variable
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2005 Bonds). Proceeds from
the 2005 Series Bonds were used to advance refund $57 million of the outstanding Series 1999 Bonds scheduled to
mature on February 15, 2029; to pay costs of constructing, renovating, furnishing, equipping and improving the South
Campus long-term care and skilled nursing facility; and to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2005 Bonds.
The bonds bear interest at a variable rate (not to exceed 10%) determined weekly as established by the Remarketing
Agent based on current market values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates until 2035. The interest
rate at December 31, 2005 was 3.6%.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2005 Bonds, the Hospital entered into a Reimbursement
Agreement with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the Hospital entered into an Irrevocable
Letter of Credit (“Letter of Credit”) issued by a local bank that expires on July 16, 2010. Under the terms of the Letter
of Credit, the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make principal and interest payments. The Letter
of Credit is subject to various financial covenants.

The July 28, 2005 bond refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt of $5.2 million. The unamortized difference ($5.1 million at December 31, 2005),
reported in the accompanying financial statements, as a reduction from long-term debt, is included as an increase to
interest expense through the year 2029 using the effective interest method.
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The Series 1997, 1997A, 1999, 2003 and 2005 Bonds were issued pursuant to a master trust bond
indenture agreement between the County, acting by and through the Hospital's Board of Trustees, and the bond
trustee. The Series 1997, 1997A, 1999, 2003 and 2005 Bonds are special obligations of the County payable solely
from the revenue derived from the operation of the Hospital and other monies available to the Hospital's Board of
Trustees, and are secured by the revenue and real property of the Hospital. Accordingly, the bond proceeds and
indebtedness have been recorded as assets and liabilities of the Hospital.

Other Financial Obligations

Operating Leases: During the year 2005, the County had approximately 62 operating leases for office space
and equipment. At December 31, 2005, there were 41 remaining with future obligations. The operating lease
agreements range in length from one month to nine years. Total rental payments for 2005 amounted to $4.6 million,
of which $.8 million was expended from proprietary funds. Rental obligations for the years 2006 through 2010 are
$12.1 million of which $2.1 million represents the amount to be paid from proprietary funds. Rental payments for the
years 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 will be $4.5 million, $3 million, $2.4 million $1.5 million, and $.7 million
respectively. Operating lease payments are recorded as an expenditure in the period to which they apply.

The Hospital has entered into operating lease agreements for a parking facility, medical space and office
space which expire through 2020. Certain leases contain rent escalation clauses and renewal options for additional
periods ranging from one to five years. Rent expense totaled $2.1 million in 2005. Minimum rental commitments
under operating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2005 are as follows: 2006 - $1.4 million; 2007 -
$1.5 million; 2008 - $1.5 million; 2009 - $1.4 million; 2010 - $1.3 million; 2011-2015 - $3.5 million; 2016-2020 - $1.7
million.

Gateway Loan Guarantees: The County currently guarantees the repayment of $24.7 million of bonded debt
of Gateway. This amount represents the outstanding par amount of Stadium Revenue Bonds, the original
outstanding amount of which was $31 million. As of December 31, 2005, the outstanding balance on this Gateway
bond guarantee, including future interest payments, was $30.6 million (payable through September 15, 2014). The
County has not been required to make any payments on behalf of the Gateway bonds. In September 2004,
Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds. Also, the County originally guaranteed the Subordinate Excise
Tax Revenue Bond for Gateway whose par value was $38.4 million. The final principal and interest payments of $6.7
million were made in 2005 and the County has no further obligation on that issue.

Conduit Debt Obligations: Periodically, the County has issued Industrial Development, Hospital Revenue
and Mortgage Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial, commercial and hospital facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payment received on the underlying mortgage loans.
The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the County and, therefore, are not reported
in the financial statements. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-
sector entity served by the bond issuance.

As of December 31, 2005, the aggregate principal amounts outstanding for the Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds were approximately $270.1 million, $1.9 billion and $238.8 million,
respectively.

NOTE G - Pension and Retirement Plans and Other Post-employment Benefits
Primary Government

OPERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: All full-time employees of the County, except teachers employed by the
County Board of Mental Retardation, participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).
Employee retirement benefits are available for substantially all employees under three separate retirement plans
administered by the OPERS. The plans are the Traditional Pension Plan — a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; the Member-Directed Plan — a defined contribution pension plan; and the Combined Plan — a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and defined
contribution plan. OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and post-retirement healthcare benefits, to the
Traditional and Combined Plan members however, healthcare benefits are not statutorily guaranteed. Participants in
the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the
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authority to establish and amend benefits to the OPERS Board of Trustees. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement
System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 222-6701, or (800) 222-7377.

OPERS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees are required to contribute 8.5% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement
employees. In January 2001, House Bill 416 divided the OPERS law enforcement program into two separate
divisions with separate employee contribution rates and benefits as follows: (1) The law enforcement classification
which consists of sheriffs and deputy sheriffs with an employee contribution rate of 10.1% and (2) all other members
of the law enforcement program who were placed in a newly named public safety division and are required to
contribute 9%. The employer contribution rate is 13.55% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement which is
16.7%. Beginning in January 2006, the employer and employee rates will increase each year through 2008. The
employer rate will increase in 2006, 2007 and 2008 to 13.7%, 13.85% and 14% respectively. The employee rate will
increase in 2006, 2007 and 2008 to 9%, 9.5% and 10% respectively. The total employer contributions from the
County to OPERS (excluding amounts paid in 2005, 2004 and 2003 for ERIP — See Note F) for the years 2005, 2004,
and 2003 were $50.9 million, $49 million, and $34.4 million , respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year. In 2003, OPERS offered to change its billing cycle from quarterly to monthly in exchange for a deferral of the
second quarter of 2003 employer contributions. The County agreed to participate and deferred paying its April 2003,
May 2003 and June 2003 employer charges until December 2004, December 2005 and December 2006,
respectively. The deferral amounts to $3.4 million for April 2003, $5.2 million for May 2003 and $3.4 million for June
2003.

OPEB BENEFITS PROVIDED THROUGH OPERS: In addition to the pension benefits described
previously, OPERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirants with 10 or more years
of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also
available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment
Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

A portion of each employer's contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health
care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health
care through their contributions to OPERS. The portion of the employer contribution rate used to fund postretirement
health care for both 2005 and 2004 was 4% of covered payroll. During 2005 and 2004, $14.9 million and $14.4
million, respectively, of the County’s total contribution to OPERS was used for postretirement benefits. At December
31, 2005, the County was not responsible for paying premiums, contributions, or claims for OPEB under OPERS for
any retirees, terminated employees or other beneficiaries.

The OPEB is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis through employer contributions and
investment earnings thereon. The principal assumptions based on the latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 2004 were as follows:

Funding Method: The entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in determining the
present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and
losses) becomes part of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Assets Valuation Method: All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial valuation purposes, a
smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of
unrealized market appreciation or depreciation on investment assets.

Investment Return: The investment return assumption for 2004 was 8%.

Active Employee Total Payroll: An annual increase of 4%, compounded annually, is the base portion of
the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the 4% base increase, were assumed to range from
.5% to 6.3%.

Health Care: Health care costs were assumed to increase at the projected wage inflation rate plus an
additional factor ranging from 1% to 6% for the next 8 years. In subsequent years (9 and beyond) health
care costs were assumed to increase at 4% (the projected wage inflation rate).
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The Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP) adopted by the OPERS Retirement Board on September 9,
2004 will be effective January 1, 2007. In addition to the HCPP, OPERS has taken additional action to improve the
solvency of the Health Care Fund in 2005 by creating a separate investment pool for health care assets. As an
additional component of HCPP, member and employer contribution rates increased as of January 1, 2006, which will
allow additional funds to be allocated to the health care plan.

At December 31, 2005, there were 376,109 active participants contributing to the Traditional Pension and
Combined Plans. The County's actuarially required OPEB contribution for 2004 equaled the actual amount
contributed to OPERS by the County. In addition, at December 31, 2004, the actuarial value of the plan’s net assets
available for OPEB approximated $10.8 billion and the actuarial accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability, based on the actuarial method used, were $29.5 billion and $18.7 billion, respectively.

STRS OHIO PLAN DESCRIPTION: Teachers employed by the County Board of Mental Retardation
(CBMR) participate in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). STRS Ohio is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer retirement plan. Employee benefits are available under three separate retirement plans
administered by STRS Ohio. The plans are the defined benefit plan, the defined contribution plan and a combined
plan, which allows member contributions to be allocated by members and employer contributions to be used to fund a
defined benefit payment. STRS Ohio provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefits to the STRS Ohio Board of Trustees. STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the State Teachers Retirement System
of Ohio, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

STRS OHIO FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees are required to contribute 10% of covered payroll. The employer contribution
rate is 14% of annual covered payroll. The employer contributions from the County Board of Mental Retardation to
STRS Ohio for the years 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $ 1.8 million, $1.8 million, and $1.9 million respectively, and
equal to the required contributions for each year.

OPEB: STRS Ohio also provides OPEB to plan members in the Defined Benefit or Combined Plans. The
qualifications required to receive benefits replicate OPERS. STRS Ohio has established a Health Care Stabilization
Fund to accumulate monies for OPEB. The portion of the employer contribution rate allocated to the Health Care
Stabilization Fund was 1% of covered payroll. The County’s contributions for OPEB for the years 2005 and 2004
were $.1 million and $.1 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

The balance in the Health Care Stabilization Fund was $3.3 billion on June 30, 2005 (latest information
available). For the year ended June 30, 2005, the net health care costs paid by STRS Ohio were $254.8 million and
there were 115,395 eligible recipients.

Component Unit

Retirement and OPEB benefits for Hospital employees are provided through OPERS in the same manner as
employees of the County’s primary government. The Hospital's total contributions to OPERS for the years 2005,
2004 and 2003 were $40 million, $38 million and $36.4 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for
each year. The portion of the Hospital's total contribution to OPERS which was used to fund OPEB for the years
2005 and 2004 was $11.8 million and $11 million, respectively.

NOTE H - Deficit Balances

At December 31, 2005, the Capital Projects, Central Custodial Services, Maintenance Garage, Printing
Reproduction and Supplies and Communications funds had net asset deficits of $8.2 million, $1.6 million, $.1 million,
$.1 million and $.1 million, respectively. The deficit in Capital Projects fund will be eliminated by a future debt issue.
The Central Custodial Services, Maintenance Garage, Printing Reproduction and Supplies and Communications
funds are Internal Service funds. The deficits will be eliminated through adjustment of the related fee schedules and
subsidies as necessary.
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NOTE | - Fund Equity

Reserves and Designations: The County segregates fund balances using two different account categories;
reserved and designated. Two general types of reserved fund balance accounts are used. The first type indicates
the portion of fund balance which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type indicates the
portion of fund balance which does not represent available, spendable resources and is, therefore, not eligible to fund
current year expenditures. Designations indicate the portion of the unreserved fund balance which management has
earmarked for a specific future use. Designations are not legal segregations.

Reserve accounts used by the County include:

Reserved for Restricted Assets: This account represents the portion of the General fund’s equity that
includes certificates of deposit that support the County’s Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.) and the
unspent proceeds of the County’s Brownfield Economic Redevelopment bonds. At December 31, 2005, the balance
in this account was $25.8 million of which $20.3 million represents the fund equity related to the certificates of deposit
and $5.5 million represents the fund equity related to the Brownfield Redevelopment bond proceeds.

Reserved for Loans Receivable: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that pertains to
long-term loans receivable and is not available for current expenditure. At December 31, 2005, $19.7 million has
been reserved for loan repayments.

Reserved for Debt Service: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that must be used to
fund principal and interest on Gateway Economic Development Revenue Bonds in the succeeding year as well as the
equity balance in the Debt Service fund. At December 31, 2005, $15.4 million has been reserved for debt service.

Designation accounts used by the County include:

Designated for Self-Insurance: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to fund any claims or judgments against the County which are not covered by insurance. At December
31, 2005, $2 million has been designated for self-insurance.

Designated for Proprietary Funds: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to retire outstanding Enterprise and Internal Service funds' deficits. At December 31, 2005, $2 million has
been designated for future Internal Service funds' subsidies.

NOTE J - Risk Management and Other Contingencies
Primary Government

Litigation and Claims: There are certain pending and threatened lawsuits and other claims against the
County. The County’s management, after consultation with the County Prosecutor, is of the opinion that the potential
uninsured claims against the County are not material to the County’s combined financial statements.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted
grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives.
The County believes that disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position.

Self-Insurance: The County has designated $2 million of the fund balance of the General fund, pursuant to
Ohio law, to provide monies for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies. Settled
claims from risks covered by the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past
three fiscal years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County in 2005 and estimates for
unsettled claims at December 31, 2005, including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial. The County is
also self-insured with respect to unemployment and workers’ compensation benefits. Self-insurance expenditures
were immaterial for unemployment compensation in 2005. Since 1992, the County has maintained an Internal
Service fund for its self-insured workers’ compensation benefits administered through a retrospective rating plan with
the State of Ohio. Prior to 1992, the County was fully insured for workers’ compensation benefits. The County uses
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a payroll-based rate to charge its various funds for workers’ compensation benefits. These charges are contributed
into the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and are based on estimates needed to pay current claims and
establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Changes to the estimated claims payable recorded in the
Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable — Workers Compensation 2005 2004
Estimated claims payable beginning of year...............c.ccceevena. $ 17,263 $ 18,766
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates 2,881 1,292
Less: Claim payments ........cccceovvveeinieeeinnieeesinee e 2,428 2,795
Estimated claims payable end of year...........ccoccceeivieeiniiiicnnnn. $17,716 $17,263

The County is also self-insured with respect to its prescription drug plan and, beginning in 2005, one medical
plan. Changes to the estimated claims payable recorded in the General fund during the year ended December 31,
2005 were:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable — Health Insurance 2005
Estimated claims payable beginning of year..............ccecevveeneenn. $
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates .. 11,009
Less: Claim payments .........ccccceeeeeennns 8,971
Estimated claims payable end of year $ 2,038

Component Unit

Self-Insurance: The Hospital is self-insured for medical malpractice and workers’ compensation benefits.
For the professional and patient care liability, professional insurance consultants have been retained to determine
funding requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient care have been placed in an irrevocable, self-
insurance trust account, which is being administered by a trustee.

Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting
system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The reserve for estimated
self-insured claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported. The changes in the reserve were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable 2005 2004
Estimated claims payable beginning of year............cccceeeevveennnnn $ 45,774 $41,735
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates .. 12,593 18,059
Less: Claim PaymMeNntS ......ooueeeieieeee it ee e eiieeee e 11,676 14,020
Estimated claims payable end of year ............cccceeeveciecienrieencens $ 46,691 $ 45,774
DUE WIthin ONE YEAI .....evieeieiieiie et se et ee e $21,989 $ 21,925
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NOTE K - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all County funds during the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract-related expenditures/expenses. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the succeeding year.

At December 31, 2005, encumbrances outstanding in Governmental funds and Proprietary funds which
were reappropriated in the 2006 budget were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fUNG .....cc.evveeiieiieeeee e $ 27,729
Human Services fund .........ccoooovvevviiiiiiieiiieee e, 40,176
County Board of Mental Retardation fund ....................... 9,135
Health and Community Services fund 36,223
Other Governmental funds ................... 88,148
Sanitary Engineer fund......................... 725
Other Enterprise funds ... 866
Internal Service funds..... 7,355
TOMAl oottt $210,357

On a GAAP basis, a portion of these encumbrances represented liabilities of the County. At December 31,
2005, encumbrances recorded as liabilities were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fUNG........c..eeeiiieiieeeee e $ 2,429
Human Services fund .........cccceeeveiiiiiiiee e 4,300
County Board of Mental Retardation fund ....................... 2,648
Health and Community Services fund 8,614
Other Governmental funds ................... 9,119
Sanitary Engineer fund......................... 85
Other Enterprise funds ... 169
Internal Service funds..... 834
TOMAL et $ 28,198
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NOTE L - Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, tangible (used in business) and public utility property.
The assessed value upon which the 2005 tax collection was based follows:

Property Type (Amounts in 000’s)
Real ProPerty.......cccecvieeiiiiee ettt $ 27,318,158
Personal tangible property.................... 2,384,697
Tangible public utility property 944,717
Total assessed Value .........coooveeeiiieiiiiiiieeee e $ 30,647,572

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.45 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value of which
.61 is designated for debt service and the remainder is credited to the County’s General fund. In addition to the 1.45
mills, 12.07 voted mills have been levied for debt service, mental retardation, health and human services and health
and welfare. A summary of voted millage follows:

Voter Rates Levied for Final
Authorized Current Year Collection

Purpose Rate(1) Collection(?) Year

Agricultural/ Commercial/

Residential Industrial
DEDL SEIVICE ..cooeeiieeieiiieeeeeeeei e $ .27 $ .27 $ .27 2013
Mental retardation G) .........cocoovvvvveinn. 3.90 3.90 3.90 Cont.
Health and human services.................. 3.00 1.65 2.14 2007
Health and welfare...........ccccoeeeeiiiinnnn. 4.90 4.45 4.82 2008
Total voted millage........ccccccvvevvvenenenne $ 12.07 $ 10.27 $ 1113

(1) In mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

(2) Ohio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property.
The mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare levies are subject to this
credit.

(3) A continuing replacement levy was approved November 2005.

Real property taxes are levied each December on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1st, the
lien date. Assessed values are established the preceding year by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value. A revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in 2003. Public utility property taxes are assessed on
tangible personal property, as well as land and land improvements at true value, which is, in general, net book value.
Tangible property is assessed at 25% of true value except for inventories which are assessed at 23% of average
value. Personal property (other than public utility property) taxes are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
based on tax rates determined in the preceding year and assessed values determined at the close of the most recent
fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the current calendar year. Public utility real and
tangible personal property taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
on assessed values determined as of January 1 of that preceding year, the lien date. The County Treasurer bills and
collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in Cuyahoga County including the County. Taxes are payable
semi-annually. The County's practice is to extend the statutory due dates to January and July. Unpaid taxes become
delinquent after December 31 of the year they are due. Foreclosure proceedings may be initiated by the County
Prosecutor if delinquent taxes are not paid within one year.

The County Auditor periodically remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts. The final
settlements of real and public utility property taxes are made in June and November and tangible taxes in July and
December for the first and second halves of the year, respectively.
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Property taxes receivable represent outstanding current and delinquent taxes which are measurable as of
December 31. Property taxes receivable are levied to finance operations of the following year and, therefore, are
also recorded as deferred revenue. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied.

Property tax revenues were recorded in the following funds in 2005:

Governmental Funds (Amounts in 000's)
(1T 1= =1 IR $ 21,793
Health and Human Services Levies.........ccccceeeeeeeeeervennn. 169,249
County Board of Mental Retardation .... 85,915
Health and Community ServiCes ........cccccccevvvvvvieeeeeniinns 13,839
Other Governmental ...........c..eeeiiiiiiiiiieieee e 22,879
Total property tax reVENUES ........ccccevvriiiieiieeieiiiiieeeeen $ 313,675

Property tax revenues include levies collected from both the current levy and delinquent levies. The
cumulative delinquency as of December 31, 2005 for Cuyahoga County was $32.1 million.

The delinquent property taxes described above do not include certain receivables that have been sold to a
third party. Since 1998, the County has sold, on a nonrecourse basis, certain qualifying, delinquent real estate tax
receivables, along with the related liens, to a third party in exchange for discounted cash payments that approximates
the penalty and interest on the receivable. Some older delinquencies are sold at a deeper discount. In connection
with the sale of the receivables, the third party obtained the right to foreclose on the related properties, as well as
charge interest and certain fees on the delinquent amounts. The cash payments received by the County were
credited to the County’s Undivided Tax Agency fund and distributed to the various taxing districts within the County
(including the County) in the same manner as if the delinquent receivables had been collected directly from the
taxpayers.

Beginning in 2006, personal property taxes will be reduced 25% per year for each of the next four years
through 2009 at which point the tax will be eliminated. Telephone companies will switch from being public utility to
general business taxpayers beginning in 2007. Over the next five years beginning in 2007, telephone property will
phase out and be eliminated from taxation in 2011. The revenue from personal property tax will be reimbursed to the
local governments beginning in 2006 from a new Commercial Activity Tax (CAT) collected by the State of Ohio. The
CAT tax will be phased in over five years and local governments will be held harmless by the state through
distribution of the tax for the first five years back to collections in the base year. Therefore, the County should suffer
no significant impact during this period.
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NOTE M — Other Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal components of other intergovernmental revenue for the year ended December
31, 2005 follows:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund:
State Public Defender reimbursement $ 4,706
State property tax reimbursement..............ccccceee. 3,412
Election Assistance Commission (EAC) 14,598
(@1 1= T PRTRT 1,327
Total General fund..........coooiiiiiiii e 24,043
Special Revenue funds:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development....... 22,215
U.S. Department of JUSLICE .........uevveeeiiiiiiieeee e 6,184
U.S. Department of Labor................ 170
U.S. Department of Education 1,523
U.S. Department of Homeland Security ................. 14,796
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 10,618
Federal and State Mental Health and Retardation............. 200,396
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
AddICtION SEIVICES ...covviiiiiiieeeiiiee e 28,687
334,885
3,951
1,844
1,978
23,328
4,789
655,364
Debt Service fund:
State property tax reimbursement.............cccvveeeeeeiiciineenn. 4,011
Capital Projects fund:
Ohio Department of Transportation ..............cccceeeeeeeeiinnnee 11,907
OtNEI <. 7,911
Total Capital Projects fund ..., 19,818
Total Other Intergovernmental............cccccoovveeeeiiiieecciiee e $ 703,236

NOTE N - Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds which are
classified as transfers. Transfers are interfund transactions that do not represent loans, reimbursements or quasi-
external transactions. Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them; to move unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations;
to provide additional resources for current operations or debt service; reclassification or prior year distributed monies,
to segregate money for anticipated capital projects; and to return money to the fund from which it was originally
provided once a project is completed

Transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in Governmental funds and as nonoperating
revenues (expenses) in Proprietary funds.
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A summary of interfund transfers by fund type follows for the year ended December 31, 2005:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Transfer To
County
Board of Health and Other Other
Human Mental Community Governmental Enterprise
Transfer From General  Services Retardation Services Funds Funds Total

Transfers:
Major Governmental Funds:

General FUNd .......ccoooviiiiie e $ $ $ $ 12,030 $ 10,279 $ 1,652 $ 23,961
HUman Services........c.ocuvuviereniieieene 228 228
Health and Human Services Levies ...... 38,726 92,967 131,693
Health and Community Services ........... 700 143 843

Other Governmental Funds ................. 444 688 41 1,562 7,066 9,801
Other Enterprise Funds 990 990
Internal Services Funds.... _ . 2,039 2,039
Total Transfers ..., $1,144 $ 39414 $ 41 $ 106,787 $ 20,517 $ 1,652 $ 169,555

NOTE O - Transactions with Gateway

In 1990, the County, the city of Cleveland and Gateway Economic Development Corporation of Greater
Cleveland (Gateway) entered into a three party agreement which authorized Gateway to construct, own and provide
for the operation of a sports facility which included a baseball stadium, an arena and a joint development site.
Gateway was incorporated on May 31, 1990 and is a not-for-profit corporation legally separate from any other entity.

The County and Gateway also entered into a revolving loan agreement whereby the County agreed to issue
bonds and loan the bond proceeds to Gateway to pay arena construction costs. As part of this agreement, the County
issued taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $75 million on September 24, 1992 and $45 million on
February 1, 1994. At December 31, 2005, the County has $95 million of debt outstanding relating to these bond
issues (See Note F).

In February 2004, the County refinanced the 1992 variable rate Gateway Economic Development Bonds
(See Note F). In April 2004, Gateway refinanced the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. In September 2004,
Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds.

The amount due from Gateway under the revolving loan agreement is $195.8 million at December 31, 2005,
including unpaid accrued interest. During 2005, Gateway repaid the County over $4.5 million and the remaining
amount is fully reserved due to the uncertainty of the repayment from Gateway.

The County, Gateway and the Convention and Visitors Bureau of Greater Cleveland (the Bureau) entered
into a cooperative agreement on September 15, 1992, which included a provision that allowed a credit to be given to
Gateway for the incremental amount the Bureau receives from the County Transient Occupancy Tax to use as
payment to the County for the bonds issued. This agreement was amended on December 22, 1998 to redefine the
annual incremental credit and to provide for the deposit by the Bureau for the years 1994 through 1998. The County
received $1 million from this agreement during the year ended December 31, 1999. The County will receive $.2
million during each subsequent year, subject to certain adjustments. The County received $.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

The County has also guaranteed the repayment of certain bonds issued by Gateway. See Note F for the
details of the County’s guarantee.

During 2004, Gateway completed negotiations on its stadium leases with the owners of the Cleveland
Indians and the Cleveland Cavaliers. The new agreements free the organization from covering minor repairs and
routine maintenance. Gateway’s $4.9 million annual expenses will be divided by the teams. Gateway agreed to give
up $1 million annually in naming rights from the Indians until 2016. The Cavaliers will no longer hold Gateway
responsible for $9.5 million of capital repairs which the Cavaliers paid and offset against previous rent payments.
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Although the County believes that the revenue sources that secure the repayment of the revenue bonds the
County has guaranteed will be adequate to provide for the future debt service requirements under the bonds, if
Gateway was to become insolvent, the impact on the County’s future financial condition and operations cannot
presently be determined because of uncertainties regarding the amount of Gateway’s future cash needs and the
extent (if any) of the County’s funding of such needs.

NOTE P — Loans

Loans receivable represent economic development and property rehabilitation loans outstanding under the
Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and various other grant and development programs. The
loans are either non-interest bearing or have below market interest rates and are made to qualifying citizens and
businesses for rehabilitation of real property within the County. The loans are secured by mortgages against the
individual properties and generally have various repayment terms which may extend over several years.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR
SPECIFIC GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES (OTHER THAN
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS) REQUIRING SEPARATE
ACCOUNTING BECAUSE OF LEGAL OR REGULATORY
PROVISIONS OR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION AND
EXPENDITURES FOR SPECIFIED PURPOSES.

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax To account for Motor Vehicle Gas Tax federal and
state revenues which are distributed to various
municipalities and townships for repair and building of
streets and bridges.

Community Development To account for revenue from the Federal government
and expenditures as prescribed under the Community
Development Block Grant Program and Housing and
Urban Development Programs (HUD).

Other To account for miscellaneous special revenue grants
received by the county. Health and Community
Services Grants have been combined with this special
revenue fund.

Debt Service To account for revenues received and used to pay
principal and interest on all long-term bonded debt
except those payable from Enterprise funds.
Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes.

Capital Projects To account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of all county land and
buildings, major improvements and road
improvements. (Other than those financed by
proprietary funds).
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
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DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Special Revenue

Motor
Vehicle Community
Gas Tax Development Other Total
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments............c.ccoceveennenne. $ 19,306 $ 7411 $ 279 $ 26,996
Receivables:

Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles)....

Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles).... 18,739 18,739
Net receivables..........ccocvvveiiiie e 18,739 18,739
Due from other governments...........cccccvevveeieeeneenieenieen 10,192 4,609 8,716 23,517
TOTAL ASSETS ...t $ 29,498 $ 30,759 $ 8,995 $ 69,252
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable...........ccceeiiiiiieiii e $ 2,145 $ 4,260 $ 6,029 $ 12,434

Deferred revenue 5,848 5,848

Due to other funds..........cccviiiiiie e 307 12 100 419

Due to other governments..........cccoocvveeiiieeeiniiee e 2,728 2,728

Accrued wages and benefits 238 32 99 369

Matured bonds payable...............

TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...ttt 8,538 7,032 6,228 21,798
Fund Balances

Reserved for:

Loans receivable..........cccvvviiiiee i 18,739 18,739

Dbt SEIVICE......oeiiiiiiccceee e

Unreserved, Undesignated.... 20,960 4,988 2,767 28,715
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 20,960 23,727 2,767 47,454
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.........c......... $ 29,498 $ 30,759 $ 8,995 $ 69,252
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Debt Capital Governmental
Service Projects Funds

5765 $ $ 32,761
23,925 23,925
18,739
23,925 42,664
1,246 4,999 29,762
30,936 $ 4999 $ 105,187
$ 2,033 % 14,467
24,979 30,827
11,208 11,627
2,728
369
14 14
24,993 13,241 60,032
18,739
5,943 5,943
(8,242) 20,473
5,943 (8,242) 45,155
30,936 % 4999 $ 105,187
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Property taXeS. ... .uuurerireieiieiieieieeeeee e
(@) (31T - O U
Fines and forfeitures..........covviviiiiiiiei i
Investment earnings..............

Other intergovernmental
MISCEIIANEOUS.......ceiiiiiiiiiiie e

TOTAL REVENUES........cciiiiiiee e

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General QOVEIMMENT. .......cuuviiiiiie it
[ o o7 - | PPN
DEVEIOPIMENT. ....iiiiiiiiii ettt
Social services
Health and safety
Public works
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement..............oooiiiiiiiiie e
INEEIEST. .t
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........coviiieieeiie et

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES.........ccciiiiiiiiiie

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers N
Transfers out:

Issuance of refunding bonds............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiies
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent..............ccccceeeennnee
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).................
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..........cccccvieiirieniiennens

FUND BALANCES AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR......ccoiiiiiiiii e

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) AT
END OF YEAR......cooiiiiiieiicee s

Special Revenue

Motor
Vehicle Community
Gas Tax Development Other Total
$ $
28,580 28,580
250 250
743 743
4,135 22,215 39,755 66,105
368 14 6,454 6,836
34,076 22,229 46,209 102,514
85 85
17,378 17,378
20,280 392 20,672
3,718 3,718
19,975 19,975
37,764 184 37,948
37,764 20,280 41,732 99,776
(3,688) 1,949 4,477 2,738
1,421 2,315 849 4,585
(5,655) (3,050) (8,705)
(4,234) 2,315 (2,201) (4,120)
(7,922) 4,264 2,276 (1,382)
28,882 19,463 491 48,836
20,960 $ 23,727 $ 2,767 47,454
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Total

Debt Capital Nonmajor

Service Projects Governmental
22,879 $ $ 22,879
7 28,587
250
2 712 1,457
4,011 19,818 89,934
27 9 6,872
26,926 20,539 149,979
85
17,378
20,672
3,718
19,975
18,485 56,433
38,981 38,981
20,924 1,927 22,851
16,030 420 16,450
36,954 59,813 196,543
(10,028) (39,274) (46,564)
6,437 9,495 20,517
(1,096) (9,801)
80,020 80,020
(80,020) (80,020)
6,437 8,399 10,716
(3,591) (30,875) (35,848)
9,534 22,633 81,003
5943 $__ (8,242) $ 45,155
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- BUDGET (NON GAAP) AND ACTUAL
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
REVENUES
Property taxes.........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiccciii $ 21,890 $ 21,844 $ 21,845
SaAleS AN USE TAX..eiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt 167,800 168,990 168,990
(O 1 1= g = PO U OO 12 14 7
State local government fund.............ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiniin e 38,539 38,539 38,539
Licenses and PerMIitS........ooouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiii e 100 73 86
Charges for services 57,358 62,489 65,261
Fines and forfeitures 6,250 7,096 7,565
Investment earnings.......... 11,500 20,000 16,522
Other intergovernmental..............cccooiiiiiiieeiiniiiiiee e 8,141 8,807 9,290
MisScCellan@ous.............coooiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,254 4,992 1,966
TOTAL REVENUES. ... 316,844 332,844 330,071
EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Vital Statistics
OFNEI ...ttt 25 25 13
Total Vital StatistiCs..........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiec e 25 25 13
Bureau of Inspection
Other ... s 650 650 624
Total Bureau of INSPECHION. ..... ... 650 650 624
Auditor
Personnel ... 5,852 5,852 5,776
Other .. 2,994 3,616 3,653
[OF=T o] = | ST PPRRTPPPRRt 20 20 20
Total AUGIOr.........vviiiiiiiiiii s 8,866 9,488 9,449
Board of Elections
PEISONNEL.....ciiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,765 5,356 4,968
OLhEI ...ttt 9,251 10,211 9,877
CAPILAL v 23 27 27
Total Board of Elections............ccc.eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 15,039 15,594 14,872
Board of Revision
Personnel ... 445 445 441
135 141 141
580 586 582

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000’s)

County Commissioners

Personnel............iiiiiiiiiiiii

@Y o | = RPN
Total County COMMISSIONEIS.......iiuiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiceeee e aaeeas

County Administrator

Personnel............iiiiiiiiiiii

@Y o | = PPN
Total County AdMINISIrator..........cuuiiiiiiiiiii e

Human Resources

L@ o | = PP

Total Human ReSOUICES...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieciciiii e

Employment Relations

Personnel............iiiiiiiiiiii

Capital

Total Employment Relations............c..oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieecei e

Benefits

Capital

Total Labor Relations...............oooooiiiiiiiiiieiii e

Office of Budget and Management

Personnel............iiiiiiiiiiiiii

Capital.....cceuieiiee e

Total Office of Budget and Management...

Clerk of the Board

Personnel...

CAPItAL ..t
Total Clerk of the Board ...............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
1,126 1,197 1,197
399 776 596
4 6 5
1,529 1,979 1,798
704 838 838
544 368 367
3 3
1,248 1,209 1,208
1,765 2,018 1,981
779 2,266 1,952
5 27 24
2,549 4,311 3,957
689 687 686
359 339 158
2 2 1
1,050 1,028 845
449 454 454
184 152 127
2 2
635 608 581
335 340 339
30 37 18
1 1
366 378 357
1,074 1,071 1,009
367 422 340
13 13
1,441 1,506 1,362
472 487 487
82 111 81
1 4 4
555 602 572
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts

Procurement and Diversity

Personnel........ooiiii 806 800 785

OtheT e 363 390 359

Capital.......ccoooiiiii 3 9 6
Total Procurement and Diversity.......cccccoeeoveiieenneeneennns 1,172 1,199 1,150
Risk and Property Management

Personnel........ccooiiiiiiiiiiii 494 487 483

Other e 2,085 2,734 2,699

CaPItal..cee e 2 2 1
Total Risk and Property Management............c...ccc.eeeeen 2,581 3,223 3,183
Archives

Personnel 199 192 191

Other........ 685 629 626

Capital 1 1 1
Total ArChiVeS......c.iiiiiiiii e 885 822 818
Recorder

PersonNNel......ccoouiiiiiiiiiii e 4,372 4,812 4,812

OthET e 1,360 1,443 1,443

Capital 16 39 32
Total ReCOrder........oocviiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 5,748 6,294 6,287
Treasurer

PersoNNel.......co.ioniuiieie e 3,098 3,099 3,073

Other ... 1,491 1,884 1,721

Capital 11 11 11
Total TreaSUIer......civiiiiii e 4,600 4,994 4,805
Reserve/Contingencies

OthET e 2,000 2,000
Total Reserve/ContingencCies..........ccoveuiiuiiueieenaeeeans 2,000 2,000
Agricultural Society

Other ... 3 3 3
Total Agricultural SOCIetY.......cccevuiieiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 3 3 3
Memorial Day Allowances

Other ... 72 72 58
Total Memorial Day Allowances.........ccccccouveevieiennnenn. 72 72 58
Soldiers and Sailors Monument

PersonNNel......ccouuiiiiiiiiiii e 78 84 84

105 81 81

CAPIAL et 8 8 8
Total Soldiers and Sailors Monument.................ccoeeeee. 191 173 173

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000’s)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts

Cuyahoga County School District

OB ... 43 43 27
Total Cuyahoga County School DistriCt..............cccccoviiiieennnes 43 43 27
Self-Insurance

Other .. i 1,978 1,978 793
Total Self-INsurance...............cceeiiiiiiiiiiiii 1,978 1,978 793
Miscellaneous

OB ... 1,210 1,202 605
Total MiSCEIIANEOUS. ......cuveiiieeeeiee et aeans 1,210 1,202 605
Data Systems Development

Other .. 237 75
Total Data Systems Development............ccceeviiiiiiiiiieeinnneenns 237 75
Capital Improvement G/F Subsidy

(@1 0T S PP UPP PP PUPPTY 160 160 118
Total Capital Improvement G/F Subsidy..............cccoevviiiennnnns 160 160 118

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ..ottt eeeis 55,413 60,202 54,240
JUDICIAL

Board and Care of Prisoners

Other .. 5,625 7,025 6,530
Total Board and Care of Prisoners...............cccceeeieeeininiiiininnnns 5,625 7,025 6,530
Court of Appeals

PEISONNEL......iiii e aaan 1,324 1,324 1,300

OBNEI .t 667 697 658

Capital 20 14 8
Total Court Of APPEAIS.......cceviiiiiii e 2,011 2,035 1,966
Clerk of Courts

PISONNEL. ...t aaan 6,109 6,237 6,231

Other .. i 4,986 5,072 4,798

CAPILAL ..t 21 222 217
Total Clerk Of COUIMS......ocuiiniiiii e aeas 11,116 11,531 11,246
Court of Common Pleas - Law Library

Personnel...........cccoooiiiiiiiii 205 204 203

Capital 1 1 1
Total Court of Common Pleas - Law Library..............cccceuuueens 206 205 204

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
Common Pleas Legal Research
92 106 106
92 106 106
6,024 6,435 6,434
16,197 13,133 12,200
CaAPItAL. ..o 23 217 207
Total Common Pleas-Judicial Administration............... 22,244 19,785 18,841
Common Pleas-Referees
Personnel ... 842 986 977
(@] 15 1 Y 243 251 192
Capital.......ooiiiiiiiiii 3
Total Common Pleas-Referees.............ccvvvveiiiiiiiinnnn. 1,088 1,237 1,169
Common Pleas-Court Services
Personnel.......cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 6,654 6,760 6,757
Other........ 700 744 742
Capital 24 17 17
Total Common Pleas-Court Services...........c.cceevvnenn.n. 7,378 7,521 7,516
Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric
PEeISONNEL....cuniiiii e e 7,971 8,275 8,275
O it 2,521 2,490 2,385
Capital......cccoiiiiiiiii 27 11 10
Total Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric 10,519 10,776 10,670
Coroner
PersONNel........oouiiiiiii s 5,041 5,018 4,942
1,611 1,850 1,828
(@21 o 11 2= | PPN 18 35 30
B o) = L @0 ] o] g 1= SO PNS 6,670 6,903 6,800
Domestic Relations Court
Personnel......ccoooiiiiiiiii 2,650 2,865 2,826
(@] 1o 1 Y 975 1,116 1,053
Capital........oiiiiiiiiii 10 62 50
Total Domestic Relations Court............ccoeeeviiiiiiienennnnn. 3,635 4,043 3,929
Domestic Relations-Bureau of Support
Personnel.......cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 2,827 2,633 2,601
(@] 15 1T PP 457 480 415
Capital.......oeiiiiiiiii 10 37 12
Total Domestic Relations-Bureau of Support............... 3,294 3,150 3,028

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000’s)

Justice Affairs Administration

Capital
Total Justice Affairs Administration.............cccccceeeennnnn.

Justice Affairs-Criminal Justice

CaPitAl .o

Total Justice Affairs-Criminal Justice...........................

Witness Victim Services

CaPital ..o
Total Witness Victim ServiCes.............uuueeeeeeiennnnnnnnnnnnn

Criminal Justice Intervention Services

Juvenile Court-Administration
PersoNNel......coocuiiiiiiiiiiie e

CaPital...ceeieeeece e
Total Juvenile Court-Administration.............cccoccvveeeenn.

Juvenile Court-Legal
Personnel.........cocooiiiiiiiicii e

CaPital...ceeieeiiee e
Total Juvenile Court-Legal..........ccccovvviiiieeiiiiiiiiieennn,

Juvenile Court-Probation

Capital. ..o
Total Juvenile Court-Probation.............ccccoevviivieneennns

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
805 794 794
496 584 585
2 36 36
1,303 1,414 1,415
393 411 384
526 152 57
1 4 4
920 567 445
566 606 606
247 128 148
2 20 20
815 754 774
32 44 44
119 22 39
151 66 83
2,134 1,789 1,789
5,981 7,705 7,242
8 8 7
8,123 9,502 9,038
5,866 7,681 7,680
5,420 5,573 5,572
21 78 76
11,307 13,332 13,328
5,432 5,815 5,815
4,796 2,849 2,816
19 19 19
10,247 8,683 8,650
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
Juvenile Court-Child Support
=TT ] o o L= PSS 3,221 2,316 2,268
(@11 1= PP UP PPN 750 631 629
Capital 11 11
Total Juvenile Court-Child Support..........ccccceevieeeeennnn. 3,982 2,958 2,897
Juvenile Court-Detention Home
7,939 8,398 8,398
4,668 4,572 4,583
CAPIAL e 28 27 27
Total Juvenile Court-Detention HOme..............ccccveeennns 12,635 12,997 13,008
Municipal Judicial Costs
PeISONNEL.. ... 3,020 2,744 2,625
OthET e 632 556
Total Municipal Judicial COStS.........cccovvviiiiiiiieeeieeeiis 3,020 3,376 3,181

Total Village and Township Costs.... 5 5
Probate Court
PerSONNEl......cieiiiiee e 4,706 4,890 4,889
Ot e 1,211 1,258 1,197
CAPItAL e 17 20 20
Total Probate COUI.........ceuneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 5,934 6,168 6,106
Public Defender
PersonNel.......ooooiiiiiiiiiii e 5,588 5,497 5,492
Other.......... 1,090 1,100 902
Capital 20 109 109
Total Public Defender...........cccooviiiiiiiiiiicciiiiiieceeceis 6,698 6,706 6,503
13,069 13,458 13,432
3,908 3,771 3,827
CAPItAL e 1 24 23
Total Prosecutor-General Office.........ccooevveiiiieneenneenn... 16,978 17,253 17,282
Prosecutor-Child Support
PersonNel......cooooiiiiiiiiiiii e 2,181 2,265 2,264
(@13 1= PP RUPPPPTR 300 209 209
Total Prosecutor-Child SUPPOrt.........ccovvvvvivieiiieeeieeee. 2,481 2,474 2,473

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000’s)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
Prosecutor-Children and Family Services
Personnel........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii 2,393 2,304 2,297
ORI 71 250 250
Total Prosecutor-Children and Family Services........... 2,464 2,554 2,547
Sheriff
PersonNel.. ..o 52,664 55,896 55,603
Other .o 10,901 11,343 11,152
Capital 177 81 81
Total Sheriff. ... 63,742 67,320 66,836
Sheriff-lnmate Services
Personnel........cccoiiiiiiiiiii 3,353 3,359 3,338
OthET e 3,442 3,424 3,419
CaPItAl. e 12 6 3
Total Sheriff-Inmate Services................cooiiiiiiin. 6,807 6,789 6,760
TOTAL JUDICIAL ...ttt 231,485 237,235 233,336
DEVELOPMENT
Economic Development
Personnel.......ccooiiiiiiiii e 716 776 740
Other .o 6,210 4,264 4,260
Capital.......ccoooiiiii 2 6 6
Total Economic Development.........ccocveeiiiiiiiieniineennns 6,928 5,046 5,006
NOACA
Other ... 157 157 157
Total NOACA . . e 157 157 157
Soil Conservation
Other ... 81 81 81
Total Soil Conservation..............coooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiians 81 81 81
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT ..ottt 7,166 5,284 5,244
SOCIAL SERVICES
Cooperative Extension
310 310 310
310 310 310
12 12 1
12 12 1
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
Children Who Witness Violence
105 105 104
326 286 307
431 391 411
209 229 229
209 229 229
Veterans Service Commission
Personnel........c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,949 1,949 1,649
5,473 5,395 3,480
CAPIAL e 123 136 102
Total Veterans Service COmMMISSION........ccccuvveiuneennnnes 7,545 7,480 5,231
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES......cciiiiiiiiieiiieeiee e 8,507 8,422 6,182
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Agriculture and Apiary Inspection
(@] 4 1= S PO PP UUPPPR PPN 1
Total Agriculture and Apiary Inspection..............cccuuunn.. 1 1
Treatment Service Division
Personnel.........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii 88 167 167
Other.......... . 236 294 211
CaPItAl ... 4 4
Total Treatment Service Division..............ccccceeieeiiiinnnn. 328 465 378
CECOMS Center
Personnel........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii 670 696 695
Other.......... - 272 229 199
Capital......cccevveieeeeiins 2 2
Total CECOMS Center........ucveiiiiiiiieieieiiiieeereeiiee e 944 927 894
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY oot 1,273 1,393 1,273
TOTAL EXPENDITURES......ccooiiiiiiieiiiiiiieeeeineneeeeeeeeeeeee 303,844 312,536 300,275
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES.......... 13,000 20,308 29,796
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TraANSTEIS IN. e 1,144
Transfers out:
Debt retirement..... ... (7,301) (7,301) (5,737)
OUNET ..ot (12,531) (19,019) (18,224)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES.......ccoovoiieeeeeeeeeeeeenn (19,832) (26,320) (22,817)

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000’s)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........ccccotriiiniiiiiicrcieee (6,832) (6,012) 6,979
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........cccoceeviirennnenne 107,053 107,053 107,053
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR........ccoiitniieieeeiecenie s $ 100,221 $ 101,041 $ 114,032
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR VEHICLE GAS TAX FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Fund

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
(@] 11T g ¢ O TSP $ 30,619 $ 28,281
Fines and forfeitures.........oovi i 249 243
INVESTMENT AIMINGS. .. eiiviiiie et e ettt e et eeeeeaa s 785 681
Other intergovernMeNntal..............uuuiiiee i 3,546 4,423
MISCEIIANEOUS. .....cvniiiiie ettt e e 1,079 367
TOTAL REVENUES......coiitiiiiieiitietiie ettt 36,278 33,995
EXPENDITURES
Current:
PUBLIC WORKS

PEISONNEL. ... e 15,974 15,860

OBNE .. 2,622 1,691

[OF=T o] - | PP UPP PPN 17,272 15,526
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS ... .ottt ettt 35,868 33,077
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ...t 35,868 33,077
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. ... oot 410 918
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
LTS (=T £ T TS 641 1,421
Transfers out:

[ ] {5 T PPN (5,655) (5,655)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES.......cci i (5,014) (4,234)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........oiioiioiiiieee oo (4,604) (3,316)
FUND BALANCES AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR. ... 11,644 11,644

FUND BALANCES AT
END OF YEAR. ... .ottt bbb senenenee $ 7,040 $ 8,328




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Debt Service Fund

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
PrOPEIY TAXES....vvervevirietisietesieistee e ste st etesee e see e e sesee e ste e sseseesesaeteseesesee e ssenennens $ 22,885 $ 22,885
(@13 1= g - N PSPPSRSO 10 8
INVESEMENE AIMINGS. ...ttt 2
Other iNtergoVerMMENTAL..........cceivieiriieie ettt st 5,008 3,820
MISCEIIANEOUS.......oevveetiie ettt sttt st saeere et e e enee 1,285 27
TOTAL REVENUES.......ctiiiiititititriieeee ettt 29,188 26,742
EXPENDITURES
DEBT SERVICE:

PrinCipal FEtIrEMENL........cviiiieieiite s 22,158 20,914

INMEEIEST. ...ttt 16,791 15,849
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........ootiiiiiitiiiiteieietiie ettt ettt 38,949 36,763
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES......cocoitiiiiiiitiiiit sttt (9,761) (10,021)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
LI5S (=] £ USRS 5,829 6,437
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES........ccooiiiiiieiiiit ettt 5,829 6,437
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........cccoiiiiiiiiriiteieiei e (3,932) (3,584)
FUND BALANCES AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR......ccoi ittt ittt 6,895 6,895

FUND BALANCES AT
3,311

END OF YEAR.....oo i s $ 2963 $
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR OPERATIONS THAT ARE FINANCED AND OPERATED
IN A MANNER SIMILAR TO BUSINESS IN THE PRIVATE SECTOR.
THE EXPENSES (INCLUDING DEPRECIATION) OF PROVIDING
GOODS AND SERVICES PRIMARILY OR SOLELY
TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC ARE FINANCED OR RECOVERED
PRIMARILY THROUGH USER CHARGES.

County Airport

Huntington Park Garage

Cuyahoga County Information System

The airport provides landing and storage facilities for
commercial flights, private business aircraft and
recreational aircraft for the general public.

The garage provides parking facilities to nearby
County Administration, Courthouse and Justice
Center buildings for the general public.

The system provides computerized information on
criminal records and court cases to communities
within the county.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO
ACCOUNT FOR THE FINANCING OF GOODS OR SERVICES
PROVIDED BY ONE DEPARTMENT OF THE COUNTY TO
OTHER DEPARTMENTS OF THE COUNTY ON A
COST-REIMBURSEMENT BASIS.

Central Custodial Services

Maintenance Garage

Data Processing Center

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies

Communications

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation

The Central Custodial Services division is responsible
for all maintenance, cleaning and upkeep of county
buildings and offices. It also bills all rents to county
offices and agencies.

The Maintenance Garage is responsible for the
upkeep of all county owned vehicles and equipment.

The Data Processing Center provides centralized
data processing for the entire county.

The Printing, Reproduction and Supplies division
provides the county with all printing and reproduction
services and central purchasing of supplies.

The Communications division provides all telephone
service in addition to mail and delivery services for the
county.

The Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund
provides self-insurance to the county through a
retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio for
workers’ compensation.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments...........ccccccoveieeiiiinnnn.
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles).......
Due from other funds...........ccoceiiiiiiiii e
Due from other governments..........cccccceeeieeeiieeniee e
Inventory of SUPPIIES......ccuviiiiiiiiiiiee e
Total CUMTENT ASSEIS.....ccviiiiirieiiireerte e

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land improvements..........ccccoocveeieeeineene
Buildings, structures and improvements..
Furniture, fixtures and equipment............
VENICIES. ...
COoNStruCtion iN ProgresSs.......cueeeveeiveeaniieesieeaieeeeeeeseee s

Net capital @SSELS......c.cviiiiiiiiieiie e
Total NONCUIMTENE ASSELS......vviiiiiiiiiieiie et
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ......coiiiiiiieiii e
Due to other fuNdS..........coiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Accrued wages and benefits............ccooieiiiiii e,
Special termination benefits............cccovvveviiiic e,
Total current liabilities..........cooveiiiii e,

Noncurrent liabilities:
Special termination benefits............ccovvieriiniii e,
Total noncurrent liabilities.............cccoveieiiiiiiiccie e,
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ... cuti ettt

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...............ccceeeeenne

unrestricted........ccovvveeeiiieee e
TOTAL NET ASSETS

Cuyahoga
County
County Huntington Information
Airport Park Garage System Totals
$ 1,304 $ 791 % 2,095
262 17 279
13 13
231 231
16 16
278 1,304 1,052 2,634
6,057 1,224 7,281
1,940 1,940
272 8,236 8,508
22 1 180 203
94 94
533 533
8,918 9,461 180 18,559
8,918 9,461 180 18,559
9,196 10,765 1,232 21,193
171 276 131 578
630 20 2 652
58 57 14 129
39 39
898 353 147 1,398
10 10
10 10
908 353 147 1,408
8,918 9,461 180 18,559
(630) 951 905 1,226
8,288 $ 10,412 $ 1,085 $ 19,785
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Cuyahoga
County
County Huntington Information
Airport Park Garage System Totals

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges fOr SEIVICES. .......cooiiiiiiieiie et $ 945 $ 2,368 $ 1,184 $ 4,497
Other revenue 16 16
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.........oottiiiiiiiieieeeiiiieeee e 961 2,368 1,184 4,513
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services........ 606 651 319 1,576
Contractual services.... 62 130 812 1,004
Commodities............... 147 32 4 183
D= o] (=To1E= i o] o O OO PP PPRPPTPON 360 412 6 778
OthEI EXPENSES. ...eeiiiiiei ittt ettt ettt e st e e e e eneee e 555 1,141 1,098 2,794
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,730 2,366 2,239 6,335
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)......ocuiieeeceeeeieieeeeeeeesssesenenes s enessssssees (769) 2 (1,055) (1,822)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
GrANES. e 308 308
Loss on disposal of capital assets (2) (2)
TOTAL NONOPERATING

REVENUES........ooiiii 306 306
GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE

TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS......c.coovoveeieeieieeeeeeeeeeeeceeeenee (463) 2 (1,055) (1,516)
B I 10 ) (=Y £ O SRR 641 1,011 1,652
Transfers out:

DEDt FEHITEIMENT. ...ttt (95) (95)

(01T ST (895) (895)
Capital contributions 43 6,117 6,160
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS....oiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 221 5,129 (44) 5,306
TOTAL NET ASSETS

BEGINNING OF YEAR. ... 8,067 5,283 1,129 14,479
TOTAL NET ASSETS

END OF YEAR. .. .ottt s $ 8,288 $ 10,412 $ 1,085 $ 19,785
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Cuyahoga
County
County Huntington Information
Airport Park Garage System Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from CUSIOMETS...........ccociiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 919 $ 2,368 $ 1,266 $ 4,553
Other operating Cash reCeIPLS..........ccccuiiiiiiiiiiiii 16 16
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services (825) (1,120) (2,044) (3,989)
Cash payments to employees for services............. (596) (643) (320) (1,559)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES. (486) 605 (1,098) (979)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other funds 641 1,011 1,652
Transfer to other funds, (990) (990)
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan... 613 613
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,254 (990) 1,011 1,275
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from capital grants 308 308
Acquisition and construction of capital assets. (1,076) (185) (1,261)
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (768) (185) (953)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.. (385) (272) (657)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,689 1,063 2,752
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.......ccciiiiiieniieiesieeeeiees $ 0 $ 1304 $ 791 $ 2,095
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating inCome (I0SS).........ccccvviiieiiiiiiiiies $ (769) $ 2 3 (1,055) $ (1,822)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPIECIALION. ...t 360 412 6 778
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable-net..............ooooiiiiiii (25) 2 (23)
Due from other funds............cccoecviiniiiiniiiie 33 33
Due from other governments. 33 33
INVentory of SUPPHIES.......c.coviiiiiiiiiiiii s (6) (6)
Accounts payable (19) 182 (116) 47
Due to other funds 3) 4 1 2
Accrued wages and benefits... 12 5 ) 15
Special termination benefits. (36) (36)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 283 603 (43) 843
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES........cccoveveae $ (486) $, 605 $ (1098) $ (979)
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contributions - capital assets.. $ 43  $ 6,117 $ $ 6,160
TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS.. $ 43 $ 6117 $ $ 6,160
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center
ASSETS
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments.............cccveeeiiiiieeeeennns $ 3,798 $
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)........... 1
Due from other fuNdS..........ccoooriiiiii e 63
Due from other governments...........ccccoccvvvieiiniiiiiie e 621
INventory of SUPPLIES........ccoiciiiiiiiiiii e 38
TOtal CUIMENT ASSELS...ciiiiiiiiiiie ettt 4,419 101 1
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Furniture, fixtures and equipment..............cccceeeeiiiiiinne e, 98 2 5,959
VERNICIES. ..o 13 552
Net Capital ASSELS........ueiiiiiiiiiiie et 111 554 5,959
Total noncurrent assets... 111 554 5,959
TOTAL ASSETS....oiiii e 4,530 655 5,960
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...... 1,662 20 168
Due to other funds.............. 965 739 3,071
Due to other governments..
Accrued wages and benefitS.............iii 1,739 27 805
Capital lease obligations.............coccviiiiiiiiii e
Special termination benefits.........c.cccciiiiiiii 1,550 515
Total current abilities. .........ocveiiie i 5,916 786 4,559
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligations.............cccccveviiiiiiiic e
Special termination benefits............cccooiiiiiiii 236 65
Total noncurrent abilities. .........ocuviiiiiiiiiiii e 236 65
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot 6,152 786 4,624
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...............ccccceeeeeie 111 554 5,959
UNPESTIICTE. ...etiie ettt (1,733) (685) (4,623)
TOTAL NET ASSETS.....oiiiiiiiii e $ 1,622) $ (131) 1,336
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Printing Self-Funded
Reproduction Workers
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
89 55,466 59,353
1
534 205 7,585 8,387
107 728
5 43
539 294 63,158 68,512
467 135 6,661
565
467 135 7,226
467 135 7,226
1,006 429 63,158 75,738
202 142 2,194
459 35 5,269
17,716 17,716
32 71 14 2,688
91 43 134
35 176 2,276
819 467 17,730 30,277
260 81 341
21 322
260 102 663
1,079 569 17,730 30,940
116 10 6,750
(189) (150) 45,428 38,048
(73) (140) 45,428 44,798
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Central Data Printing
Custodial Maintenance Processing Reproduction
Services Garage Center and Supplies

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges fOr SEIVICES.....ccuuiiiiiiieiiie ettt $ 48,118 $ 923 $ 10,735 $ 3,168
Other reVeNUE............ccoiiiiiiiiii e, 197 52 4 14
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES........cciiiiiiieeeiieee e 48,315 975 10,739 3,182
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Services...........cooeevunnnn. 28,633 269 6,863 485
Contractual services and claims . 1,259 2,482 855
CommOodities..........uuvevererereieennn. . 9,396 430 293 1,640
Depreciation......... . 30 228 1,408 56
Other expenses..........cccvvvvveeiieenneens 4,703 84 1,861 396
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES... 44,021 1,011 12,907 3,432
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)......cviiueieeieieesiesisesiesesessissenesesnsinens 4,294 (36) (2,168) (250)
NONOPERATING EXPENSES
INEEIEST EXPENSE...c..vieiiiieieie ettt ettt ettt bbbt es (20)
Loss on disposal of capital assets
TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e (20)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS.........cccovivreireeveeseiesensiennas 4,294 (36) (2,168) (270)
Transfers out:

(1T S PPV RPOUPRPUPPRIN (2,039)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS....ooviieieeeeee e 2,255 (36) (2,168) (270)
TOTAL NET ASSETS

BEGINNING OF YEAR.....cittiiiiiiiiieieee ettt (3,877) (95) 3,504 197
TOTAL NET ASSETS

END OF YEAR. ...ttt $ (1622) $ (131) $ 1336 $ (73)
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Self-Funded
Workers

Communications Compensation Totals
3,704 $ 7,260 $ 73,908
5 49 321
3,709 7,309 74,229
968 117 37,335
14 4,589 9,199
5 11,764
21 1,743
2,462 50 9,556
3,470 4,756 69,597
239 2,553 4,632
3 (23)
(72) (72)
(75) (95)
164 2,553 4,537
(2,039)
164 2,553 2,498
(304) 42,875 42,300
(140) $ 45,428 $ 44,798
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers.. $ 197 $ 52 $ 4
Other operating cash receipts 50,497 928 10,747
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services (16,609) (552) (5,749)
Cash payments to employees for services (28,337) (261) (6,864)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES..........cccene. 5,748 167 (1,862)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer to Other fUNAS. ..........coiiiiii e (2,039)
Proceeds from (repayment of) short-term interfund loan-net..............ccccccveeinnnen. (167) 1,920
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ..ottt (2,039) (167) 1,920
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (58)
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES......ccoiiiiiiiiiiieiicieete e (58)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS............c..... 3,709
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........cccoovvviiiennn. 89
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.......cccciiiiiiiiieic e $ 3,798 $ 03 0
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS)......cuuieiieiiieiee ettt ettt see et esree e $ 4,294 $ 36) $ (2,168)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPIECIALION. ...ttt 30 228 1,408
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable-Net............c.ocoiiiiiiii 11
Due from other fuNdS. ..o 6 1
Due from other QOVEIrMMENTS. ........ccoiiiiiiiiiie it 2,379
INVENLOrY Of SUPPIIES. .....eeiieiiiiiiiee e ?3)
Accounts payable 596 (34) (420)
Due to other funds......... 231 1 ?3)
Due to other governments
Accrued wages and benefits 70 5
Special termination benefits (1,852) (691)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ...ttt sttt s 1,454 203 306
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.........cccoceeue. $ 5,748 $ 167 $ (1,862)
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets acquired through capital lease.............ccccceviiiiiiiiiiiicin e $ $ $
TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS. ..ottt $ 0% 0% 0
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Printing, Self-Funded
Reproduction Workers
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
14 $ 5 % 49 $ 321
2,849 3,594 6,119 74,734
(3,057) (2,574) (4,194) (32,735)
(476) (960) (116) (37,014)
(670) 65 1,858 5,306
(2,039)
444 2,197
444 158
(58)
87) (35) (122)
(20) 3 (23)
(107) (38) (203)
(333) 27 1,858 5,261
333 62 53,608 54,092
0 $ 89 $ 55,466 $ 59,353
(250) $ 239 $ 2,553 $ 4,632
56 21 1,743
11
(319) (110) (1,098) (1,520)
(43) 2,336
@ ©)]
(110) 106 8) 130
4 11 244
453 453
6 ) 1 80
(55) (200) (2,798)
(420) (174) (695) 674
(670) $ 65 $ 1858 $ 5,306
$ 135 $ $ 135
0% 135 $ 0$ 135
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
AGENCY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR ASSETS RECEIVED AND HELD BY THE
COUNTY ACTING IN THE CAPACITY OF AN AGENT
OR CUSTODIAN.

Payroll Agency Fund To account for payroll taxes and other related payroll
deductions collected for other governmental units or
funds.

Undivided Tax Agency Fund To account for all undivided taxes collected by the

county and their distribution to the proper
beneficiaries.

Other Agency Fund To account for all other monies held by the county as
custodian.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Total
Agency

Payroll Undivided Tax Other Funds
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments...............cc.ccccoeunee.. $ 9,606 $ 184,988 $ 20,979 $ 215,573
Cash and investments-segregated accounts..................cc.... 47,021 47,021
Taxes receivable..........c..uviiiiiiiiiie e 1,378,238 1,378,238
TOTAL ASSETS. . iitiuiiiiieiinininininteeeeneneneneeeaeeereaeneeeeeereeeerreee $ 9,606 $ 1,563,226 $ 68,000 $ 1,640,832
LIABILITIES
Due to other governMENtS.......ccooeeeeeeeieieieiee e $ 8,791 $ 1,562,695 $ 9,726 $ 1,581,212
Other iabilitieS. .......ooovveiiiie e 815 531 58,274 59,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES....coii it $ 9,606 $ 1,563,226 $ 68,000 $ 1,640,832
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000's)

PAYROLL

Balance at

Beginning Balance at

of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments... . 8 17,337 $ 568,482 $ 576,213 $ 9,606
TOTAL ASSETS...o et $ 17,337 $ 568,482 $ 576,213 $ 9,606
LIABILITIES
Due to Other QOVEIMMENLS. .......cecveeieeieerieesieesieeeie e e seeesree e eneeeeeens $ 17,217 $ 113,953 $ 122,379 $ 8,791
Other liabilities.............. 120 454,529 453,834 815
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 17,337 $ 568,482 $ 576,213 $ 9,606

UNDIVIDED TAX
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments............cc.ccoeevvereieneneeseene, $ 180,421 $ 2,406,720 $ 2,402,153 $ 184,988
Taxes receivable 1,301,608 1,378,238 1,301,608 1,378,238
TOTAL ASSETS $_ 1,482,029 $_ 3,784,958 $__ 3,703,761 $__ 1,563,226
LIABILITIES
Due to other goVEIrNMENTS..........ccciiiiiiiiiiiicc e $ 1,481,423 $ 3,766,797 $ 3,685525 $ 1,562,695
Other liabilities 606 18,161 18,236 531
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt $ 1,482,029 $ 3,784,958 $ 3,703,761 $ 1,563,226
OTHER

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and iNnVeStMENtSs............cccooeiieiieiiienienieeee $ 15,308 $ 99,645 $ 93,974 $ 20,979
Cash and investments-segregated aCCOUNtS...........ccoveeveerieeriennennns 36,071 529,634 518,684 47,021
TOTAL ASSETS... ottt $ 51,379 $ 629,279 $ 612,658 $ 68,000
LIABILITIES
Due to Other QOVEIMMENLS........cecuieieeiierieesieesieeeie e e seeesreeseeeneeeeeens $ 7,055 $ 273,730 $ 271,059 $ 9,726
Other IabilItIes. .......c.veiiiiiiic e 44,324 355,549 341,599 58,274
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt $ 51,379 $ 629,279 $ 612,658 $ 68,000
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments..........c.ccccocveeereieaieencieeens $ 213,066 $ 3,074,847 $ 3,072,340 $ 215,573
Cash and investments-segregated accounts 36,071 529,634 518,684 47,021
Taxes receivable.........cc.cooeeiiiiiiiiienenne, 1,301,608 1,378,238 1,301,608 1,378,238
TOTAL ASSETS. ...ttt $ 1,550,745 $ 4,982,719 $ 4,892,632 $ 1,640,832
LIABILITIES
DUE t0 Other OVEIMMENS. .....cviiiieieiiiieeie sttt $ 1,505,695 $ 4,154,480 $ 4,078,963 $ 1,581,212
Other liabilities 45,050 828,239 813,669 59,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt $ 1,550,745 $ 4,982,719 $ 4,892,632 $ 1,640,832
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE
OPERATIONS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE

DECEMBER 31
(Amounts in 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS: 2005 2004
=T T O ERRORR $ 52,959 $ 44,535
Land iMPIOVEIMENTS. ....cciiiiiiiiie e ettt e e s e e e ree s s e e e e e e nnnrreeeeeenas 13,268 12,323
Buildings, structures and improvVemMENtS. ...........eeiriiiiiiiiieniiiie e 565,350 540,912
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 22,076 21,321
VBRNICIES ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e 12,154 11,286
INFFASTIUCTUIE. ...ttt e e ettt e e e e e e aibb e e e e e e ntnnees 444,440 440,205
COoNStrUCtion IN PrOgrESS......uvvieeeeeiiiieieeeeeiairieeeeeeeeeveeeeas 51,454 41,480

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 1,161,701 $ 1,112,062

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE:

General fUND FEVENUES. ..........eiiiiiie ettt ettt e e nneeas $ 111,273 $ 110,171
Special revenue fUuNd FEVENUES............uiiiiie ittt 536,536 528,890
Capital projects:
General obligation DONAS..........cuuuiiiiec e 426,925 395,875
Federal, state and [0Cal GrantS..........ccuvieieiiiiiiiii e 86,952 77,111
[ B 0] T 1110 ] 1 1T OO PP R SOTTPPURN 15 15

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPIT AL ASSET S ittt e e s e e e e et e e e e e e e tateeeeeeseesaans $ 1,161,701 $ 1,112,062

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds, excluding accumulated
depreciation. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts.
Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY @

DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000’s)

Buildings, Furniture,
Land Structures and Fixtures and
Function and Activity Land Improvements Improvements Equipment Vehicles Infrastructure Totals
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Administration $ 21,950 $ 548 103,809 $ 144 $ 20 $ $ 126,471

Fiscal management..........cco.cevervevneeniiniinninns 2,242 1,477 3,719

Records and elections 450 481 5,803 2,920 9,654

Supportive services.... 424 137 3,637 70 4,268
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT .......ccoocevvveri. 22,824 1,166 115,491 4,611 20 144,112
JUDICIAL:

Adjudication 10,688 304 141,048 1,904 153,944

Legal services 389 19,204 2,541 22,134

Adult offender management 1,333 92,867 2,391 122 96,713

Juvenile offender management.. 4,277 10,788 26,963 508 19 42,555

Support enforcement 436 201 637
TOTAL JUDICIAL 16,298 11,481 280,518 7,545 141 315,983
DEVELOPMENT:

ECONOMIC.......ciiieiiieisieiceer s 30 6 36

Community. 26 26
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT.. 30 32 62
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financial assistance... 1,521 9 43,748 1,910 17 47,205

Protective services 106 39 3,596 1,164 4,905

Support service 9,821 563 88,952 3,181 7427 109,944

Employment and training.............ccocoveiniiiniieiinne 337 26,664 284 54 27,339
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES........cccovviirininii 11,785 611 162,960 6,539 7,498 189,393
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental health. 94 379 118 591

Emergency assistance... 1271 223 1,494

Alcohol and drug abuse.. 8 8

Animal control 1,659 5,213 6 146 7,024
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ......ccimiiriiniininnins 1,753 5,592 1,403 369 9,117
PUBLIC WORKS:

Public works 299 10 759 1,946 4,126 444,440 451,580
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS........cccvvirinirricininis 299 10 759 1,946 4,126 444,440 451,580
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS...........ccccoeuimnnnnne 51,454 51,454
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL ASSETS. $ 5299 $ 13268 $ 616,804 $ 22,076 $ 12,154 $ 444,440  $ 1,161,701

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds, excluding accumulated depreciation. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are

excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

111



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY®

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Amounts in 000's)

Balance at

Beginning Balance at
Function and Activity of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Administration..... $ 105,243 $ 21,256 $ 28 3% 126,471

Fiscal management 3,716 15 12 3,719

Records and elections. 9,768 28 142 9,654

Supportive services.... 4,245 23 4,268
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ... 122,972 21,322 182 144,112
JUDICIAL:

Adjudication 152,836 1,136 28 153,944

Legal services 22,015 119 22,134

Adult offender management 96,078 635 96,713

Juvenile offender management. 37,109 5,446 42,555

Support enforcement 584 53 637
TOTAL JUDICIAL......cvivieiiiieiiieiiiceiiieinieeneene s 308,622 7,389 28 315,983
DEVELOPMENT:

Economic 36 36

Community. 26 26
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT 62 62
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financial assistance..............cccoeviviciiciiennnnnn. 46,457 748 47,205

Protective services 4,777 128 4,905

Support services..... 103,814 6,338 208 109,944

Employment and training 27,218 121 27,339
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES.... 182,266 7,335 208 189,393
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental health 1,014 41 464 591

Emergency assistance 1,443 51 1,494

Alcohol and drug abuse.. 8 8

Animal control.................... 7,024 7,024
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 9,489 92 464 9,117
PUBLIC WORKS:

PUblic WOTKS.........cciviiiiiiiiiiccc 447,171 4,804 395 451,580
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS..........ccooiiiiciciicic s 447,171 4,804 395 451,580
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS............ccccoueune 41,480 25,796 15,822 51,454
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL ASSETS.......ociiiiiniiiniienennes $ 1112062 $ 66,738 $ 1709 $ 1,161,701

(2) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds, excluding accumulated depreciation.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts.
Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Statistical Section

The information presented in the schedules and tables in this section is provided
to reflect social and economic data, financial trends and the general fiscal capacity of
the County.







COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATISTICAL SECTION
STATISTICAL DATA TABLES

THE STATISTICAL SECTION PROVIDES SELECTED
FINANCIAL, ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
WHICH MAY BE USED TO INDICATE TRENDS
FOR COMPARATIVE FISCAL PERIODS.

THE STATISTICAL TABLES INCLUDE INFORMATION
ON GENERAL FUND RATIOS AND TRENDS,
ASSESSMENTS AND TAXES, LONG-TERM DEBT
AND MISCELLANEOUS DATA.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF STATISTICS-GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

OPERATING RATIOS-GENERAL FUND-GAAP BASIS

REVENUE DOLLAR BY SOURCE

Where the money came from: %
a. Property taxes..........occvvvevveeinnniinnnnn, 6.4
b. Sales, use and other tax................... 48.9
c. State local government fund ............. 11.3
d. Licenses and permits...............ccuue.e. 1
e. Charges for services.........cccccovvunnen. 18.9
f. Fines and forfeitures..............cc.ouuee. 2.3
g. Investment earnings .........ccccoeeeuuveee. 4.5
h. Other intergovernmental ................... 7.0
i. Miscellaneous..........cccceevvveeeiiiieennns _ 6
Total oveeeee e 100.0
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EXPENDITURE DOLLAR BY FUNCTION

Where the money was spent: %
a. General government..........c..cceeeenee. 21.3
b. Judicial .....coovvieiiiiii 74.2
c. Development........cccccvveeeeeiiiivennennn. 2.1
d. Social ServiCes ........cccuveveeeeiiiiinnenn. 1.9
e. 4
f. _ 4
100.0
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST FOUR YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

2002 2003 2004 2005
REVENUES
Property taXes........ccvooveieiririiieseesee e $ 259,892 $ 257,640 $ 315,172 $ 313,675
Sales aNnd USE taX......ceuvirreerierieeieenee e 156,713 158,634 167,871 167,156
OFNEI tAX..eiiviereerieeee et 28,610 29,000 29,888 28,683
State local government fund............ccccceeviveenieeennennnn 38,988 38,257 38,518 38,548
Licenses and PermitS........ccccovvererrireeiiieesneeeenieeesenens 1,258 1,357 1,668 1,815
Charges for SErVICES........ccovviiieeiiiee e 76,868 82,903 90,399 86,912
Fines and forfeitures. ... 7,464 6,590 6,286 8,149
INVESTMENT €ArNINGS....cccovvieiiiee e 25,689 10,771 6,015 17,859
Other intergovernmental...........ccocoeeeveeviiieenieeeeeen 605,909 614,789 645,748 703,236
Miscellaneous............... . 16,979 12,370 21,111 13,849
TOTAL REVENUES 1,218,370 1,212,311 1,322,676 1,379,882
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General goOVerNMENL........cocuvieiriieeriee e 63,613 59,843 67,576 84,122
JUAICIAL .. 276,089 273,222 290,960 293,777
DeVelOPMENL.....ccviirieiicieiereee e 24,493 26,011 33,208 32,308
SOCIAl SEIVICES.....eciiiriiiiiiecieeeeee e 630,304 579,203 580,338 587,823
Health and safety..........cccooviiiicniie e 156,515 152,903 178,263 207,379
PUDIIC WOIKS......ooiiiiiiicceccc e 62,181 56,540 57,910 58,381
Capital OUIAY........cocvereieierieeeee e 28,656 39,317 30,207 38,981
Debt service:
Principal retirement...........cccooviveiiiie e 21,481 36,199 20,870 22,851
INEEIESE....eiieeee e 16,874 13,371 16,455 16,475
TOTAL EXPENDITURES......cccoeiiiiieeiieiic e 1,280,206 1,236,609 1,275,787 1,342,097
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES.........ccciiiieiieiienicse e (61,836) (24,298) 46,889 37,785
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TranSTers iN...coeeciecceee e 198,355 151,013 184,677 167,903
Transfers out:
Debt retirement. . (9,131) (7,592) (7,221) (5,737)
Other......cccceveens . (188,831) (142,322) (178,747) (160,789)
Capitalized leases.. . 18,063 13,742 1,857
Issuance of debt ................. . 90,195
Issuance of refunding bonds.................. . 43,244 80,020
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent............ " (43,244) (80,020)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)... 18,456 14,841 90,761 1,377
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........cccccceevviiinnns $ (43,380) $ (9,457) $ 137,650 $ 39,162
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
EXPENAILUIES. ...ttt 3.1% 4.2% 3.2% 3.1%

Note: Only four years of data is available,
modified accrual basis of accounting.
Certain amounts in 2004 have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST FOUR YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

2002 2003 2004 2005
General fund
RESEIVEA. ....cciiiiiiiiie e $ 46,699 $ 44643 $ 37,896 $ 36,236
Unreserved 118,192 141,710 124,834 133,973
TOTAL GENERAL FUND........cctviiiiiiiiiieaeeeniiieeeene $_164,891 $_ 186,353 $_162,730 $_ 170,209
All other governmental funds
RESEIVEd......cciiiiiiiie e $ 14603 $ 17,968 $ 27,612 $ 24,682
Unreserved, reported in:
Special Revenue Funds.............ccccceeeiiiinn. 75,037 75,856 151,163 216,651
Capital Projects Fund.............ccoovviiiiinneeiiiiininnn, (18,586) (53,689) 22,633 (8,242)

TOTAL ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS...... $_ 71054 $_ 40,135 $_ 201,408 $_ 233,091

Note: Only four years of data is available,
modified accrual basis of accounting
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST FOUR YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

2002 2003 2004 2005
EXPENSES
Governmental activities:
General government. . B 78,570 $ 59,963 $ 69,154 $ 81,196
JUAICHAL + et 299,231 277,314 292,417 297,292
DEVEIOPMENL. ...ttt 30,630 25,332 32,524 31,653
SOCIAI SEIVICES. ...ttt 633,133 578,700 570,871 580,962
Health and Safety.........cccooieiiiieiie e 156,824 152,904 178,342 207,386
PUDBIIC WOTKS.....uviiiiiiiiiieeeee ettt 69,272 67,025 59,421 64,765
Interest on 1oNg-term debt.............eeviiiiiiieeeiiieee e 16,929 13,813 18,412 15,932
Total governmental activitieS eXPEeNSES..........covuvvireeerieeeniieesieeeninee 1,284,589 1,175,051 1,221,141 1,279,186

Business-type activities:

SaANItArY ENQGINEET ...ttt 11,299 10,069 9,604 11,293
Airport........c.ocueee 1,970 1,617 1,302 1,697
HUNiNGtoN Park Garage...........ccveeeueeeiiieiiiieiiee e 1,890 1,753 2,418 2,299
Cuyahoga County Information System...........cccccveeiveeiiieenieeiiieee 2,801 2,188 2,773 2,478
Total business-type activities eXPENSES........cccvvvvervrviieeeriiiiieee e 17,960 15,627 16,097 17,767
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT EXPENSES........cccccoveiiniiieieenne. $ 1,302,549 $ 1,190,678 $ 1,237,238 $ 1,296,953

PROGRAM REVENUES

Governmental activities:
Charges for services

General QOVEIMMENT........cciuuiiiiieiieeesiee et e eesiie e sie e sbee e $ 52,800 $ 56,734 $ 64,865 $ 67,738
JUAICIAL et 28,548 27,992 27,400 20,831
Other aCtIVITIES.......ccueiiiieieiiie e 4,240 6,122 6,089 8,268
Operating Grants and Contributions
SOCIAl SEIVICES...c..ireeiirieeie ettt 366,766 381,781 378,758 410,817
Other aCtIVILIES.......cueviiiei e 174,722 169,759 200,036 211,585
Capital grants, contributions and interest
General GOVEIMMENT.........ccoiiieiiie et 14,598
PUDIIC WOTKS..... et e e 30,090 27,942 25,305 21,691
Total governmental activities program revenues 657,166 670,330 702,453 755,528
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Sanitary ENQINEET.........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec e 9,644 10,298 11,102 12,480
Other aCtIVITIES.......cceeiiieieiiee e 5,098 5,066 4,366 4,497
Operating grants and contributions............cccocveiieiineneniee e, 106 38 145 308
Capital grants, contributions and interest............ccccceeevviveeeeviinnnnn. 6,160
Total business-type activities program revVenuUes.............ceeeveeerneennns 14,848 15,402 15,613 23,445
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT PROGRAM REVENUES............. $ 672,014 $ 685,732 $ 718,066 $ 778,973
Net(expense)/revenue
Governmental activities $ (627,423) $ (504,721) $ (518,688) $ (523,658)
Business-type activities (3,112) (225) (484) 5,678
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT NET EXPENSE.........c.cccoevvueunae. $ (630,535) $ (504,946) $ (519,172) $ (517,980)
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2002 2003 2004 2005

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental activities:

Taxes:

Property............ $ 259,892 $ 257,640 $ 315,172 $ 313,675

Sales and use 157,192 159,029 168,634 167,125

(0101 TR 28,976 29,284 28,928 27,362
Unrestricted state local government fund............ccoooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiienns 43,709 37,873 38,259 38,131
Unrestricted investment €arnings.........coovvevieeiieeiieee e 25,107 10,615 5,743 17,147
Grants and contributions

not restricted to SPECIfiC Programs. ... 34,869 35,556 41,982 41,838
MISCEIIANEOUS. ... .ceeeieiieiee et r e et er e 16,939 11,872 20,596 13,823
Transfers.... . (107) (940) (2,811) (662)
Total Governmental aCtIVILIES..........ccuueiiiiiiiiiiieiiie e 566,577 540,929 616,503 618,439
Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment €arNingS........ooooveeeieeiieeiieeiieeeiee e, 22 14 49 18
MiSCEIIANEOUS......cooiiiiiiiiiie 70 47 53 25
B I = U1 (ST TSP 107 940 2,811 662
Total business-type acCtiVItieS............uvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 199 1,001 2,913 705

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 566,776 $ 541,930 $ 619,416 $ 619,144

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

GOoVernNMENtal ACHIVITIES. ......cocuvveei e e e e e e $ (60,846) $ 36,208 $ 97,815 $ 94,781
BUSINESS-TYPE ACHVITIES.....eviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeee et eeeeaeeeee (2,913) 776 2,429 6,383
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiie e $ (63,759) $ 36,984 $ 100,244 $ 101,164

Note: Only four years of data is available,
accrual basis of accounting
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST FOUR YEARS

(Amounts in 000's)

2002 2003 2004 2005

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............ccccceveeennne $ 382539 % 409,443 $ 350,959 $ 386,234
RESHICIEA ...ovvvveieeeieerceic e 35,262 34,255 38,995 35,678
UNFESHACLEA. ..o 43,821 54,132 205,691 268,514
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS.............. $ 461622 $ 497830 $ 595645 $ 690,426
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..............cccceveveenae $ 31,182 % 30,505 $ 31,236 $ 38,866
UNEESETHCIE. ...veeeve ettt ettt sre st ere e s e s resareas 7,932 9,385 11,083 9,836
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS............... $_ 39114 $ 39,890 $ 42319 $ 48,702
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..........c.cccocvrerennnae $ 413721 $ 439948 $ 382,195 $ 425,100
RESHTCIEA ...t 35,262 34,255 38,995 35,678
UNEESNCEA. ...t 51,753 63,517 216,774 278,350
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT NET ASSETS........cccccvvueine $_ 500,736 $ 537,720 $__ 637,964 $ 739,128

Note: Only four years of data is available,
accrual basis of accounting
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES
ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN YEARS

(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

CUYAHOGA COUNTY:
General operating ........cc.cceeevieeeiiieeennne. 0.82 1.12 1.00 0.87 0.93 0.86 0.81 0.81 0.84 0.74
Debt (bond retirement).........cccoeeeeeinenn. 0.90 0.60 0.72 0.85 0.79 0.86 0.91 0.91 0.88 0.98
Mental retardation ...........ccccceveecveeiienennn 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90
Health and human services ..................... 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Health and welfare ...........ccccceevieiiinenn. 4.40 4.40 3.10 3.10 3.10 3.10 3.10 4.90 4.90 4.90
SUB-TOTAL ..oeeiiiie e 12.12 12.12 10.82 10.82 11.72 11.72 11.72 1352 1352 1352
METROPARKS .......ooieiie e cie e 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.85 1.85
CUYAHOGA COMMUNITY COLLEGE...... 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80
PORT AUTHORITY ..ooiiiiiiiiiie e 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.13
TOTAL ettt 16.60 16.60 15.30 15.30 16.20 16.20 16.20 18.00 18.30 18.30
SCHOOL DISTRICTS ... 67.86 68.67 68.89 70.46 72.09 7274 74.60 7597 77.42 78.96

School district tax rates are presented as county-wide averages.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data.

121



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
REAL, UTILITY AND TANGIBLE TAXES

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000’s)

Tax Year/

Collection Current Delinquent Total Current
Year Levy Levy Levy Collection
1995/1996 $ 297,639 $ 25611 $ 323,250 $ 287,496
1996/1997 301,687 31,450 333,137 289,325
1997/1998 313,161 30,893 344,054 299,708
1998/1999 342,827 30,487 373,314 328,340
1999/2000 346,727 30,841 377,568 330,024
2000/2001 380,846 36,978 417,824 356,859
2001/2002 378,302 47,210 425,512 352,661
2002/2003 367,873 47,730 415,603 345,834
2003/2004 359,443 53,613 413,056 338,719
2004/2005 363,956 51,648 415,604 338,146

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission. Includes all direct and overlapping governments.
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Total

Current Collections As

Levy Delinquent Total A Percent Of Cumulative
Collected Collection Collections Current Levy Delinguency
96.6% $ 7,572 $ 295,068 99.1% $ 25,477

95.9% 8,004 297,329 98.6% 28,805

95.7% 9,084 308,792 98.6% 30,524

95.8% 12,015 340,355 99.3% 28,127

95.2% 12,084 342,108 98.7% 35,030

93.7% 13,367 370,226 97.2% 43,664

93.2% 18,825 371,486 98.2% 47,010

94.0% 14,729 360,563 98.0% 53,359

94.2% 17,310 356,029 99.1% 53,456

92.9% 15,095 353,241 97.1% 55,488
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE
OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Residential Property Commercial Property Industrial Property Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Tax Year Value Value Value value®
1996 $ 13,433,141 $ 4,752,311 $ 1,105,990 $ 19,291,442
1997 14,686,990 5,044,784 1,106,530 20,838,304
1998 14,844,999 5,198,349 1,130,037 21,173,385
1999 15,009,265 5,359,288 1,124,816 21,493,369
2000 16,969,573 6,173,987 1,198,278 24,341,838
2001 17,148,545 6,280,950 1,260,100 24,689,595
2002 17,328,119 6,212,011 1,259,015 24,799,145
2003 19,186,925 6,371,675 1,280,757 26,839,357
2004 19,386,378 6,645,367 1,286,413 27,318,158
2005 19,556,455 6,558,095 1,283,798 27,398,348

(1) Total taxable assessed value net of tax exempt property.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission.
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Total Direct Total Direct Estimated Assessed Value as a

Tax Rate Tax Rate Actual Percentage of

Residential Effective Commercial Effective Taxable Value Actual Value
8.471440 9.749594 $ 55,118,406 35.0%
7.944617 9.542701 59,538,011 35.0%
9.615521 10.189136 60,495,385 35.0%
9.605980 10.163046 61,409,625 35.0%
9.784507 9.991834 69,548,110 35.0%
9.771846 10.050607 70,541,702 35.0%
9.764249 10.123519 70,854,700 35.0%
10.989859 12.043316 76,683,878 35.0%
10.975355 11.984633 78,051,880 35.0%
11.722742 12.576262 78,280,994 35.0%
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
Debt IMit........oooieiie $ 582,456 $ 622,328 $ 632,395 $ 639,329 $ 712,806
Total net debt applicable to limit.................. 122,785 108,462 106,146 97,426 180,375
Legal debt margin...........ccceevivriicniicninies $ 459,671 $ 513,866 $ 526,249 $ 541,903 $ 532,431
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit.................... 21.08% 17.43% 16.78% 15.24% 25.30%
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

$ 715,984 $ 712,143 $ 756,126 $ 764,689 $ 764,650
172,034 155,600 142,181 199,681 192,872
$ 543,950 $ 556,543 $ 613,945 $ 565,008 $ 571,778

24.03% 21.85% 18.80% 26.11% 25.22%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Year 2005
Assessed Valuation (2005 tax Year)........cccceeeiiicuieeeeneeennnnns $ 30,646,005

Debt limit - ORC 133.02 and ORC 133.05

(3% of first $100,000 assessed valuation;

1 1/2% of amount in excess of $100,000 not in excess of

$300,000; 2 1/2% of amount in excess of

$300,000......ccc i 764,650

Debt applicable to limit:

General obligation bonds.............occoviieiieiiiiii s 198,815
Less: Amount set aside for repayment of
general obligation debt..............cooiiii (5,943)
Total net debt applicable to limit...........cccocceeiiiieeiiiieenns 192,872
Legal debt Margin........ccocceviieiieeniieeee e $ 571,778
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT

LAST TEN YEARS

Less:Balance Net
Assessed Gross General Debt Service General Bonded Ratio of Net
Tax value® Bonded Debt® Fund @ Debt Bonded Debt Net Debt

Year Population(l) (Amounts in 000's) (Amounts in 000’s) (Amounts in 000’s) (Amounts in 000's) To Assessed Value Per Capita

1996 1,401,552 23,358,249 174,640 660 173,980 0.74% 124.13
1997 1,386,803 24,953,150 162,385 5,502 156,883 0.63% 113.13
1998 1,380,696 25,355,787 150,325 1,659 148,666 0.59% 107.67
1999 1,371,717 25,633,181 137,775 968 136,807 0.53% 99.73
2000 1,393,978 28,572,250 220,640 4,010 216,630 0.76% 155.40
2001 1,380,421 28,699,372 205,365 661 204,704 0.71% 148.29
2002 1,379,049 28,545,714 189,145 875 188,270 0.66% 136.52
2003 1,363,888 30,305,032 172,250 994 171,256 0.57% 125.56
2004 1,351,009 30,647,572 241,445 9,534 231,911 0.76% 171.66
2005 1,335,317 30,646,005 224,861 5,943 218,918 0.71% 163.94

(1) Estimates - Various sources. 2000 population figure based on actual United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census.
(2) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data.

(3) Tax supported debt outstanding December 31.

(4) Balance outstanding December 31, Financial Reporting Section.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Amounts in 000’s)

Debt
Gross Service Net Percent County
Debt Fund Debt Applicable Share(3)
County of Cuyahoga®) ........cooovoooervcoeeceeeecereerions $ 231,366 $ 5765 $ 225601 100% $ 225,601
Total Net Direct Debt .......cccvvveeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeieee e 225,601
Cuyahoga County Cities, Villages, Townships(l) ...... 1,113,007 33,928 1,079,079 100% 1,079,079
Cuyahoga County School Districts®) ...........coovvven.... 786,473 78,382 708,091 100% 708,091
Total Net Overlapping Debt ..........cccccooieiiiiiiniieenns 1,787,170
Total Net Direct and Overlapping Debt. ................. $ 2,012,771 $ 2,012,771

(1) 2005 Tax Budgets filed in July, 2005 and certified unencumbered 2005 balances filed in January, 2006 with Cuyahoga County

Budget Commission. Budgetary basis.

(2) Cuyahoga County School Districts file on fiscal year ending June 30, 2005. Budgetary basis.
(3) Percent applicable to the County of Cuyahoga calculated using assessed valuation of County divided by assessed valuation of
taxing district. Assessed valuation of taxing districts furnished by Cuyahoga County Budget Commission.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RATIOS OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL
GENERAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Ratio of Tax Ratio of

Supported Debt Self-Supported

Debt Service on Debt Service on Service to Debt Service

General Tax Self-Supporting General General To General

Year Supported Debt Debt Expenditures(l) Expenditures Expenditures
1996 $ 21,647 $ 8,544 $ 773,149 2.80% 1.11%
1997 20,912 7,252 832,655 2.51% 0.87%
1998 20,132 8,445 946,622 2.13% 0.89%
1999 21,503 8,685 1,005,331 2.14% 0.86%
2000 22,083 8,354 1,181,082 1.87% 0.71%
2001 27,094 10,677 1,312,385 2.06% 0.81%
2002 26,592 11,763 1,280,206 2.08% 0.92%
2003 26,420 23,150 1,236,609 2.14% 1.87%
2004 26,240 11,085 1,318,726 2.00% 0.84%
2005 31,026 8,300 1,342,097 2.31% 0.62%

(1) GAAP basis. Includes all governmental fund types.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Financial Reporting Section.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PLEDGED REVENUE BOND COVERAGE -

HOSPITAL BONDS

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Net Revenue

Available Debt Service Requirements
Gross Operating for Debt
Year Revenue® Expenses® Service Principal(®) Interest Total Coverage
1996 $ 327,711 $ 308,873 $ 18,838 $ 1,990 $ 6,737 $ 8,727 2.16
1997 367,125 334,816 32,309 2,120 8,805 10,925 2.96
1998 387,220 360,642 26,578 4,982 6,863 11,845 2.24
1999 423,981 407,070 16,911 1,955 8,702 10,657 1.59
2000 448,458 434,191 14,267 3,850 10,861 14,711 0.97
2001 476,331 449,970 26,361 4,035 10,664 14,699 1.79
2002 508,954 476,321 32,633 4,240 10,469 14,709 2.22
2003 514,107 491,167 22,940 4,435 10,514 14,949 1.53
2004 548,173 521,106 27,067 5,190 10,414 15,604 1.73
2005 592,467 542,029 50,438 5,460 9,925 15,385 3.28

(1) Gross revenue is total operating revenue plus interest income and contributions.

(2) Operating expenses is exclusive of depreciation and bond interest expense.
(3) 1997/2005 principal payment exclusive of refunded bonds.

Source: MetroHealth System. GAAP basis.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST FOUR YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental Activities

2002 2003 2004 2005

General obligation bonds .............cccccceveiviene. $ 189,145 $ 172,250 $ 241,445 $ 224,861
Revenue bonds.........ccccooeei 119,540 115,975 113,735 109,950
Bond anticipation Notes...........cccvvvveeeeeiiiiinnnen. 2,440 2,440

LOANS . coviieieeeeeeeeeee e 3,610 3,332 3,054 5,752
Installment purchase agreements................... 13,695 11,698 9,808 7,881
Capital [eaSes.......ccveeeiiiiiiiiiie e 26,494 25,268 25,563 24,030
SUBTOTAL ..vvvvviiiiivvivvieeievereeeerererreessreessrnnenne. 354,924 330,963 393,605 372,474

Business-type Activities

2002 2003 2004 2005

Special assessment debt with

governmental commitment.............cccceeeeenn. 2,495 2,440 2,250 6,505
Bond anticipation Notes...........cccceeeeeiiiiinennn. 6,083 6,110 5,950
Loans 6,045 6,016 4,729 4,694
SUBTOTAL .ttt 14,623 14,566 12,929 11,199
TOTAL it $ 369,547 $ 345,529 $ 406,534 $ 383,673
Percentagelof Personal Income...........ccc...c.... 1.10% 1.13% 1.28% 1.18%
Per Capita™ ........coooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereen $ 267.97 $ 253.34 $ 30091 $ 287.33

See Demographic Statistics for personal income and population data.
Only 4 years of data is available.
(1) Per capita not in thousands.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

POPULATION®) County MSA Personal Income Per Capita
(Amounts in 000's) Personal Income (2)
1,498,400 1,898,825
1,412,140 1,831,122
1,393,978 1,863,479
1,380,421 1,856,399
1,379,049 1,859,472 $ 33,629,489 $ 24,386
1,363,888 1,848,348 30,686,116 22,499
1,351,009 1,842,749 31,750,063 23,501
1,335,317 1,830,011 32,448,203 24,300
2000
Number Percentage
............................. 90,996 6.5
5O YIS i 101,372 7.3
99,235 7.1
89,960 6.5
77,515 5.6
25 - 34 YIS ceiiiiieieee e 188,873 13.5
35 -44A YIS i 219,449 15.7
45 - B4 YIS it 187,601 135
55 -59 YIS ..ooiiiiiiiieniicen 65,599 4.7
60 - 64 YIS ..ooiivieiiieriieireeien 56,217 4.0
65 — T4 YIS ooiiiieieeiee e 107,327 7.7
75 =84 YIS cooiiviiiieie e 82,469 5.9
85 yrs and over ...........cccuveeee. 27,365 2.0
TOTAL e 1,393,978 100.00
Median age .......cccoeevveeiniieennns 37.3
Males 658,481
Females ........ccccoovenieniiennnne 735,497
DISTRIBUTION OF FAMILIES BY INCOME BRACKET®)
2000
(Average 3.06 persons)
Number Percentage
$0 - 10,000....cccuiiiiiiiiieiiee e 25,261 7.1
$10,000 - 14,999 .....coiiiiiiiiiiiie e 15,018 4.2
$15,000 - 24,999 .....coiiiiiiiienie e 38,075 10.7
$25,000 - 34,999.....cciiiiiiiiieee e 41,222 11.5
$35,000 - 49,999 .....ccciiiiiiiiiiie e 60,077 16.9
$50,000 - 74,999......cciiiiiiiieeee e 78,607 221
$75,000 - 99,999......cciiiiiiiie e 45,341 12.7
$100,000 - 149,999......ccciiiiiiiriiiiieeee e 32,877 9.2
$150,000 - 199,000 ......cccvrrrierrieririenreenine 8,824 25
Over $200,000 ......occveerveeriiieniie e 10,919 3.1
TOTAL it 356,221 100.00

Median Family Income............. $ 49,559

Source: (1) Ohio Department of Development-The Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), as defined by the
Department of Development, includes Cuyahoga, Geauga, Lake and Medina Counties. Population
totals for 2004 are estimates provided by the U.S. Census Bureau.

(2) U.S. Census Bureau estimates, 2005 data not available. 2005 estimate based on 2004 estimate
adjusted for Consumer Price Index.

(3) U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000.

(4) U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS

Employment - Annual Average(l) 1996 1997 1998 1999
Total Civilian Labor FOrce ........ccooeeeveeeiiiviiieeeeees 678,800 676,800 699,200 681,200
Total Employed*.........cccoveeviiieeiiiiee e 643,800 637,400 668,500 649,900
Total Unemployed.........coocvieiiieeiiiiiiieece e, 35,000 39,400 30,700 31,300
Unemployment Rate ...........ccccccuvvvvieeeeiiiiiiiieneeen. 5.2% 5.8% 4.4% 4.6%
Employment By sector(1)
(Amounts in 000's)
Wholesale Professional Federal, State
Retail and Related and Local

Manufacturing Trade Services Government

Number % Number % Number % Number %
1996 137.1 17.8 188.8 24.5 236.8 30.7 81.1 10.5
1997 136.3 17.3 192.9 24.5 242.8 30.9 84.1 10.7
1998 136.5 17.0 195.1 24.4 252.9 31.6 84.8 10.6
1999 133.3 16.5 195.5 24.2 259.6 32.2 83.3 10.3
2000 128.8 16.0 189.3 23.6 264.4 32.9 83.9 10.4
2001 121.4 15.3 182.4 23.0 262.3 33.0 88.4 11.1
2002 96.5 12.4 118.5 15.3 320.5 41.2 102.7 13.2
2003 90.8 11.9 117.4 15.3 319.0 41.6 100.6 13.1
2004 89.2 11.7 113.4 14.9 320.7 42.2 99.3 13.1
2005 86.7 11.4 109.7 14.5 326.9 43.2 99.2 13.1
Source: (1) Ohio Bureau of Employment Services. (3rd Quarter)

* Difference due to non-county residents employed in county.
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
691,000 692,600 669,700 675,400 664,600 669,600
659,900 661,700 624,900 629,600 623,700 629,000

31,100 30,900 44,800 45,800 40,900 40,600

4.5% 4.5% 6.7% 6.8% 6.2% 6.1%

Finance, Transportation

Insurance, and Public

Real Estate Utilities Other TOTAL*
Number % Number % Number % Number %
59.8 7.8 33.8 4.4 32.8 4.3 770.2 100.0
62.2 7.9 34.4 4.4 334 4.3 786.1 100.0
63.7 7.9 34.9 4.4 329 4.1 800.8 100.0
67.9 8.4 34.7 4.3 33.1 4.1 807.4 100.0
68.4 8.5 34.8 4.3 34.7 4.3 804.3 100.0
70.3 8.9 35.8 45 33.1 4.2 793.7 100.0
68.3 8.8 23.4 3.0 47.6 6.1 777.5 100.0
69.4 9.1 23.6 3.1 45.3 5.9 766.1 100.0
69.4 9.1 23.7 3.1 45.0 5.9 760.7 100.0
68.2 9.0 23.4 3.1 43.1 5.7 757.2 100.0
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT

COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN YEARS

1996 1997 1998
FUNCTION
General GOVEIMMENT.......uuvveieieieieieeeeeeereeeeerereerereereeererereeeee. 1,389 1,471 1,555
JUAICTAL ...t aanrnenes 3,286 3,429 3,532
DEVEIOPMENT . .eiiii it 65 69 77
SOCIAl SEIVICES. ... it 3,973 4,030 4,116
Health and Safety...........ccccoiiiiiiiiii e 256 180 46
PUDBIIC WOIKS ... 486 474 452
MiISCEIIANEOUS ......covvveeieeeeeeee e 4 4 4

Source: Cuyahoga County Office of Budget and Management.
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
1,637 1,687 1,680 1,449 1,338 1,393 1,392
3,609 3,720 3,754 3,598 3,432 3,489 3,481

79 82 82 63 61 68 71
4,136 4,262 4,389 3,959 3,660 3,687 3,688
45 47 50 44 40 41 46
442 434 429 362 333 343 347

4 4 4 4 4 4 4
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
OPERATING INDICATORS
BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST NINE YEARS
1997 1998 1999

FUNCTION
Judicial

AULO tItIeS ISSUEB .....ccooieieieiei e 516,702 537,079 520,212
Civil case dispositions...........ccccoevviiiieeeenn. 24,643 24,900 22,667
Criminal case diSposSitions............cccceeeeeenn. 14,110 15,111 15,197

Foreclosure dispositions..........c.ccccoecuveeee. 4,597 5,600 5,795

Marriage licenses issued.........ccccccoevuvnnen. 10,259 10,020 10,203
Average inmate population in county jail 1,930 1,965 2,100
Development

HOMEIESS SEIVEQ........uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirrrb e 7,000 7,500 7,500

HUD dollars acquired (in MillionNs) .........ccccccvevienivreneennen. $6 $7.9 $18.3
Social Services

Foster/adoption applications ...........ccccccveeeiiiiiiiiene e, 729 713 800

FOSLEr NOMES .vveeiieeeeee s 785 879 984

Number of children in foster homes 1,025 1,300 1,450
AdOPLIONS ..o 330 344 555
Citizen complaints 2,708 3,094 3,200
Health and Safety

911 callS rECEIVEM. .....eeiieiieeeee e 103,667 110,000 171,929
AnIMals sheltered............oovvieiiiiiieee e 3,229 2,996 2,791
ANIMAlS adOPLed......cccvviiiiiiieiiiee e 932 861 752
Public Works

Sewer lines televised (FEet) .....uuvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiiiiieee e, 658,916 668,145 816,104

Sewer lines cleaned (Feet)..........cvvveriiiiiiiiieiieiiiieieeeeee 1,329,583 1,360,615 1,363,607

PUmMP SAtIONS. ... 42 42 39
Miscellaneous

Flags distributed to graves of veterans 81,360 81,360 89,280
Veteran groups funded.............cccceeviieennne 71 71 38
Soldiers and Sailors Monument Visits ..........ccccvvvvvvveiveenennns 65,400 65,000 84,000

Source: Cuyahoga County Office of Budget and Management.

Data not compiled before 1997.
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
508,918 574,963 544,815 532,203 522,926 507,312
21,807 22,897 28,307 28,743 29,406 37,750
16,884 17,728 18,127 17,502 17,578 17,325
6,265 6,635 7,315 8,544 8,544 11,855
9,944 10,441 8,975 8,381 8,171 7,892
2,160 2,200 2,114 1,905 1,931 2,023
8,500 9,000 9,000 10,000 9,000 10,500
$12.4 $12.6 $13.3 $13.8 $20 $21
727 1,000 534 435 439 263
978 1,090 959 900 857 782
1,359 1,517 1,450 1,359 717 500
579 800 555 734 532 390
4,171 4,171 4,469 3,642 3,642 3,302
256,579 307,895 423,118 505,000 478,311 550,000
2,929 3,000 2,096 2,429 2,650 2,903
732 750 1,026 1,241 1,241 1,456
762,840 750,000 698,000 730,00 773,342 775,000
1,253,328 1,400,000 1,261,000 1,300,000 1,083,153 1,084,000
39 43 40 42 42 43
89,280 89,280 96,192 100,800 100,800 98,496
34 40 36 31 63 58
65,000 71,500 33,352 42,268 40,432 34,420
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY VALUES, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

LAST TEN YEARS

Bank Deposits At

Assessed Value(l) December 31(2) Building
Year (Amounts in 000's) (Amounts in 000's) Permits Issued(3)
1996 23,358,249 27,068,211 21,700
1997 24,953,150 53,941,971 20,612
1998 25,355,787 58,904,596 24,244
1999 25,633,181 57,816,942 23,428
2000 28,572,250 61,942,764 24,272
2001 28,699,372 63,893,769 22,827
2002 28,545,714 95,760,917 18,680
2003 30,305,032 97,238,973 16,887
2004 30,647,572 101,837,959 20,485
2005 30,646,005 109,071,512 20,996

Sources: (1) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data for real, personal and public utility
property.
(2) Banks deposits at year-end for banks headquartered in City of Cleveland-Federal Reserve Bank of
Cleveland (Total demand, time and savings deposits). Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.
(3) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Real Estate Assessment Division.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

DECEMBER 31, 2005

Name of Carrier/ Policy Policy Annual . o L
Type of Coverage Number Period Premium Details of Coverage Liability Limit
Westfield Companies 34-01350 08/01/05- $21,180 Homeland Security N/A
08/01/06
Travelers Casualty 104349122 07/01/04 - $10,329 Blanket Bond — Form P including $5,000 deductible:
Surety Company 07/01/05 faithful performance. Covers $100,000 faithful
of America all employees except public performance limit
Crime Bond officials who require $200,000 forgery and
individual bonds, treasurers alteration; computer
and tax collectors, by whatever fraud; $400,000 money
title known. Blanket Bond - and securities.
Form O; Form O covers
Treasurer's Department and
Human Services.
FM Global NCO050 07/01/05 - $925,998 All risk coverage on county $1,664,421,385
Insurance Company 07/01/06 owned properties, boilers and Blanket replacement.
Property machinery and data processing Cost limit $500,000
equipment. deductible.
Terrorism Insurance NCO050 07/01/05 - $110,267 All county owned buildings. $5,000,000 lower
07/01/06 limit/$500,000,000
on certified acts.
$51,890 All county owned buildings $1,000,000/
$5,000,000 sublimit/
$250,000,000 on non
-certified acts.
Chubb Excess 35817441 09/30/05 - $85,000 $200,000,000 Excess of MetroHealth properties
09/30/06 $500,000,000 Catastrophe $2,000,000 aggregate.
limit. Personal and
advertising injury
and medical expenses.
$0 deductible.
GAB Robins 08/01/04 - $13,000 Complex Claims Management N/A
(Third Party Administrator) 08/01/06
USF Insurance LGBGL19423R1 02/06/05 - $7,085 Liability insurance for $2,000,000 aggregate
Voting Booths 02/06/07 private voting places for the limit: $1,000,000 per
Liability Board of Elections. Limited occupation, personal
to voting area of each location. and advertising injury.
$5,000 medical
expenses.
$0 deductible.
Harleysville Insurance Cl6J6667 03/08/06 - $12,410 Inland Marine Coverage $14,598,900
Electronic Voting Booths 03/08/07 scheduled. Voting
machine policy.
Ohio Casualty Group 3508782 01/01/06 - $500 Medical Bond SAS $50,000 Continuous.
Insurance 12/31/06
Ohio Casualty Group 3508783 01/01/06- $500 Medical Bond SAS $50,000 Continuous.
Insurance 12/31/06

Source: Department of Central Services, Risk and Property Management.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

2005 1996
Taxable Taxable
Assessed Percentage of Assessed Percentage of
Value Total Taxable Value Total Taxable

Name of Taxpayer (Amounts in 000's) Rank  Assessed Value (Amountsin000’'s) Rank Assessed Value
Cleveland Electric $ 325,248 1 1.06% $ 764,866 1 3.27%
llluminating Company
Ohio Bell Telephone 131,048 2 0.43% 396,417 2 1.70%
Ford Motor Company 122,397 3 0.40% 220,187 3 0.94%
City of Cleveland 112,093 4 0.37%
Cleveland Clinic Foundation 61,374 5 0.20%
Beachwood Place LTD 50,223 6 0.16%
Cleveland Financial Associates 47,233 7 0.15%
General Motors 45,994 8 0.15% 52,701 7 0.23%
Legacy Village Investors LCC 42,019 9 0.14%
American Transmission System 40,328 10 0.13%
LTV Steel Corporation 136,331 4 0.58%
East Ohio Gas 108,893 5 0.47%
Plain Dealer Publishing Company 58,713 6 0.25%
Lincoln Electric Company 43,816 8 0.19%
Columbia Gas of Ohio 43,095 9 0.18%
ZML-Cleveland Public Square 41,125 10 0.18%

Totals $ 977,957 3.19% $1 144 7.99%

These taxpayers were selected based solely upon a review of the 200 taxable parcels of real, personal and public
utility property with the highest assessed valuation. A taxpayer owning many smaller parcels would not be included
in this list even if the aggregate assessed valuation of such parcels exceeded that of one or more taxpayers on the
list.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, IST Division-tax year data.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT AND THREE YEARS AGO

2005 2002

Percentage of Percentage of

Total County Total County
Name of Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Cleveland Clinic 27,755 1 4.4% 23,567 1 3.8%
Health System
University Hospitals 16,611 2 2.6% 14,270 2 2.3%
Health System
U. S. Office of 9,916 3 1.6% N/A
Personnel Management
Cuyahoga County 9,142 4 1.5% 9,376 4 1.5%
Progressive Corp. 9,017 5 1.4% 7,557 6 1.2%
City of Cleveland 8,136 6 1.3% 8,658 5 1.4%
Cleveland Municipal 7,472 7 1.2% 10,510 3 1.7%
School District
KeyCorp 6,397 8 1.0% 7,381 7 1.2%
National City Corp. 6,051 9 1.0% 5,900 9 0.9%
MetroHealth System 5,503 10 0.9%
Ford Motor Co. 6,050 8 0.9%
United States 5,548 10 0.9%
Postal Service

Totals 106,000 16.9% 98,817 15.8%

Source: Crain’s Cleveland Business

2002 data is oldest available

N/A = Not Available
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
MISCELLANEOQOUS STATISTICS

DECEMBER 31, 2005

(D=1 (o) [ oTo] 4 o Yo -1 o] o FON PP RPP P PPEPPNE

Twenty-seventh most populous County in the United States®

1810

Form of Government: Three member elected Board of County Commissioners with legislative and executive powers.

Eight other elected officials with administrative powers.
ATCA-SUUANE MBS ....eiiiiiiiee ettt et e e e e e et et e e e s e e bt et eeeeeasatbaeeaaeeeesntbeeaeenane
Number of Political Subdivisions Located in the County
MUNICIPANTIES ...ttt ettt e e e e s ettt e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e eeannsbneeaeeannns
Townships ......ccccceeeennes

School Districts.............
Special Districts

Total Number of County Employees T R
Voter Statistics, Election of November, 2005

NUumber of REQISIEIrEA VOLEIS ......cciiiiiiiiiiie ettt
Number of Voters-Last General EIECHON ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Percentage of Registered VOters VOUNG .......uviiieiiiiiiiiiiiee et e e e e e

MetroHealth System
Total Patient DaYS-20005 ..........uuiiiiiaiiiiiiie e e et e e e e ettt e e e e e s e naeeeeeaae e e e nrbeeeeaaeeeanneeeean

Total Number of Beds-2005................
Average Percent Occupancy-2005

Sanitary Engineer

Miles of SEeWer LINe OPEIrated ..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiieei ittt e e e e et ee e e e e e e e snenee
Wastewater Treatment Plants Operated
PUumMpP StatioNS OPEIALEA .......coiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e ettt e e e e e e e e ntbeeeea e e e s aanrneeeaaaeesannes

Airport

Hangars
AIFCraft ..o
Traffic(Takeoffs and Landings)...............
OFfiCE BUIAINGS. ...ttt ettt e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e s e nabeeeaeaaeaeannneeaeeanns

Other

Number of Colleges and Universities in COUNLY ...........ciiieiiiiiiiiiiie e e e

Source: (1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2005 estimate.
(2) Cuyahoga County Board of Elections.

459

57

2
33
13

9,785

1,019,692
368,443
36%

274,322
1,172
64%

737

43

73
350
61,400
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
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Mary Taylor, cra

Auditor of State

FINANCIAL CONDITION

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

CLERK’'S CERTIFICATION
This is atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Poabbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
MARCH 22, 2007

88 E. Broad St. / Fourth Floor / Columbus, OH 43215-3506
Telephone: (614) 466-4514 (800) 282-0370 Fax: (614) 466-4490
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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